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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

• Net income after net movements in regulatory balances for the three months and year ended December 31, 2024 
was $9.0 million and $130.3 million, respectively, compared to $20.4 million and $139.9 million for the comparable 
periods in 2023; 

• Capital expenditures were primarily related to the renewal of the electricity distribution infrastructure of THESL 
and were $261.3 million and $882.4 million for the three months and year ended December 31, 2024, 
respectively, compared to $213.3 million and $755.0 million for the comparable periods in 2023; 

• On November 12, 2024, the OEB issued its 2025-2029 CIR Decision, and on December 12, 2024, issued its CIR 
Final Rate Order (together, the 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order), both in relation to the 2025-2029 CIR 
Application. The 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order approved the negotiated settlement proposal as filed, 
final electricity distribution rates for the first year of the five-year rate period effective January 1, 2025, a custom 
incentive rate-setting index for the period commencing on January 1, 2026 and ending on December 31, 2029 
and the final clearance of various deferral and variance account balances for the 2020-2024 period through rate 
riders. The approved rates for 2025 were implemented on January 1, 2025; 

• On November 27, 2024, Federico Zeni was named Interim Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Zeni replaced Céline 
Arsenault, former CFO, who left the Corporation in November 2024; 

• On December 16, 2024, the Corporation issued 28 common shares to the City for total proceeds of $50.0 million 
in relation to a one-time upfront special equity investment from the City; 

• On December 17, 2024, City Council appointed Brian Topp and Councillor Rachel Chernos Lin to the 
Corporation’s Board of Directors. Mr. Topp was also appointed as Chair of the Board upon nomination by the City 
effective as of December 19, 2024, replacing David McFadden. Mr. Topp’s term on the Board ends on June 27, 
2026, or the effective date of the appointment of a successor. Deputy Mayor Jennifer McKelvie and Councillor 
Dianne Saxe were re-appointed as directors of the Corporation by City Council on December 17, 2024, with each 
of their terms and that of Councillor Chernos Lin lasting until November 14, 2026, or the effective date of the 
appointment of a successor; 

• On January 2, 2025, the Corporation issued 14 common shares to the City for total proceeds of $25.0 million in 
relation to an annual equity contribution from the City; and 

• On February 26, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Corporation declared a dividend in the amount of $15.0 
million with respect to the first quarter of 2025 (first quarter of 2024 - $21.0 million), payable to the City by 
March 31, 2025. 

INTRODUCTION 

This MD&A should be read in conjunction with the Corporation’s audited consolidated financial statements and 
accompanying notes for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, which were prepared in accordance with IFRS 
Accounting Standards (the Consolidated Financial Statements). 

Additional information about Toronto Hydro, including the Corporation’s Annual Information Form, is available on the 
SEDAR+ website (sedarplus.ca) and the Corporation’s website (torontohydro.com/corporate-reports). 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

BUSINESS OF TORONTO HYDRO CORPORATION 

The Corporation is a holding company which wholly owns two subsidiaries: 

• THESL – distributes electricity; and 
• TH Energy – provides street lighting and expressway lighting services in the city of Toronto. 

The Corporation supervises the operations of, and provides corporate, management services and strategic direction to its 
subsidiaries. The City is the sole shareholder of the Corporation. 

The principal business of the Corporation and its subsidiaries is the distribution of electricity by THESL as a LDC. THESL 
owns and operates an electricity distribution system that delivers electricity to approximately 796,000 customers located in 
the city of Toronto. THESL serves the largest city in Canada and distributes approximately 18% of the electricity 
consumed in Ontario. The business of THESL is regulated by the OEB, which has broad powers relating to licensing, 
standards of conduct and service, and the regulation of electricity distribution rates charged by electricity distributors in 
Ontario. For the year ended December 31, 2024, THESL recognized energy sales and distribution revenue of $3,861.1 
million from general service users(1), residential service users(2) and large users(3). 

THESL Energy Sales and Distribution Revenue by Class 
Year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

2024 2023 

(1) “General Service” means a service supplied to premises other than those receiving “Residential Service” and “Large Users” and 
typically includes small businesses and bulk-metered multi-unit residential establishments. This service is provided to customers with 
a monthly peak demand of less than 5,000 kW averaged over a 12-month period. 

(2) “Residential Service” means a service that is for domestic or household purposes, including single family or individually metered 
multi-family units and seasonal occupancy. 

(3) “Large Users” means a service provided to a customer with a monthly peak demand of 5,000 kW or greater averaged over a 12-
month period. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION – INDUSTRY OVERVIEW 

Under provincial laws, THESL and other electricity distributors purchase electricity from the wholesale market 
administered by the IESO and recover the costs of electricity and certain other costs from customers in accordance with 
rate-setting procedures mandated by the OEB. 

The OEB has regulatory oversight of electricity matters in Ontario. The OEB Act sets out the OEB’s authority to issue a 
distribution licence that must be obtained by owners or operators of an electricity distribution system in Ontario.  The OEB 
prescribes licence requirements and conditions including, among other things, specified accounting records, regulatory 
accounting principles, separation of accounts for distribution and other activities, and requirements for rate-setting and 
other legal filings. 

The OEB’s authority and responsibilities include the power to approve and set rates for the transmission and distribution 
of electricity, the power to approve the amounts paid to non-contracted generators, the responsibility to provide rate 
protection for rural or remote electricity customers, and the responsibility for ensuring that electricity distribution 
companies fulfill their obligations to connect and service customers. 

THESL is required to charge its customers for the following amounts (all of which, other than distribution rates, represent a 
pass-through of amounts payable to third parties): 

• Commodity Charge – The commodity charge represents the market price of electricity consumed by customers 
and is passed through the IESO back to operators of generating stations. It includes the global adjustment, which 
represents the difference between the market price of electricity and the rates paid to regulated and contracted 
generators. 

• Retail Transmission Rate – The retail transmission rate represents the costs incurred in respect of the 
transmission of electricity from generating stations to local distribution networks. Retail transmission rates are a 
pass-through to operators of transmission facilities. 

• WMS Charges – The WMS charges represent various wholesale market support costs, such as the cost of the 
IESO to administer the wholesale electricity system, operate the electricity market and maintain reliable operation 
of the provincial grid. Wholesale charges are a pass-through to the IESO. 

• Distribution Rate – The distribution rate is designed to recover the costs incurred by THESL in delivering electricity 
to customers, including the OEB-allowed cost of capital. Distribution rates are regulated by the OEB and include 
fixed and variable (usage-based) components, based on a forecast of THESL’s customers and load. 

THESL is required to satisfy and maintain prudential requirements with the IESO, which include credit support with 
respect to outstanding market obligations in the form of letters of credit, cash deposits or guarantees from third parties 
with prescribed credit ratings. 

The Corporation is exempt from tax under the ITA, if not less than 90% of its capital is owned by the City and not more 
than 10% of its income is derived from activities carried on outside the municipal geographical boundaries of the City. In 
addition, the Corporation’s subsidiaries are also exempt from tax under the ITA provided that all of their capital is owned 
by the Corporation and not more than 10% of their respective income is from activities carried on outside the municipal 
geographical boundaries of the City. A corporation exempt from tax under the ITA is also exempt from tax under the TA. 

The Electricity Act provides that an MEU that is exempt from tax under the ITA and the TA is required to make, for each 
taxation year, a PILs payment to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation in an amount equal to the tax that it would be 
liable to pay under the ITA and the TA if it were not exempt from tax. The Corporation and each of its subsidiaries are 
MEUs for purposes of the PILs regime contained in the Electricity Act, and therefore, the Corporation is required to make 
PILs to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Net Income after Net Movements in Regulatory Balances 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 
Three months ended 

December 31, 
2024 

$ 
2023 

$ 
Change 

$ 
Change 

% 

Revenues 

Energy sales 719.1 691.4 27.7 4.0 % 

Distribution revenue 232.5 210.4 22.1 10.5 % 

Other 30.1 32.6 (2.5) (7.7) % 

981.7 934.4 47.3 5.1 % 

Expenses 

Energy purchases 719.8 684.7 35.1 5.1 % 

Operating expenses 105.8 97.3 8.5 8.7 % 

Depreciation and amortization 84.9 74.6 10.3 13.8 % 

910.5 856.6 53.9 6.3 % 

Finance costs (34.9) (32.2) (2.7) 8.4 % 

Other gains — 0.7 (0.7) (100.0) % 

Income before income taxes 36.3 46.3 (10.0) (21.6) % 

Income tax (expense) recovery 4.7 (18.0) 22.7 >100% 

Net income 41.0 28.3 12.7 44.9 % 

Net movements in regulatory balances (29.6) (23.8) (5.8) 24.4 % 

Net movements in regulatory balances arising from deferred taxes (2.4) 15.9 (18.3) >100% 

Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 9.0 20.4 (11.4) (55.9) % 

For the three months ended December 31, 2024, net income after net movements in regulatory balances was lower by 
$11.4 million. The decrease was primarily due to higher net credit amounts deferred into regulatory accounts ($13.2 
million), higher depreciation and amortization expenses ($10.3 million), higher operating expenses ($8.5 million), higher 
finance costs ($2.7 million) and lower other revenues ($2.5 million), partially offset by higher distribution revenue ($22.1 
million). 

The variances in energy sales and energy purchases do not impact net income after net movements in regulatory 
balances as there is a corresponding offset in net movements in regulatory balances. The difference between energy 
sales and energy purchases is recorded as a settlement variance within regulatory balances on the Corporation’s 
consolidated balance sheets (Consolidated Balance Sheets) and represents amounts to be recovered from or refunded to 
customers through future rates approved by the OEB. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 
Year ended 

December 31, 
2024 

$ 
2023 

$ 
Change 

$ 
Change 

% 

Revenues 

Energy sales 2,923.3 2,687.3 236.0 8.8 % 

Distribution revenue 937.8 839.5 98.3 11.7 % 

Other 118.9 118.7 0.2 0.2 % 

3,980.0 3,645.5 334.5 9.2 % 

Expenses 

Energy purchases 3,005.6 2,735.7 269.9 9.9 % 

Operating expenses 378.5 352.2 26.3 7.5 % 

Depreciation and amortization 299.7 283.3 16.4 5.8 % 

3,683.8 3,371.2 312.6 9.3 % 

Finance costs (137.8) (121.5) (16.3) 13.4 % 

Other gains — 36.3 (36.3) (100.0) % 

Income before income taxes 158.4 189.1 (30.7) (16.2) % 

Income tax expense (18.6) (37.7) 19.1 (50.7) % 

Net income 139.8 151.4 (11.6) (7.7) % 

Net movements in regulatory balances (33.6) (42.3) 8.7 (20.6) % 

Net movements in regulatory balances arising from deferred taxes 24.1 30.8 (6.7) (21.8) % 

Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 130.3 139.9 (9.6) (6.9) % 

For the year ended December 31, 2024, net income after net movements in regulatory balances was lower by $9.6 
million. The decrease was primarily due to lower other gains ($36.3 million), higher operating expenses ($26.3 million), 
higher net credit amounts deferred into regulatory accounts ($25.2 million), higher depreciation and amortization ($16.4 
million) and higher finance costs ($16.3 million), partially offset by higher distribution revenue ($98.3 million). 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Energy Sales, Energy Purchases and Settlement Variances 

Energy Sales 

THESL’s energy sales arise from charges to customers for electricity consumed, based on regulated rates. Energy sales 
include amounts billed or billable to customers for commodity charges, retail transmission charges, and WMS charges at 
current rates. These charges are passed through to customers over time and are considered revenue by THESL. 

Energy sales for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 (in millions of Canadian dollars) were comprised 
of: 

586.8

96.6
35.7

572.3

88.3
30.8

Q4 2024 Q4 2023

Commodity Retail transmission WMS
0.0

100.0

200.0

300.0

400.0

500.0

600.0

700.0

Energy sales for the three months ended December 31, 2024 were $719.1 million, compared to $691.4 million for the 
comparable period in 2023. The increase was due to higher commodity charges ($14.5 million), higher retail transmission 
charges ($8.3 million) and higher WMS charges ($4.9 million). 

Energy sales for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 (in millions of Canadian dollars) were comprised of: 

2,378.9

401.0
143.4

2,203.6

360.6
123.1

2024 2023
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500.0

1,000.0
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Energy sales for the year ended December 31, 2024 were $2,923.3 million, compared to $2,687.3 million for the 
comparable period in 2023. The increase was due to higher commodity charges ($175.3 million), higher retail 
transmission charges ($40.4 million) and higher WMS charges ($20.3 million). 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Energy Purchases 

THESL’s energy purchases consist of actual charges for electricity generated by third parties, which are passed through to 
customers over time in the form of energy sales. Energy purchases are billed monthly by the IESO and include 
commodity charges, retail transmission charges and WMS charges. 

Energy purchases for the three months ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 (in millions of Canadian dollars) were 
comprised of: 

587.6
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Energy purchases for the three months ended December 31, 2024 were $719.8 million compared to $684.7 million for the 
comparable period in 2023. The increase was due to higher commodity charges ($17.6 million), higher WMS charges 
($10.6 million) and higher retail transmission charges ($6.9 million). 

Energy purchases for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 (in millions of Canadian dollars) were comprised of: 

2,433.4
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Energy purchases for the year ended December 31, 2024 were $3,005.6 million compared to $2,735.7 million for the 
comparable period in 2023. The increase was due to higher commodity charges ($201.6 million), higher WMS charges 
($42.3 million) and higher retail transmission charges ($26.0 million). 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Settlement Variances 

Three months ended Year ended 

December 31, December 31, 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 
2024 

$ 
2023 

$ 
2024 

$ 
2023 

$ 

Commodity charges (0.8) 2.3 (54.5) (28.2) 
Retail transmission charges (2.5) (3.9) (27.0) (41.4) 
WMS charges 2.6 8.3 (0.8) 21.2 
Total (0.7) 6.7 (82.3) (48.4) 
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Settlement variances arise when there is a difference between energy sales and energy purchases. For any given period, 
energy sales should be equal to the cost of energy purchased, however a settlement variance arises when there is a 
timing difference between the amounts charged by THESL to customers, based on regulated rates, and the electricity and 
non-competitive electricity service costs billed monthly by the IESO to THESL. These settlement variances represent 
amounts to be recovered from or refunded to customers through future rates approved by the OEB. In accordance with 
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts (IFRS 14), this settlement variance is presented within regulatory balances on the 
Corporation’s Consolidated Balance Sheets and within net movements in regulatory balances on the Corporation’s 
consolidated statements of income (Consolidated Statements of Income). 

For the three months ended December 31, 2024, THESL recognized $719.1 million in energy sales to customers and was 
billed $719.8 million for energy purchases from the IESO. The difference between energy sales and energy purchases 
represents a $0.7 million settlement variance for the period. The settlement variance was recorded as an increase to the 
regulatory debit balance ($2.5 million including carrying charges on the accumulated settlement variance balance) on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets, and presented within net movements in regulatory balances on the Consolidated 
Statements of Income. 

For the year ended December 31, 2024, THESL recognized $2,923.3 million in energy sales to customers and was billed 
$3,005.6 million for energy purchases from the IESO. The difference between energy sales and energy purchases 
represents a $82.3 million settlement variance for the period. The settlement variance was recorded as an increase to the 
regulatory debit balance ($90.2 million including carrying charges on the accumulated settlement variance balance) on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets, and presented within net movements in regulatory balances on the Consolidated 
Statements of Income. 

Distribution Revenue 

Distribution revenue is recorded based on OEB-approved distribution rates to recover the costs incurred by THESL in 
delivering electricity to customers and includes revenue collected through OEB-approved rate riders. Distribution revenue 
for the three months and year ended December 31, 2024 was $232.5 million and $937.8 million, respectively, compared to 
$210.4 million and $839.5 million for the comparable periods in 2023. 

The increase of $22.1 million in distribution revenue compared to the prior comparable period for the three months ended 
December 31, 2024 was driven by higher revenue collected through OEB-approved rate riders ($12.5 million), higher 
2024 distribution rates ($9.0 million) and higher electricity consumption ($0.6 million). 

The increase of $98.3 million in distribution revenue compared to the prior comparable period for the year ended 
December 31, 2024 was driven by higher revenue collected through OEB-approved rate riders ($52.8 million), higher 
2024 distribution rates ($40.2 million) and higher electricity consumption ($5.3 million). 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Other Revenue 

Other revenue includes revenue from services ancillary to electricity distribution, delivery of street lighting services, pole 
and duct rentals, amortization of deferred revenue related to capital contributions and other regulatory service charges. 

Other revenue for the three months and year ended December 31, 2024 was $30.1 million and $118.9 million, 
respectively, compared to $32.6 million and $118.7 million for the comparable periods in 2023. 

The decrease of $2.5 million in other revenue for the three months ended December 31, 2024 was primarily due to lower 
ancillary service revenue and lower pole and duct rentals. 

Other revenue for the year ended December 31, 2024 was in line with the comparable period in 2023. 

Operating Expenses 

Operating expenses for the three months and year ended December 31, 2024 were $105.8 million and $378.5 million, 
respectively, compared to $97.3 million and $352.2 million for the comparable periods in 2023. 

The increase of $8.5 million for the three months ended December 31, 2024 was primarily due to higher administrative 
expenses, higher system maintenance costs, higher consulting fees and higher bad debts, partially offset by lower 
ancillary services. 

The increase of $26.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2024 was primarily due to higher administrative expenses, 
higher consulting fees and higher system maintenance costs, partially offset by lower ancillary services and lower bad 
debts. 

Depreciation and Amortization 

Depreciation and amortization expense, which includes losses on the derecognition of assets removed from service, for 
the three months and year ended December 31, 2024 was $84.9 million and $299.7 million, respectively, compared to 
$74.6 million and $283.3 million for the comparable periods in 2023. 

The increase of $10.3 million and $16.4 million in depreciation and amortization expense for the three months and year 
ended December 31, 2024, respectively, was primarily due to higher in-service asset additions and higher losses on the 
derecognition of assets removed from service, partially offset by certain assets being fully depreciated. 

Finance Costs 

Finance costs for the three months and year ended December 31, 2024 were $34.9 million and $137.8 million, 
respectively, compared to $32.2 million and $121.5 million for the comparable periods in 2023. 

The increase of $2.7 million in finance costs for the three months ended December 31, 2024 was primarily due to a higher 
average amount of outstanding debentures, a decrease in capitalized borrowing cost as a result of a lower allowance for 
funds used during construction and a decrease in interest income due to lower short-term interest rates, partially offset by 
a lower weighted average interest rate of 3.93% (compared to 5.19% for the comparable period in 2023) for commercial 
paper. 

The increase of $16.3 million in finance costs for the year ended December 31, 2024 was primarily due to a higher 
average amount of outstanding debentures, a decrease in capitalized borrowing cost as a result of a lower allowance for 
funds used during construction and a decrease in interest income due to lower short-term interest rates, partially offset by 
a lower weighted average interest rate of 4.73% (compared to 4.91% for the comparable period in 2023) for commercial 
paper 

12 



 
  

 

   
  

  

  
    

  

 

 
    

  

 
  

  

   
  

    
 

 

   
  

    
      

  
   

    
          

  
      
     

  
    

   
    

   
    

    
 

  

 

\.I 
-(, TORONTO 

HYDRO. 
Corporation 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Other Gains 

Other gains for the three months and year ended December 31, 2024 were $nil and $nil, respectively, compared to $0.7 
million and $36.3 million for the comparable periods in 2023. 

Other gains for the three months ended December 31, 2024 were in line with the comparable period in 2023. 

The decrease of $36.3 million in other gains for the year ended December 31, 2024 was mainly due to the variable 
consideration receivable in relation to the disposition of properties by THESL in prior years upon achievement of 
conditions which did not reoccur in 2024. 

Income Tax Expense and Income Tax Recorded in Net Movements in Regulatory Balances 

Income tax expense (recovery) and income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory balances for the three months 
and year ended December 31, 2024 was a recovery of $2.3 million and $5.5 million, respectively, compared to an 
expense of $2.1 million and $6.9 million for the comparable periods in 2023. 

The decrease in income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory balances for the three 
months ended December 31, 2024 was primarily due to lower income before taxes and higher net deductions in 
permanent and temporary differences between accounting and tax treatments. 

The decrease in income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory balances for the year 
ended December 31, 2024 was primarily due to lower income before taxes, tax recognized in 2023 on the realized gains 
related to the disposition of properties in prior years, and higher net deductions in permanent and temporary differences 
between accounting and tax treatments. 

Net Movements in Regulatory Balances 

In accordance with IFRS 14, the Corporation separately presents regulatory balances and related net movements on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets and the Consolidated Statements of Income. 

The increase of $17.4 million in the regulatory debit and increase of $34.3 million in the regulatory credit balances for the 
year ended December 31, 2024 equals the sum of $(16.9) million of net movements in regulatory balances, net 
movements in regulatory balances arising from deferred taxes and net movements in regulatory balances related to OCI 
for the period (refer to discussion under “Financial Position”). Energy purchases record the actual cost of power 
purchased, which varies from month to month. Since the selling price of power within energy sales is fixed for set periods 
of time, a gain or loss usually results and is part of the calculation of net income. However, per OEB regulations, such 
gains or losses on energy sales are deferred within regulatory variance accounts for later disposition to or from rate 
payers via rate riders after approval by the OEB. Deferrals of gains or losses on energy sales (refer to discussion on 
settlement variance under “Results of Operations”), or disposition of past deferrals in electricity rates will usually represent 
the largest single element of the net movements in regulatory balances for a given period. 

The net movements in regulatory balances for the three months and year ended December 31, 2024 were $(29.6) million 
and $(33.6) million, respectively, compared to $(23.8) million and $(42.3) million for the comparable periods in 2023. 

The net movements in regulatory balances of $(29.6) million for the three months ended December 31, 2024 was primarily 
due to the changes to the useful lives of PP&E and amounts disposed through OEB-approved rate riders, partially offset 
by the settlement variance between the electricity costs billed monthly by the IESO and THESL’s billing to customers. The 
net movements in regulatory balances of $(23.8) million for the three months ended December 31, 2023 was primarily due 
to changes to the useful lives of PP&E, the settlement variance between the electricity costs billed monthly by the IESO 
and THESL’s billing to customers, amounts disposed through OEB-approved rate riders and gain on disposals resulting 
from the variable consideration in connection with the disposal of properties in prior years. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
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The net movements in regulatory balances of $(33.6) million for the year ended December 31, 2024 was primarily due to 
the changes to the useful lives of PP&E and amounts disposed through OEB-approved rate riders, partially offset by the 
settlement variance between the electricity costs billed monthly by the IESO and THESL’s billing to customers. The net 
movements in regulatory balances of $(42.3) million for the year ended December 31, 2023 was primarily due to the 
changes to the useful lives of PP&E, gain on disposals resulting from the variable consideration in connection with the 
disposal of properties in prior years, changes in capital-related revenue requirement variance account and amounts 
disposed through OEB-approved rate riders, partially offset by the settlement variance between the electricity costs billed 
monthly by the IESO and THESL’s billing to customers. 

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The table below presents a summary of Toronto Hydro’s results of operations for eight quarters including and immediately 
preceding December 31, 2024. 

December 31, 
2024 

September 30, 
2024 

June 30, 
2024 

March 31, 
2024 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) $ $ $ $ 

Energy sales 

Distribution revenue 

Other 

719.1 794.0 
246.4 
30.7 

671.1 
233.7 
30.4 

739.1 
225.2 
27.7 

232.5 
30.1 

Revenues 

Net income after net movements in regulatory 
balances 

981.7 1,071.1 

45.0 

935.2 

42.4 

992.0 

33.9 9.0 

December 31, 
2023 

September 30, 
2023 

June 30, 
2023 

March 31, 
2023 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) $ $ $ $ 

Energy sales 

Distribution revenue 

Other 

691.4 
210.4 
32.6 

726.8 
219.9 
27.8 

640.8 
207.9 
31.0 

628.3 
201.3 
27.3 

Revenues 

Net income after net movements in regulatory 
balances 

934.4 

20.4 

974.5 

39.3 

879.7 

36.2 

856.9 

44.0 

Toronto Hydro’s revenues, all other things being equal, are impacted by temperature fluctuations and unexpected weather 
conditions, including increased frequency of extreme weather events as a result of climate change, such as heat waves, 
intense rain events, snow storms and higher average temperatures. Generally, revenues would tend to be higher in the 
first quarter as a result of higher energy consumption for winter heating, and in the third quarter due to air conditioning/ 
cooling. Toronto Hydro’s revenues are also impacted by fluctuations in electricity prices and the timing and recognition of 
regulatory decisions. 
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For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

FINANCIAL POSITION 

The following table outlines the significant changes in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2024 
compared to December 31, 2023. 

Balance Sheet Account 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

$ 
Explanation of Significant Change 

Assets 

Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue 

Other assets 

PP&E and intangible assets 

Liabilities and Equity 

The increase was primarily due to higher pass-through 
electricity costs, higher electricity consumption and the 
reclassification of the variable consideration receivable 
in relation to the disposition of a property in a prior year 
from other assets, partially offset by timing of billing and 
collection activities. 

The decrease was primarily due to the derecognition of 
the legal settlement (refer to “Legal Proceedings”) as 
the settlement was paid and the variable consideration 
receivable in relation to the disposition of a property in a 
prior year which has been reclassified to accounts 
receivable and unbilled revenue. 

The increase was largely due to capital expenditures 
(refer to “Investing Activities”), partially offset by the 
depreciation and amortization during the period. 

46.7 

(109.2) 

581.7 

Commercial paper 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

Deferred revenue 

Deferred conservation credit 

Deferred tax liabilities 

59.0 

(59.2) 

The increase was due to the issuances of commercial 
paper required for general corporate purposes (refer to 
“Liquidity and Capital Resources”). 

The decrease was primarily due to the legal settlement 
(refer to “Legal Proceedings”), partially offset by an 
increase in accounts payable to the IESO due to higher 
pass-through costs. 

The increase was mainly due to capital contributions 
received, partially offset by amortization during the 
period. 

The decrease was due to the wind-down of the CDM 
program (refer to "CDM Activities"). 

The increase was driven by lower tax values as 
compared to accounting values of PP&E and intangible 
assets and the impact of the actuarial gain on post-
employment benefits. 

154.7 

(10.9) 

19.0 
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Balance Sheet Account 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

$ 
Explanation of Significant Change 

Debentures 249.4 The increase was related to the issuance of the Series 
22 debentures (refer to “Financing Activities”). 

Share Capital 50.0 The increase was related to the one-time upfront special 
equity investment of $50.0 million from the City (refer to 
“Share Capital”). 

Retained earnings 46.4 The increase was due to net income after net 
movements in regulatory balances ($130.3 million), net 
of dividends paid ($83.9 million). 

Regulatory Balances 

Regulatory debit balances 17.4 The increase was primarily related to settlement 
variances between the electricity costs billed monthly by 
the IESO and THESL’s billing to customers and 
increase in deferred taxes, partially offset by the 
amounts disposed through OEB-approved rate riders. 

Regulatory credit balances 34.3 The increase was primarily due to changes in useful 
lives of PP&E and increase in post-employment 
benefits, partially offset by the amounts disposed 
through OEB-approved rate riders. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

The Corporation is a party to an amended and restated credit agreement dated November 17, 2023 (as amended) with a 
syndicate of Canadian chartered banks which provides for a revolving credit facility in an amount up to $1.0 billion 
(Revolving Credit Facility), of which up to $210.0 million is available in the form of letters of credit. On September 18, 
2024, the maturity date of the Revolving Credit Facility was extended from September 18, 2028 to September 18, 2029. 
Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility bear interest at fluctuating rates plus an applicable margin based on the 
Corporation’s credit rating. 

The Corporation has a commercial paper program allowing unsecured short-term promissory notes (Commercial Paper 
Program) to be issued in various maturities of no more than one year. The Commercial Paper Program is supported by 
liquidity facilities available under the Revolving Credit Facility; hence, available borrowing under the Revolving Credit 
Facility is reduced by the amount of commercial paper outstanding at any point in time. Proceeds from the Commercial 
Paper Program are used for general corporate purposes. Borrowings under the Commercial Paper Program bear interest 
based on the prevailing market conditions at the time of issuance. 

Additionally, the Corporation is a party to a $100.0 million demand facility with a Canadian chartered bank for the purpose 
of issuing letters of credit. As at December 31, 2024, letters of credit totalling $54.3 million had been issued under this 
facility (December 31, 2023 – $51.3 million). 

The Corporation is a party to a $20.0 million demand facility with a Canadian chartered bank for the purpose of working 
capital management (Working Capital Facility). As at December 31, 2024, $5.2 million had been drawn under the Working 
Capital Facility, compared to $7.3 million as at December 31, 2023. On the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash 
and cash equivalents (working capital balances) includes bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an 
integral part of the Corporation’s cash management. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Toronto Hydro’s current assets and current liabilities amounted to $616.4 million and $1,075.2 million, respectively, as at 
December 31, 2024, resulting in a working capital deficit of $458.8 million. The deficit was primarily attributable to the 
Corporation’s preference for utilizing its Commercial Paper Program and Working Capital Facility. The Corporation seeks 
to maintain an optimal mix of short-term and long-term debt in order to lower overall financing costs and to enhance 
borrowing flexibility. 

The Corporation’s primary sources of liquidity and capital resources are cash provided by operating activities, issuance of 
commercial paper, amounts available to be drawn against its credit facilities, and borrowings from debt capital markets. 
The Corporation’s liquidity and capital resource requirements are mainly for capital expenditures to maintain and improve 
the electricity distribution system of THESL, for energy purchases and to refinance debt obligations at maturity. 

The amount available under the Revolving Credit Facility and the Commercial Paper Program are as follows: 

Balance as at December 31, 2023 

As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, there were no borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility. 

The table below represents consolidated statements of cash flow data for the periods indicated: 

Three months ended Year ended 

December 31, December 31, 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 
2024 

$ 
2023 

$ 
2024 

$ 
2023 

$ 

Working capital facility, beginning of period — (2.4) (7.3) (12.8) 
Net cash provided by operating activities 235.1 238.8 716.4 696.8 
Net cash used in investing activities (201.0) (186.7) (844.1) (724.9) 
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (39.3) (57.0) 129.8 33.6 
Working capital facility, end of period (5.2) (7.3) (5.2) (7.3) 

 
  

     
      

 
  

 

   
      

     

   

   

    

  

   

      

  

  

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

   

  

  

  

   

 

  
   

  
  

  
 

  
    

 

 

Revolving 
Credit Facility 

Limit

Commercial 
Paper 

Outstanding

Revolving 
Credit Facility 

Availability
(in millions of Canadian dollars) $ $ $

...... , __ 
-('' TORONTO 

HYDRO. 
Corporation 

Balance as at December 31, 2024 1,000.0 480.0 520.0 
1,000.0 421.0 579.0 

Operating Activities 

Net cash provided by operating activities for the three months and year ended December 31, 2024 was $235.1 million and 
$716.4 million, respectively, compared to $238.8 million and $696.8 million for the comparable periods in 2023. 

The decrease in net cash provided by operating activities for the three months ended December 31, 2024 was primarily 
due to timing differences in settlement receivables and payables including deferred conservation credits and other current 
assets ($13.7 million) and lower customer deposits ($9.7 million), partially offset by higher capital contributions received 
($19.1 million). 

The increase in net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2024 was primarily due to 
higher capital contributions received ($31.8 million), partially offset by lower net income before net movements in 
regulatory balances ($11.6 million). 
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For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Investing Activities 

Net cash used in investing activities for the three months and year ended December 31, 2024 was $201.0 million and 
$844.1 million, respectively, compared to $186.7 million and $724.9 million for the comparable periods in 2023. 

Electricity distribution is a capital-intensive business. As THESL is the municipal electricity distribution company serving 
the largest city in Canada, it continues to invest in expanding, modernizing and sustaining the grid and its operations to 
meet the current and future needs of its customers, and to prepare the grid and its operations to serve the city's growth 
and net-zero objectives. 

The following table summarizes the Toronto Hydro’s capital expenditures (on an accrual basis) for the periods indicated. 

Three months ended Year ended 

December 31, December 31, 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 
2024 

$ 
2023 

$ 
2024 

$ 
2023 

$ 
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Regulated THESL 

Distribution system 

Planned (1) 219.1 171.1 721.8 596.0 
Reactive (2) 16.5 14.1 64.1 57.1 

Technology assets 9.8 17.4 54.6 61.9 
Other (3) 11.0 8.8 30.3 32.9 

Regulated capital expenditures 256.4 211.4 870.8 747.9 
Unregulated capital expenditures (4) 4.9 11.6 7.1 
Total capital expenditures 261.3 882.4 755.0 

1.9 
213.3 

(1) Includes, among other initiatives, the replacement of overhead and underground infrastructures, station programs, delivery of 
customer connections, customer-initiated plant relocations, expansions and metering. 

(2) Non-discretionary replacement of failed or failing assets across the distribution system. 
(3) Includes fleet capital and building enhancements.
(4) Primarily relates to street lighting, behind-the-meter battery storage projects and generation equipment. 

The total regulated capital expenditures for the three months and year ended December 31, 2024 were $256.4 million and 
$870.8 million, respectively, compared to $211.4 million and $747.9 million for the comparable periods in 2023. 

For the three months ended December 31, 2024, the increase of $45.0 million in regulated capital expenditures was 
primarily due to higher spending on replacement of overhead infrastructure ($21.8 million), customer-initiated plant 
relocations and expansions ($11.9 million), metering ($8.2 million), stations programs ($7.9 million) and replacement of 
underground infrastructure ($6.9 million), partially offset by lower spending on critical capital equipment ($12.3 million). 

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the increase of $122.9 million in regulated capital expenditures was primarily due 
to higher spending on replacement of overhead infrastructure ($56.3 million), replacement of underground infrastructure 
($31.8 million), customer connections ($23.8 million), metering ($23.2 million), stations programs ($22.5 million) and 
reactive capital ($7.0 million), partially offset by lower spending on critical capital equipment ($29.9 million), technology 
assets ($7.3 million), and facilities management and security ($4.6 million). 

The largest capital initiatives in 2024 include the delivery of customer connections, replacement of overhead and 
underground infrastructures, customer-initiated plant relocations and expansions, reactive capital and stations programs. 
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The delivery of customer connections includes spending related to new service and upgrades to existing service for 
specific commercial customers. For the year ended December 31, 2024, capital expenditures for the delivery of customer 
connections were $184.6 million. 

The replacement of overhead infrastructure includes replacing poles, overhead transformers, conductors, overhead 
switches, and other aging overhead infrastructure and equipment. The replacement of underground infrastructure 
includes replacing direct buried cables, transformers, switches and other aging underground infrastructure. Both 
initiatives will allow THESL to continue to provide ongoing safe and reliable service to its customers. For the year ended 
December 31, 2024, capital expenditures for overhead and underground infrastructure were $146.5 million and $131.1 
million, respectively. 

Customer-initiated plant relocations and expansions include relocating infrastructure to accommodate construction by third 
parties. For the year ended December 31, 2024, capital expenditures for customer-initiated plant relocations and 
expansions were $84.4 million. 

The station programs focus on station renewal and station expansion. Station renewal targets the aging station 
infrastructure to reduce the risk of power outages and maximize useful life. Station expansion addresses medium to long 
term system capacity needs on the distribution system. For the year ended December 31, 2024, capital expenditures for 
stations programs were $55.9 million. 

Expenditures on Most Significant Regulated Capital Initiatives 
Year ended December 31, 2024 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

184.6

146.5
131.1

84.4

64.1 55.9

Customer 
Connections

Overhead 
Infrastructure

Underground 
Infrastructure

Customer-
initiated

Reactive Station 
Programs

0.0
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40.0

60.0

80.0
100.0

120.0

140.0

160.0

180.0

Financing Activities 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities for the three months and year ended December 31, 2024 was $(39.3) 
million and $129.8 million, respectively, compared to $(57.0) million and $33.6 million for the comparable periods in 2023. 

The decrease in net cash used in financing activities for the three months ended December 31, 2024 was primarily due to 
a decrease in net repayment of commercial paper and the issuance of common shares of the Corporation for proceeds of 
$50 million, partially offset by lower issuance of debentures. 

The increase in net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2024 was primarily due to a 
higher net issuance of debentures and the issuance of common shares of the Corporation for proceeds of $50 million in 
Q4 2024. 

19 



 
  

   
      

   
  

   
    

      
    

   

    

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    
   

   
  

   
  

    
  

    
   

       
  

 

\.I 
-(, TORONTO 

HYDRO. 
Corporation 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

On September 26, 2024, the Corporation issued $250.0 million of 3.99% senior unsecured debentures due on September 
26, 2034 at a price of $999.02 per $1,000 principal amount (Series 22). The Series 22 debentures bear interest payable 
semi-annually in arrears. The net proceeds from the issuance of the Series 22 debentures have been used to repay 
certain indebtedness under the Corporation’s commercial paper program, the proceeds of which were used for general 
corporate purposes. Debenture issuance costs of $1.6 million relating to the Series 22 debentures were recorded against 
the carrying amount of the debentures and are amortized to finance costs using the effective interest method. 

As at December 31, 2024, the Corporation had debentures outstanding in the principal amount of $3.2 billion. These 
debentures will mature between 2026 and 2063. As at December 31, 2024, the Corporation was in compliance with all 
covenants included in its trust indenture and supplemental trust indentures. 

The following table sets out the current credit ratings. 

DBRS 

Credit Rating Trend 

S&P Global Ratings 

Credit Rating Outlook 

Issuer rating 

Senior unsecured debentures 

Commercial paper 

A 

A 

R-1 (low) 

Stable 

Stable 

Stable 

A+ 

A+ 

— 

Stable 

— 

— 

On April 25, 2024, DBRS confirmed the Corporation’s issuer rating and senior unsecured debentures rating at “A” and the 
Corporation’s commercial paper rating at R-1 (low), each with stable trends. 

On July 16, 2024, S&P Global Ratings announced its decision to maintain the Corporation’s issuer rating and senior 
unsecured debentures rating at “A” and revised the Corporation’s issuer rating outlook from “stable” to “positive”. 

On October 30, 2024, S&P Global Ratings raised the Corporation’s issuer rating and senior unsecured debentures rating 
from “A” to “A+” and revised the Corporation's issuer rating outlook from "positive" to "stable". 

The Corporation believes that it has sufficient available sources of liquidity and capital to satisfy working capital 
requirements for the next 12 months. 

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Board of Directors of the Corporation declared and paid dividends to the 
City totalling $83.9 million (2023 - $98.3 million). 

On February 26, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Corporation declared a dividend in the amount of $15.0 million, 
payable to the City by March 31, 2025. 
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Summary of Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments 

The following table presents a summary of the Corporation’s debentures, major contractual obligations and other 
commitments. 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 
Total 

$ 
2025 (1) 

$ 
2026 / 2027 

$ 
2028 / 2029 

$ 
After 2029 

$ 
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Commercial paper (2) 480.0 480.0 — — — 
Debentures - principal repayment 3,195.0 — 200.0 400.0 2,595.0 
Debentures - interest payments 2,080.3 118.7 232.4 217.2 1,512.0 
Other commitments (3) 6.7 1.0 2.1 0.9 2.7 
Total contractual obligations and other 
commitments 5,762.0 599.7 434.5 618.1 4,109.7 

(1) Due over the period from January 1, 2025 to December 31, 2025.
(2) The notes under the Commercial Paper Program were issued at a discount and are repaid at their principal amount. 
(3) Primarily relates to commitments for asset management and IT service contracts. 

CORPORATE DEVELOPMENTS 

Changes to the Corporation’s Board of Directors and Senior Management Team 

On June 25, 2024, the terms of Howard Wetston, Heather Zordel, Michael Nobrega and Mary Ellen Richardson as 
directors of the Corporation ended. 

On June 26, 2024, City Council extended the appointment of David McFadden as member and chair of the Corporation’s 
Board of Directors and also on the same date, appointed the following candidates to the Corporation’s Board of Directors: 
Michael Eubanks, James Hinds, Ersilia Serafini, Sheila Block, Joyce McLean and Ken Neumann. 

On August 14, 2024, the Board of Directors of the Corporation approved the appointment of Jana Mosley as President 
and Chief Executive Officer, effective as of August 15, 2024. 

On November 27, 2024, Federico Zeni was named Interim Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Zeni replaced Céline Arsenault, 
former CFO, who left the Corporation in November 2024. 

On December 17, 2024, City Council appointed Brian Topp and Councillor Rachel Chernos Lin to the Corporation’s Board 
of Directors. Mr. Topp was also appointed as Chair of the Board upon nomination by the City effective as of December 19, 
2024, replacing David McFadden. Mr. Topp’s term on the Board ends on June 27, 2026, or the effective date of the 
appointment of a successor. 

Deputy Mayor Jennifer McKelvie and Councillor Dianne Saxe were re-appointed as directors of the Corporation by City 
Council on December 17, 2024, with each of their terms and that of Councillor Chernos Lin lasting until November 14, 
2026, or the effective date of the appointment of a successor. 

New Equity Investment from the City 

On June 28, 2024, the City and the Corporation agreed on the City making new equity investments in the Corporation 
totalling $300.0 million, including a one-time upfront special equity investment of $50.0 million and multi-tranche annual 
equity contributions of $25.0 million over 10 years beginning in 2025. The one-time upfront special equity investment of 
$50.0 million was received on December 16, 2024. 
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On January 2, 2025, the Corporation issued 14 common shares to the City for total proceeds of $25.0 million in relation to 
an annual equity contribution from the City. 

In addition to the equity investments, City Council approved amendments to the Corporation’s Shareholder Direction, 
which set out targets for reduced dividends from the Corporation to the City for the period between 2025 and 2034. 

Subject to restriction, duties and obligations under law, targeted dividends payable by the Corporation to the City for each 
fiscal year stated below will be as follows (in millions of Canadian dollars): 

Fiscal Year 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2025 
$ 

2026 
$ 

2027 
$ 

2028 
$ 

2029 
$ 

2030 
$ 

2031 
$ 

2032 
$ 

2033 
$ 

2034 
$ 

Targeted dividends 60.0 40.0 20.0 — 75.0 — — — 75.0 75.0 

Toronto Hydro Climate Action Plan 

In April 2021, City Council requested that Toronto Hydro prepare an action plan regarding what more Toronto Hydro could 
do to support the City’s TransformTO vision and climate action targets. Toronto Hydro submitted its Climate Action Plan in 
September 2021 and its first Climate Action Plan Status Report in June 2022. In July 2022, City Council adopted the 
recommendations of these reports, including a request that Toronto Hydro establish a new climate advisory services 
business. At this meeting, City Council also directed that Toronto Hydro and the City enter into a memorandum of 
understanding with respect to coordinating City and Climate Advisory Services’ climate mitigation efforts. The 
memorandum of understanding was signed in April 2023 and presented to City Council in May 2023. 

Climate Advisory Services is designed to facilitate reductions in GHG emissions via electrification by reducing 
stakeholder-identified barriers that prevent or inhibit customers from participating in the energy transition. The Climate 
Action Plan sets out examples of these services to customers, including to: identify their situation-specific opportunities; 
help in choosing particular climate actions and the timing of implementation; provide recommendations on potential clean 
tech products and services to vendors; assist in applying for government or institutional funding such as grants and/or 
loans; remove barriers faced by low income customers; as well as assist with monitoring implementation and evaluating 
the results. In sum, Toronto Hydro employees use their knowledge and experience to ease and support the energy 
transition for customers. 

Electricity Distribution Rates 

On December 19, 2019, the OEB issued its 2020-2024 CIR Decision, and on February 20, 2020, the OEB issued its CIR 
Final Rate Order, both in relation to the rate application filed on August 15, 2018 (together, the 2020-2024 CIR Decision 
and Rate Order). The 2020-2024 CIR Decision and Rate Order approved funding for capital and operating expenditures 
of approximately $3.8 billion for the 2020-2024 period. The 2020-2024 CIR Decision and Rate Order approved 
subsequent annual rate adjustments based on a custom index for the period commencing on January 1, 2021 and ending 
on December 31, 2024. 

On August 25, 2023, THESL filed the 2024 rate application seeking the OEB’s approval to finalize distribution rates and 
other charges for the period commencing on January 1, 2024 and ending on December 31, 2024. On December 14, 
2023, the OEB issued a decision and rate order approving THESL’s 2024 rates and providing for other deferral and 
variance account dispositions. 

On November 17, 2023, THESL filed a CIR application seeking the OEB’s approval of electricity distribution rates and 
charges effective January 1, 2025, and subsequent annual rate adjustments based on a custom index specific to THESL 
for the period commencing on January 1, 2026 and ending on December 31, 2029 (2025-2029 CIR Application). 
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On November 12, 2024, the OEB issued its 2025-2029 CIR Decision, and on December 12, 2024, issued its CIR Final 
Rate Order (together, the 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order), both in relation to the 2025-2029 CIR Application. 
The 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order approved the negotiated settlement proposal as filed, final electricity 
distribution rates for the first year of the five-year rate period effective January 1, 2025, a custom incentive rate-setting 
index for the period commencing on January 1, 2026 and ending on December 31, 2029 and the final clearance of various 
deferral and variance account balances for the 2020-2024 period through rate riders. The 2025-2029 CIR Decision and 
Rate Order approved funding for capital and operating expenditures of approximately $5.1 billion for the 2025-2029 
period. The financial considerations of the OEB’s 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order are reflected in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements including disclosure of approved disposition for a number of requested rate riders. 
The approved rates for 2025 were implemented on January 1, 2025. 

CDM Activities 

The IESO is responsible for delivery of CDM programs; however, THESL was responsible for its obligations under 
participant agreements with customers for many of the programs under its previous joint CDM plan with Oakville Hydro 
Electricity Distribution Inc. that were in effect before April 1, 2019. On June 10, 2021, the Government of Ontario issued 
ministerial directives to the IESO to extend the deadline by which participants were to complete the projects from June 30, 
2021 to December 31, 2021, and on December 9, 2021, the deadline was further extended to August 31, 2022. The 
ministerial directives also allowed for the completion deadline to be further extended for participants who completed 
projects prior to December 31, 2022 to be eligible for funding upon submission of their claims, if certain conditions were 
met. 

On July 12, 2024, THESL received a notice from the IESO with regard to bringing the wind-down of the CDM programs to 
a close, and on December 18, 2024, returned the pre-funding amounts to the IESO. 

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

In the ordinary course of business, the Corporation and its subsidiaries are subject to various legal proceedings, actions 
and claims from customers, suppliers, regulators and other parties. The outcome of outstanding, pending or future 
proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty and could materially adversely affect the Corporation. As at the date 
hereof, the Corporation believes that none of these legal proceedings, actions and claims from customers, suppliers, 
regulators and other parties in which it is currently involved or has been involved since the beginning of the most recently 
completed financial year, would be expected to have a material adverse effect on the Corporation. On an ongoing basis, 
the Corporation and its subsidiaries assess the likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes as well as potential 
ranges of probable costs and losses. A determination of the provision required, if any, for these contingencies is made 
after an analysis of each individual issue. The provision may change in the future due to new developments in each 
matter or changes in approach, such as a change in settlement strategy. If damages were awarded under these actions, 
the Corporation and its subsidiaries would make a claim under any liability or other insurance policies, to the extent 
applicable, subject to such claim not being disputed by the insurers. Further details on legal proceedings that relate to the 
Corporation are set out below. 

In December 2023, the Corporation’s insurers entered into two agreements to settle prior legal actions directly with the 
claimants on the Corporation’s behalf for a total of $90.0 million under the terms of the relevant insurance policies. In 
March 2024, the settlement of $90.0 million was paid by the Corporation’s insurers directly to the claimants, which 
resulted in the derecognition of the settlement liability and corresponding settlement asset. 

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 

During the second quarter of 2024, an unknown third-party trespasser illegally broke into a transformer owned by THESL, 
causing oil to be released into a nearby catch basin and, potentially, a waterway. THESL is working cooperatively with the 
applicable regulators to review and assess the matter, and to address any potential impacts arising from this event. As 
with any release to the natural environment, potential regulatory and civil liabilities could result, and at this time, it is not 
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possible to accurately or reasonably assess or estimate the potential extent of any applicable costs, liabilities or other 
implications, of any, on THESL or on the Corporation. 

SHARE CAPITAL 

Share capital consists of the following: 

As at December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars)

 2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 
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Issued and outstanding (1) 

1,200 common shares, of which all were fully paid. 817.8 817.8 
28 common shares, of which all were fully paid. 50.0 — 
Total Issued and outstanding 867.8 817.8 

(1) The authorized share capital of the Corporation consists of an unlimited number of common shares with no par value. All shares 
issued were fully paid. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

As the City is the sole shareholder of the Corporation, the Corporation and the City, including agencies and corporations 
of the City, are considered related parties. 

Transactions with Related Parties 

Year ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars)

 2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Revenues 285.6 285.1 
8.7 

98.3 
Operating expenses and capital expenditures 

Dividends declared and paid 
9.7 

83.9 

Revenues represent amounts charged to the City primarily for electricity, street lighting and ancillary services. Operating 
expenses and capital expenditures represent amounts charged by the City for purchased road cut repairs, property taxes 
and other services. Dividends are paid to the City. 

Amounts Due to/from Related Parties 

As at December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Customer deposits 

41.7 
8.9 

16.5 

32.6 
3.8 

16.0 

Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue represent receivables from the City primarily for electricity, street lighting and 
ancillary services including amounts not yet billed. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities represent amounts payable to 
the City related to road cut repairs and other services. Customer deposits represent amounts received from the City for 
future expansion projects. 
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CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

For purposes of certain Canadian securities regulations, the Corporation is a “Venture Issuer”. As such, it is exempt from 
certain requirements of National Instrument 52-109 – Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings. 
The CEO and CFO have reviewed the Consolidated Financial Statements and the MD&A for the three months and year 
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. Based on their knowledge and exercise of reasonable diligence, they have 
concluded that these documents fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, financial performance and 
cash flows of the Corporation as at the date of and for the period presented. 

RISK MANAGEMENT AND RISK FACTORS 

Toronto Hydro faces various risks that could impact the achievement of its strategic objectives. It adopts an enterprise-
wide approach to risk management, based on an overall enterprise risk philosophy, and consolidates the various views of 
risk across the enterprise via a risk governance structure. The Board reviews Toronto Hydro’s risk philosophy and is 
responsible for approving any new enterprise risk areas. Key risks and associated mitigation strategies are reviewed by 
the Executive and the Board each quarter. 

The Corporation’s ERM framework utilizes industry best practices and international guidelines, and enables the attainment 
of its strategic goals and objectives through a systematic, disciplined approach towards identifying, evaluating, mitigating, 
monitoring and reporting of risks. 

Toronto Hydro’s key risk areas are identified as the oversight governance, financial, information technology, safety, 
marketplace, customer operations, operations, compliance, human capital and asset management risks. 

Oversight Risk 

Risk that provincial government or regulator activity (laws, frameworks or policies) impedes Toronto Hydro’s 
effective performance, and its ability to meet its objectives and serve its customers. The primary factors driving 
Toronto Hydro’s oversight risk relate to regulatory applications and proceedings, emerging government policy, 
OEB policy, IESO policy and regulatory framework. 

Toronto Hydro is subject to the risk that its business activities may be impeded through the actions of governmental or 
regulatory authorities or by changes in regulation. There is a risk that future changes to Ontario’s electricity regulatory 
model, manner of regulation, application of regulatory principles, and/or broader climate change and energy policy 
framework does not align with Toronto Hydro’s business direction and could materially adversely affect Toronto Hydro’s 
strategic goals and financial results. 

Ontario’s electricity industry regulatory and other energy policy developments may affect the electricity distribution rates 
charged by THESL, the costs THESL is permitted to recover and the activities THESL and others, including those parties 
offering alternative or additional services to the electricity distribution grid, may undertake and how such activities are 
supported. This may in turn have a material adverse effect on the financial performance of Toronto Hydro and/or THESL’s 
ability to deliver effective and efficient operations and reliable service to its customers, as well as create barriers to THESL 
achieving its strategic objectives. Among other things, there can be no assurance that: 

• the OEB will approve THESL’s electricity distribution rates at levels that will permit THESL to maintain safe and 
reliable service to its customers and earn a commercially reasonable rate of return on the investment in the 
business; 

• the OEB will approve and permit recovery through rates of past and future expenditures incurred by THESL in 
providing distribution services to customers, including costs arising from an increased inflationary environment 
and pass-through costs, including those relating to the electricity commodity, fully as expected and in a timely 
manner or at all; 
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• governmental authorities will pursue net zero GHG policies that optimally utilize electrification or adequately 
support local distribution companies in facilitating electrification; 

• the OEB will approve and permit recovery through rates of past and future expenditures incurred by THESL in 
preparing for or expanding electricity distribution service to meet increased electricity demand or other 
requirements resulting from net zero GHG emission policies and growth in the City; 

• the OEB will adopt other rate-setting principles, formulae, inputs and cost recovery methodologies in a manner 
consistent with well-established regulatory principles that result in rates that properly support THESL’s activities; 

• the regulatory instruments that are made available to THESL will be sufficient to address THESL’s operations, 
needs and circumstances in respect of future applications for electricity distribution rates; and 

• the OEB, IESO or other governmental authority will not permit, enable or facilitate other parties in providing 
distribution services in THESL’s licensed area, or permit loads within THESL’s service area to become served by 
a means other than through THESL’s electricity distribution system. 

Any future regulatory decision to disallow or limit the recovery of costs could lead to potential asset impairment and 
charges to results from operations, which could have a material adverse effect on Toronto Hydro. 

Additionally, the policy priorities of provincial and federal governments and regulatory bodies beyond those specifically 
applicable to the climate change and energy space, including policies of more general application, and the implementation 
of policies and reporting requirements by such bodies, may impact Toronto Hydro’s ability to deliver effective and efficient 
operations, meet business objectives, report on its activities and capitalize upon new opportunities. Developments and 
changes in any of the laws, rules, regulations, policies, permits, or directives applicable to the businesses carried on by 
Toronto Hydro, and the manner of implementation and application of the same, could materially adversely affect Toronto 
Hydro. This may include developments with respect to labour and employment laws, changes to accounting standards 
and financial reporting requirements, environmental obligations, public safety rules and trade and product supply 
restrictions and tariffs, among others. 

Governance Risk 

Risk that municipal activity (laws, policies, or intervention) impedes Toronto Hydro’s effective performance, and 
ability to meet its objectives and serve its customers. The primary factors driving Toronto Hydro’s governance 
risk relate to municipal policy, the City’s role as shareholder, City accountability and operations oversight and 
the City’s community representative function. 

Toronto Hydro is a government-controlled enterprise whose sole shareholder is the City. The operations of Toronto Hydro 
are influenced by the broad by-law enactment and enforcement powers of the City. The City is also responsible for 
developing policies and municipal initiatives of general application and there is no guarantee that such policies, including 
climate change and energy policies, will align with Toronto Hydro’s strategic objectives or long-term financial health. The 
City may also implement additional requirements relating to reduction in GHG emissions and adaptation to climate change 
as part of initiatives such as the City’s TransformTO. In this respect, City Council passed resolutions to support the 
implementation of Toronto Hydro’s climate action plan to assist the City in meeting its 2040 net zero GHG emission 
objective and the City and the Corporation have entered into a Memorandum of Understanding concerning these matters. 
The City, as sole shareholder, may require Toronto Hydro to make additional investments in infrastructure and/or 
undertake activities which necessitate additional time, money and effort to be expended related to compliance with the 
City’s TransformTO that are inconsistent with Toronto Hydro’s proposed climate action plan. Additionally, due to its 
authority to put in place oversight bodies which may have or be given jurisdiction over Toronto Hydro as a government-
controlled enterprise, the City may also empower certain of its agencies to investigate or audit Toronto Hydro, which could 
lead to significant reputational, operational or financial harm. As further discussed in section "New Equity Investment from 
the City”, in 2024, the City of Toronto agreed to make new equity investments in the Corporation and approved 
amendments to the Shareholder Direction, which set out targets for reduced dividends from the Corporation to the City for 
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the period between 2025 and 2034. These equity investments and amendments to the Shareholder Direction support 
Toronto Hydro’s long-term financial stability and optimize the returns on equity to the City, strengthen the Corporation's 
ability to invest in the grid in line with its regulated capital structure, and help deliver on Toronto Hydro’s climate action 
plan. 

The City also plays a role as a municipal asset manager and construction entity and could substantially impact Toronto 
Hydro’s operations and impose material costs through its infrastructure work plans and policies (e.g., asset relocation 
costs, work restrictions, climate change adaptation). The City may also impact Toronto Hydro when elected officials take 
actions as community representatives whereby such actions are contrary to the strategic objectives or necessary 
operational functions of Toronto Hydro. 

As the Corporation’s sole shareholder, the City has set out the governing objectives and principles, including financial 
objectives, for the Corporation through the Shareholder Direction. Under the Shareholder Direction, the City has the 
power to direct Toronto Hydro to conduct its affairs and govern its operations in accordance with such rules, policies, 
directives or objectives as are directed by City Council from time to time, subject to applicable law. Certain conflicts may 
arise where the City’s goals and objectives in implementing such rules, policies, directives or objectives differ from or 
amend the Shareholder Direction principles, create new governing objectives and principles, or restrict the ability of the 
Board to oversee the operations of the Corporation and management’s ability to take strategic or functional action, and 
therefore could materially adversely affect Toronto Hydro’s business, operations, financial condition or prospects. The City 
may not always provide or support equity investment or net income reinvestment in the Corporation, including in 
accordance with the equity investment and dividend arrangement agreed with the City, to enable Toronto Hydro to 
maintain the financial objectives under the Shareholder Direction as it undertakes its strategic plan and implements OEB-
approved rate decisions and orders. 

Toronto Hydro engages on a systematic basis with the City Mayor, City Councillors, the City Manager’s office, and other 
departments and agencies to ensure a sharing of perspectives on the vital interests of Toronto Hydro and its customers. 

Financial Risk 

Risk that Toronto Hydro is unable to maintain its financial health and performance at acceptable levels. The 
primary factors driving Toronto Hydro’s Financial risk relate to market economic risks, capital structure, counter-
party default and financial management. 

Market Economic Risk 

Toronto Hydro is directly and indirectly subject to various macroeconomic and local market forces, which could have 
material adverse impacts. As a consequence of uncertainties in economic and market conditions, Toronto Hydro remains 
exposed to potential inflationary pressures, an elevated interest rate cost environment, indeterminate levels of customer 
consumption, credit risk with respect to customer non-payment of electricity bills, and related challenging operating and 
infrastructure development costs. The current, and potential future, uncertain economic climate is affected by factors 
including but not limited to macroeconomic conditions like a global recession and trade disputes which may lead to 
material adverse changes in cash flows, working capital levels and/or debt balances, and which may also have a negative 
impact on Toronto Hydro’s operating results and financial position. 

Capital Structure 

Toronto Hydro strives to target an optimal capital structure and cash to debt ratio range to access capital markets at the 
lowest rates. This is necessary for Toronto Hydro to finance its capital plans, including those related to meeting increased 
electricity demand resulting from net zero GHG emission policies (such as the City’s TransformTO). Toronto Hydro relies 
on debt financing through the Corporation’s MTN Program, CP Program and existing credit facilities to finance Toronto 
Hydro’s daily operations, repay existing indebtedness, and fund capital expenditures. The Corporation’s ability to arrange 
sufficient and cost-effective debt financing could be materially adversely affected by a number of domestic and local 
factors, including financial market conditions, inflationary pressure, Bank of Canada policy decisions, regulatory processes 
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that affect the timeliness for the approval and clearance of variance accounts, and macroeconomic concerns around the 
health of the economy and the customer's ability to pay. In addition, any of the above factors are also affected by financial 
and geopolitical events in the global economy. Toronto Hydro’s business, operations, financial condition or prospects, or 
compliance with its contractual debt covenants, in each case could be materially adversely affected by the ratings 
assigned to the Corporation or the debentures issued under the Corporation’s MTN Program by credit rating agencies, the 
rating assigned to short-term borrowings under the CP Program by a credit rating agency, and the Corporation’s access to 
and availability of the debt capital and commercial paper markets. In the event the Corporation is unable to maintain a 
sufficient credit rating for its CP Program, the Corporation’s ability to access short-term capital and pay its obligations as 
they become due could be materially adversely affected. In addition, if the Corporation cannot maintain attractive credit 
ratings for its MTN Program, debt capital under such program may become too costly or availability may be restricted, 
which could materially adversely affect the Corporation’s financial health and performance. There can be no assurance 
that debt or equity financing will be available or sufficient to meet Toronto Hydro’s requirements, objectives, or strategic 
opportunities. If and when financing is available, there can be no assurance that it will be on acceptable terms to Toronto 
Hydro. As the City is the sole shareholder of the Corporation, it is dependent on the City for new equity, including the 
equity investment and dividend reduction arrangement agreed in 2024. Therefore, the Corporation’s debt to equity capital 
structure may not be maintained at an optimal level in alignment with the OEB’s deemed capital structure for rate making 
purposes (60% debt : 40% equity) as further indebtedness is incurred to finance Toronto Hydro’s capital program and 
climate action plan. 

Credit and Liquidity Risk 

Toronto Hydro is exposed to credit risk with respect to customer non-payment of electricity bills. Actions by the provincial 
government or regulatory authorities may impede Toronto Hydro’s ability to mitigate the risk of customer non-payment 
using means normally permitted by law at certain times of the year, including security deposits (i.e., letters of credit, surety 
bonds, cash deposits or lock-box arrangements, under terms prescribed by the OEB), late payment penalties, pre-
payment, pre-authorized payment, load limiters or disconnection. Toronto Hydro may have no option in certain cases but 
to assume the amount of any default, whether in whole or in part, and Toronto Hydro’s security interest or other measures, 
if any, may not provide sufficient protection. Increases in outstanding receivables due to reduced or delayed customer 
payments as a result of economic conditions could also contribute to liquidity risk for Toronto Hydro as it continues to be 
charged for electricity commodity, transmission and other charges, which are intended to be flow-through items to 
customers. The global economic situation continues to be dynamic and uncertain and the ultimate duration and 
magnitude of the impact on Toronto Hydro’s business cannot be determined with certainty at this time. 

Demand Risk 

Toronto Hydro’s financial health and performance may also be adversely affected by events or measures, as well as 
changes in economic, policy, customer preference or technological conditions, that reduce the demand for electricity. 
Such events or measures may include, but are not limited to, closures of businesses and other institutions such as 
schools and government operations as a result of extreme storms and other weather conditions, natural disasters, 
terrorism, and pandemics. A reduction in demand for grid-supplied electricity distribution may also arise from conservation 
measures. Additionally, the adoption by customers of newer technologies in the electricity industry, including those related 
to self-generation, could reduce customer demand for grid-supplied electricity distribution. Toronto Hydro is focused on 
investing in its infrastructure to expand its grid to support customer electrification and modernize and sustain its 
infrastructure to drive resiliency, reliability, customer effectiveness and efficiency. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Toronto Hydro is exposed to short-term interest rate risk on the short-term borrowings under its CP Program and Working 
Capital Facility, as well as customer deposits. Most of Toronto Hydro’s remaining obligations for the recently completed 
financial year were either non-interest bearing or bear fixed interest rates, and its financial assets for the recently 
completed financial year were predominately short-term in nature and mostly non-interest bearing. Toronto Hydro seeks 
to further manage interest rate risk by monitoring its mix of fixed and floating rate instruments, and taking action as 
necessary to maintain an appropriate balance as established under its treasury policies. Toronto Hydro estimates that a 
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25 basis point increase (decrease) in short-term interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would result in an 
increase (decrease) of approximately $1.5 million to annual finance costs. 

Toronto Hydro is also exposed to fluctuations in interest rates for the valuation of its post-employment benefit obligations. 
Toronto Hydro estimates that a 100 basis point increase in the discount rate used to value these obligations would 
decrease the accrued benefit obligation of Toronto Hydro, as at December 31, 2024, by $29.1 million, and a 100 basis 
point decrease in the discount rate would increase the accrued benefit obligation, as at December 31, 2024, by $35.9 
million. 

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk 

As at December 31, 2024, Toronto Hydro had limited exposure to the changing values of foreign currencies. While 
Toronto Hydro purchases goods and services which are payable in United States dollars, and purchases United States 
currency to meet the related commitments when required, the value of such purchases is not significant to Toronto Hydro, 
and as such, the impact of foreign exchange fluctuations would not be expected to have a material effect on the 
consolidated financial statements. 

Information Technology Risk 

Risk that the Corporation is unable to adequately safeguard digital information assets, connections to digital 
infrastructure, physical assets and people from threats or vulnerabilities. The primary factors driving Toronto 
Hydro’s IT risk relate to cybersecurity, IT infrastructure, and IT application. 

Cybersecurity Risk 

Toronto Hydro’s electricity distribution infrastructure and technology systems are potentially vulnerable to damage or 
interruption from cyberattacks, breaches or other compromises, which could result in business interruption, service 
disruptions, theft of intellectual property and confidential information (about customers, suppliers, counterparties and 
employees), additional regulatory scrutiny, litigation and reputational damage. The cybersecurity threat landscape is 
continually evolving and actors are using increasingly sophisticated methods and strategies to penetrate information 
technology systems, including through the use of various forms of malware, phishing, denial of service. credential stuffing, 
zero-day exploits, social engineering and brute force attacks. In particular, the utilities sector, as operators of critical 
infrastructure and providers of essential services with large customer bases, is a target for cybersecurity activity. 

Toronto Hydro has implemented security controls such as annual cybersecurity assessments, vulnerability and penetration 
testing, patch management programs, network segmentation, and threat hunting tools (i.e., endpoint detection and 
response), that substantially align with industry best practices and standards, including the National Institute of Standards 
and Technology Cybersecurity Framework and the OEB’s Ontario Cyber Security Framework, and maintains cyber 
insurance. Even with these measures in place, since the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access, disable or 
degrade service, or sabotage systems change frequently and may only be detected once a cyber incident has initiated, 
Toronto Hydro may be unable to anticipate these techniques or to implement adequate preventative measures on a timely 
basis. Cyberattacks, breaches or other compromises of electricity distribution infrastructure and technology systems 
could result in service disruptions and system failures, including as a result of a failure to provide electricity to customers, 
property damage, data corruption, and/or loss of confidential employee, supplier, counterparty or customer information. A 
significant breach could have a material adverse effect on the financial performance of Toronto Hydro or its reputation and 
standing with customers, regulators and in the financial markets. It could also expose Toronto Hydro to third-party claims. 

Toronto Hydro must also comply with legislative and license requirements relating to the collection, use and disclosure of 
personal information (including the personal information of customers), as well as information provided by suppliers, 
employees, counterparties, and others. Such information could be exposed in the event of a cybersecurity incident or 
other unauthorized access, which could have a material adverse effect on Toronto Hydro and could also result in third-
party claims against Toronto Hydro. 
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As Toronto Hydro focuses on modernizing its distribution system and increasing its automation and interactivity, the 
incorporation of a greater level of technology and information systems into its infrastructure, may make the distribution 
system inherently more prone to cyberattacks. As such, there can be no assurance that mitigative measures taken will be 
effective in protecting Toronto Hydro’s electricity distribution infrastructure or assets, or the personal information of its 
customers or employees, from a cyberattack or the effects therefrom. 

IT Infrastructure Risk 

Toronto Hydro relies on complex IT systems to support critical business functions, including operational control, customer 
billing, outage management, regulatory reporting, and cybersecurity. Any disruption, failure, or security breach affecting 
these systems – which may result in insufficient availability, reliability, performance, scalability, responsiveness or 
supportability – could adversely impact the corporation’s ability to deliver reliable electricity service, manage customer and 
other third-party interactions, and meet regulatory compliance and financial reporting obligations. 

Legacy systems may become difficult to maintain or incompatible with emerging technologies, leading to increased costs 
and operational risks. The inability to adequately support or upgrade these systems may impede the corporation’s ability 
to adapt to changing business needs. Without continued investment and maintenance efforts, Toronto Hydro’s IT 
Infrastructure’s availability, reliability and security parameters may deteriorate resulting in more frequent IT system 
outages and business disruptions, especially during peak demand or critical events which may include cybersecurity 
threats, extreme weather events, and infrastructure outages. Aging IT infrastructure, software bugs, or hardware 
malfunctions could result in prolonged outages or operational complexity and disruptions. This may lead to customer 
dissatisfaction, financial losses, or regulatory penalties. 

Toronto Hydro relies on external vendors for IT solutions, including cloud services, software updates, and cybersecurity 
tools. While Toronto Hydro attempts to conduct appropriate due diligence on these external vendors, there is no guarantee 
that there will not be a breach of security impacting such vendors. Failures, supply chain disruptions, or breaches 
involving external vendors could have cascading effects on the corporation’s operations. 
Toronto Hydro relies on various IT infrastructure components to ensure efficient and reliable power delivery, including 
telecom, radio, networks, storage, server, backup and database/middleware ecosystems. Together these enable the 
operations and intelligence of the distribution grid as well as support all key business processes. Failures in those 
components could have cascading effects on the company’s operations. Rapid changes in technology may lead to 
outdated infrastructure that could become unreliable and more prone to failures, breaches and other emerging risks. 

IT Applications Risk 

Toronto Hydro depends on a variety of IT applications to manage critical business functions, including customer billing, 
outage management, regulatory reporting, financial systems, and operational controls. There is a risk that information 
technology or operational technology systems and applications may become inadequate in meeting current and changing 
business needs due to hardware degradation and aging, software obsolescence and compatibility issues. increasing 
system complexity and operational strain. Any deficiencies, failures, or vulnerabilities in these applications could 
significantly disrupt operations, impact service reliability, and harm customer trust. 

Rapid changes in technology (e.g., impact of artificial intelligence on IT systems and applications), customer expectations, 
and regulatory requirements necessitate continuous updates to IT applications. Inability to adapt quickly to these changes 
could impair the corporation’s ability to adapt effectively or deliver reliable services. Aging applications may no longer 
meet the corporation’s evolving business requirements or regulatory obligations. Delays in upgrading or replacing these 
systems could impede operations or expose Toronto Hydro to security vulnerabilities. 

Many applications are developed, maintained, or hosted by third-party vendors. The Toronto Hydro’s reliance on external 
providers exposes it to risks such as vendor performance issues, service outages, or breaches involving vendor-managed 
systems. 
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Many business processes rely on seamless integration between IT applications. Integration issues can lead to data 
inconsistencies, process inefficiencies, and increased operational risks. 

Safety Risk 

Risk to Toronto Hydro employees or the general public of critical/fatal injuries and illnesses relating to or 
impacting upon Toronto Hydro activities. The primary factors driving Toronto Hydro’s safety risk relate to 
occupational health and safety, and public safety. 

Toronto Hydro’s work environment can be inherently dangerous and there is a risk to the health and safety of both the 
public and employees, as well as possible resultant operational and/or financial impacts. Utility infrastructure is vulnerable 
to natural disasters such as earthquakes, floods, hurricanes, or wildfires. These events can damage or destroy 
infrastructure, disrupting essential services and compromising public safety. As utility infrastructure ages, it may 
deteriorate, leading to potential hazards. Old pipes, cables, or equipment may be more prone to leaks, breaks, or 
malfunctions, posing risks to public safety 

Potential and existing health and safety risks related to worksites and tasks being performed by Toronto Hydro are 
regularly assessed and where identified, hazards are removed and/or mitigated to continually improve health and safety 
for Toronto Hydro employees, customers and members of the public. The most serious workplace incidents arising from 
workplace hazards can cause and/or contribute to critical injuries, fatal injuries, and occupational illnesses, as defined by 
provincial health and safety legislation. 

The nature of the work performed in electrical utilities operations requires that employees receive extensive training on 
health and safety, including on personal protective equipment and the implementation of workplace safety procedures and 
protocols. This is due to the hazards inherent to electrical utilities work, which, depending on the required task, can 
include electrical contact, arc flash, working in confined spaces, fires or explosions, slips, trips and falls, motor vehicle 
incidents, occupational illnesses, and biological hazards such as infectious diseases. 

Toronto Hydro is subject to compliance with provincial health and safety legislation. Findings of a failure to comply with 
these requirements could result in penalties and reputational risk. Toronto Hydro’s management approach to occupational 
health and safety is to meet, and often where possible, exceed legal compliance requirements and seek to eliminate or 
safeguard known occupational hazards and risks. 

Operations Risk 

Risk that Toronto Hydro is not able to effectively meet the needs of its customers and a growing city, and 
maintain the security and reliability of the distribution grid at acceptable levels. The primary factors driving 
Toronto Hydro’s operations risk relate to grid operations, contractors oversight and delivery, business 
interruption, supply chain, and physical security. 

Grid Operations 

Toronto Hydro’s ability to distribute electricity reliably depends on the effective operation, management, and modernization 
of its grid infrastructure. As the energy landscape evolves due to technological advancements and the transition to a low-
carbon economy, the corporation’s grid operations face increasing complexity and challenges. These challenges include 
the integration of renewable energy sources, the rise of DERs, and the shift toward electrification of sectors such as 
transportation and heating. There is a risk that Toronto Hydro is unable to develop future technical and/or operational 
capabilities to effectively monitor and control real-time operations to address energy transition. 

The increasing deployment of renewable energy sources (such as solar and wind), electric vehicles, and energy storage 
systems is expected to require the grid to adapt to a more decentralized and dynamic model. Without proper integration 
and management, DERs could strain grid operations, lead to system imbalances, or cause outages. The ongoing energy 
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transition, driven by the adoption of renewable energy and the electrification of various sectors (e.g., electric vehicles, 
electrified heating, data centres), and the increase in housing availability requirements, increases electricity demand and 
alters load patterns. The grid must be capable of handling these new demands, especially during peak periods, and 
managing the variability introduced by renewable generation. Failure to adapt grid operations to these changes could 
lead to overloading, reduced reliability, and increased operational costs. As the grid becomes more decentralized and 
integrated with various energy sources and technologies, the operational complexity increases. The challenge of real-
time management, including forecasting energy demand, balancing supply and demand, and ensuring grid reliability, 
requires advanced tools, systems, and skilled personnel. Any failure in coordination could lead to inefficiencies, outages, 
or safety hazards. 

Contractors Oversight and Delivery 

Toronto Hydro relies on third-party contractors for various critical services, including construction, maintenance, and repair 
of infrastructure, as well as specialized services in areas such as IT, engineering, and consulting. Contract management 
includes areas such as financial stability, resource capacity and capabilities, quality and safety, and reputational standing. 
Effective contractor oversight is essential to ensure that services are delivered on time, within budget, and in compliance 
with the corporation’s quality, safety, and regulatory standards. There is a risk that Toronto Hydro is unable to develop 
stable relationships and maintain effective contract management of its key contractors leading to performance and 
execution challenges. 

Contractors may fail to meet agreed-upon timelines, quality standards, or performance metrics. Delays in the completion 
of projects or failure to meet service level agreements can result in increased costs, extended project timelines, and 
disruptions to grid operations, potentially leading to service outages or delayed infrastructure upgrades. Contractors are 
responsible for ensuring that their work meets Toronto Hydro’s rigorous quality and safety standards. Failure to adhere to 
these standards can lead to defective work, unsafe conditions, and increased risks of accidents or system failures. Non-
compliance with safety regulations may also result in legal and financial liabilities. Budget overruns or cost 
mismanagement by contractors can result in higher-than-expected project costs, reducing profitability and potentially 
straining financial resources. Contractors must also comply with a wide range of regulatory requirements, including those 
related to environmental protection, safety, and labor laws. Failure by contractors to meet these regulatory obligations 
could result in penalties, legal actions, and reputational damage to Toronto Hydro. Contractors often engage 
subcontractors to fulfill specific tasks or provide specialized services. If subcontractors fail to meet the required standards 
or experience delays, this can impact the overall performance of a project. 

Failure by Toronto Hydro to implement mitigation strategies to ensure that contractors have adequate financial stability 
can result in a disruption to Toronto Hydro’s operations and cause delays in project completion. 

Toronto Hydro’s ability to develop its work processes to meet changing circumstances, deliver upon grid modernization 
and address electrification, also depends on its ability to access adequate resources from its external contractor 
community with advanced developed skills. Toronto Hydro’s ability to successfully access and benefit from third party 
service providers will depend, in part, on minimizing any disruption that may be caused by competitive market and other 
factors, including infectious diseases. If such disruption occurs, there may be a material adverse effect on Toronto 
Hydro’s business and operations 

Toronto Hydro may rely on a limited number of specialized contractors for critical services. Over-dependence on a few 
key contractors increases the risk of service disruptions if those contractors face operational or financial difficulties. This 
can also lead to less competitive pricing and limited flexibility in procurement. 

Business Interruption Risk 

Toronto Hydro may be unable to maintain continuing and sustainable business operations, or recover from business 
interruption, after the impact of a major or critical incident. Toronto Hydro’s operations are exposed to the effects of 
natural and other unexpected occurrences, including, but not limited to, extreme storm and other weather conditions, 
natural disasters, labour disruptions, loss of the supply of electricity from the provincial and local generation and 
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transmission system, as well as terrorism and pandemics. Toronto Hydro is also exposed to risks that informational and 
operational technology systems may not operate as anticipated, including as a result of a cybersecurity incident, and 
could result in sustained interruptions to key systems that would have a substantial impact on continuing normal business 
operations. Costs and operational changes, associated with such business interruption events may have a material 
adverse effect on Toronto Hydro’s business and operations in both the short and longer term. These impacts may also 
include limiting Toronto Hydro’s ability to build, repair and maintain capital infrastructure, with resultant impacts on 
reliability and revenue. 

Although Toronto Hydro’s facilities and operations are constructed, operated and maintained with such occurrences in 
mind, there can be no assurance that they will successfully withstand such occurrences in all circumstances. Any major 
damage to Toronto Hydro’s facilities or interruption of Toronto Hydro’s operations arising from these occurrences could 
result in lost revenues and repair costs that can be substantial. Although Toronto Hydro has maintained insurance which it 
considers to be consistent with industry practice, there is no guarantee that insurance will continue to be available at 
reasonable rates for certain types of coverage and policy limits. If THESL sustained a large uninsured loss caused by 
natural or other unexpected occurrences, THESL may apply to the OEB for the recovery of the loss related to the 
electricity distribution system. There can be no assurance that the OEB would approve, in whole or in part, such an 
application. 

Supply Chain Risk 

Toronto Hydro’s ability to operate effectively is in part dependent upon timely access to equipment, materials and service 
suppliers. There is a risk that Toronto Hydro is unable to acquire critical equipment and material from its suppliers, or that 
it is unable to acquire the same at a reasonable or budgeted cost, impeding the Corporation’s ability to operate at 
acceptable levels and meet the needs of its customers. Loss or delay of key equipment, materials and service suppliers 
and the reputational and financial risk exposures of key vendors could affect Toronto Hydro’s operations and execution of 
capital projects. 

Disruptions to Toronto Hydro's supply chain, including those driven by the geopolitical environment, changes in domestic 
and international trade policies (including application of tariffs and similar measures), terrorist attacks, inflationary 
pressures, shifts in demand, and labour shortages, may result in increased lead times, increased costs, and more 
variability in on-time and in-full deliveries for key assets like transformers, cables, and switchgear. These capacity 
concerns may affect grid reliability, emergency management and recovery, or lead to delays or cancellation of 
electrification projects. Delays or shortages in obtaining necessary hardware components can impact the maintenance 
and expansion of IT infrastructure leading to delays in key modernization initiatives and projects. 

Physical Security Risk 

Toronto Hydro also faces external threats to its physical and perimeter security. This includes the security of Toronto 
Hydro’s facilities including office buildings and station buildings. In order to safeguard its assets and staff, Toronto Hydro 
has developed policies and guidelines around physical and perimeter security and facilities related emergency 
preparedness to prevent and detect unauthorized access to work centres and critical infrastructure. Any breaches in 
physical and perimeter security could result in disruptions to Toronto Hydro’s operations and may have a material adverse 
effect on the Corporation. 

Human Capital Risk 

Risk that Toronto Hydro is unable to maintain necessary resource talent and skilled resources. The primary 
factors driving Toronto Hydro’s human capital risk relate to attraction and retention, and labour relations. 

Toronto Hydro is subject to the risk that human resources with the necessary knowledge, skills and education may not be 
available to support Toronto Hydro’s future talent requirements. This risk could be heightened in economic conditions 
where inflation rates and cost of living are elevated as this may result in pressure on wages and salaries, and where 
employee expectations with respect to work-life balance and flexibility are evolving. 
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Furthermore, Toronto Hydro expects that labour force availability for certain positions will be restricted, resulting in 
increased competition and turnover for certain skilled employees, which may negatively impact knowledge management 
and business continuity at Toronto Hydro. 
Development and retention of talent to meet the evolving needs of the business, particularly those related to the adoption 
of new technologies central to a modernized distribution grid requires Toronto Hydro to focus on a series of proactive 
activities and programs to mitigate these risks, such as strategic workforce planning, promotion of apprenticeship 
programs, diversity and inclusiveness awareness and training, investments in colleges and universities, succession 
planning, knowledge transfer and a robust training program. 

Constraints on executive compensation may hinder Toronto Hydro’s ability to attract and retain executive level talent. 
Failure to attract and retain executive level talent that have the skills and experience necessary to help Toronto Hydro 
achieve its strategic goals could have a material adverse effect on Toronto Hydro’s business and operations. 

There is a risk that Toronto Hydro is unable to achieve an effective balance between its internal workforce and external 
contractors to ensure operational flexibility, cost-effectiveness and service continuity. Toronto Hydro’s ability to operate 
successfully in the electricity industry in Ontario will continue to depend in part on its ability to make changes to existing 
work processes and conditions in order to adapt to changing circumstances, including limitations and restrictions placed 
on human resources as a result of external environment factors such as infectious diseases or erosion of social cohesion. 
Toronto Hydro’s ability to make such changes or adapt, in turn, will continue to depend in part on its relationship with its 
labour unions, including negotiating collective bargaining agreements with the Society of United Professionals and PWU. 
There can be no assurance that Toronto Hydro will be able to secure the support of its labour unions. There can also be 
no assurance that Toronto Hydro will be able to secure collective agreements without work stoppages by its unionized 
work forces. 

Marketplace Risk 

Risk that Toronto Hydro is not able to proactively identify and effectively meet evolving needs of its customers 
and a growing city or not able to respond to emerging competitive pressures. The primary factors driving 
Toronto Hydro’s Marketplace risk relate to customer strategic relationships and competition. 

The OEB has the authority to grant municipal distribution licences, has issued to Toronto Hydro a licence stipulating a 
service area that reflects the territory within the City, and has not granted any other distribution licence that permits 
distribution within Toronto Hydro’s service area. In addition, there is a legal framework in place that establishes Toronto 
Hydro, as the holder of the municipal distribution licence in the City, to be the sole provider of distribution activities across 
municipal rights of way. There is no assurance that these frameworks will continue to exist sufficiently or at all in order to 
provide Toronto Hydro the opportunity to be the comprehensive distribution provider in the city of Toronto. 

Customer Strategic Relationships Risk 

The ability of Toronto Hydro to meet evolving customer needs and expectations is influenced by its capacity to effectively 
manage strategic relationships. There is risk that Toronto Hydro is unable to effectively manage strategic relationships 
with customers or potential customers, proactively identify and meet unique expectations, develop new offerings for 
demanded services, and influence perceptions around evolving needs on electrification and decarbonization, all of which 
may impact Toronto Hydro’s brand and lessen customer reliance on the distribution grid or the opportunity for growth. In 
addition, events and/or external factors that draw negative media attention to Toronto Hydro could cause reputational 
damage and impact Toronto Hydro’s business and relationship with its stakeholders. These factors could lead customers, 
governments and regulators to look more favourably to alternative services and service providers as compared to utility-
based electricity distribution. 

Competitive Risk 

Other regulated and unregulated entities have and continue to compete with Toronto Hydro and new parties continue to 
emerge to provide customers with other sources of energy, including electricity and energy services. Toronto Hydro is 
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exposed to the risk of customer attrition due to services and infrastructure provided by transmission companies, energy 
utilities, technology solutions providers, sub-metering firms and other unregulated entities generating energy behind the 
meter. Additionally, customers have made choices to provide their own electricity or other sources of energy for their use 
and/or sale back into the distribution grid. These competitive dynamics could reduce Toronto Hydro’s customer or load 
base and limit Toronto Hydro’s ability to pursue growth opportunities. 

The pervasiveness of this competition and the presence of alternatives to Toronto Hydro’s distribution services, and the 
resultant effects on Toronto Hydro’s distribution business, have varied over time and continue to vary based on many 
factors. These factors may include the relative price and relevant costs of energy source (e.g., natural gas, solar 
photovoltaic, grid-supplied electricity, geothermal, behind-the-meter generation, district energy), climate change policy, 
technology development (e.g., energy storage, energy efficiency, demand response), ability of customers to access 
transmission-direct connections, economic trends, real estate prices, government-based incentives, regulatory 
frameworks and compliance frameworks especially for non-utility entities, load development, and the state of the 
marketplace and economy in general. 

There can be no assurance that the future nature, prevalence, or effects of these forms of competition, arising from the 
transition to net zero GHG emissions or otherwise, will be comparable to current or historic experience. Failure to 
effectively review and understand our external and internal environment and take appropriate action could lead to missed 
business opportunities and loss of competitive advantage. In particular, the clean energy transition to net zero GHG 
emitting energy sources may create both risks and opportunities and there can be no guarantee that Toronto Hydro has 
the correct strategic direction to capitalize on the associated policy changes or technological advancements or that it will 
be able to effectively mitigate losses from these developments. 

Customer Operations Risk 

Risk that Toronto Hydro is unable to effectively meet the needs of its customers and a growing city through 
effective customer interactions, delivery on connection requests and distribution services, and high-quality 
customer experience. The primary factors driving Toronto Hydro’s customer operations risk relate to customer 
connections, customer management, and internally and externally initiated customer and community relations. 

Customer Connections Risk 

Toronto Hydro may be unable to provide an effective customer experience (on-time, on-budget, responsive 
communication) when managing traditional connections, DERs connections and legacy-equipment-related connections. 

Significant urban growth and intensification in Toronto are driving increased demand for new and upgraded electricity 
connections. The complexity of managing these requirements may lead to delays, cost overruns, and challenges in 
maintaining effective communication with customers, potentially impacting Toronto Hydro’s ability to deliver a high-quality 
customer experience. 

Aging infrastructure within Toronto Hydro’s service area poses risks of the provision of reliable and timely connections. 
Failures stemming from aging infrastructure increase the risk of connection delays and prolonged restoration times, 
potentially escalating costs and eroding customer trust. Additionally, Toronto Hydro faces risks related to its ability to 
innovate and meet evolving customer needs. The rapid adoption of DERs, including solar panels and battery storage, 
electrification and electric vehicles presents additional challenges. Effectively integrating these connections requires not 
only substantial grid adaptation but also the ability to accommodate the bidirectional flow of electricity, as the grid was not 
originally designed for such supply and demand dynamics. Failure to respond to technological trends at a pace that 
meets or exceeds customer expectations or to effectively educate customers on how to utilize new technologies could 
lead to operational inefficiencies and customer dissatisfaction. 
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Customer Management Risk 

Toronto Hydro may be unable to accurately measure customer consumption, respond to and address customer service 
issues or correctly bill customers and collect revenues on time. Service interruptions, such as those caused by extreme 
weather, aging infrastructure, or external labour disruptions, may impact Toronto Hydro’s ability to effectively manage 
customers. As a result of net zero GHG emissions policies, Toronto Hydro may need to accelerate capital investments to 
accommodate increasing electrification. These system enhancements may lead to material customer bill increases and a 
more challenging customer relationship environment for Toronto Hydro, as well as customer backlash against the energy 
transition and related expenditures by Toronto Hydro. Any of these consequences could have a material adverse effect on 
Toronto Hydro. 

Internally and Externally Initiated Customer and Community Relations Risk 

Risk that Toronto Hydro may be unable to effectively manage internally initiated interactions such as planned construction 
work and grid maintenance work (inspections and repairs), as conducted by Toronto Hydro employees, its contractors, 
and service providers, which impact community daily life. Additionally, Toronto Hydro may be unable to effectively manage 
externally initiated interactions such as asset relocations, third-party attachments, and customer vault access, as 
conducted by Toronto Hydro employees, its contractors, and service providers, related to access to customer property or 
work execution in the right of way, also impacting community daily life. 

Toronto Hydro relies on a skilled and dedicated workforce, including dispatchers operating a 24/7 control center to enable 
power restoration during unplanned events, skilled trades performing critical inspections and asset replacements, 
engineers optimizing grid performance, and customer service professionals delivering a positive customer experience. 
However, internally initiated activities such as planned outages, equipment inspections, and construction work, may result 
in temporary service disruptions to customers and communities. Ineffective management of these activities, including 
delays, miscommunication, or inadequate coordination, could lead to increased customer complaints, erosion of public 
trust, and reputational harm. 

Externally initiated activities often require collaboration with municipalities, developers, and third-party service providers. 
Such activities include relocating infrastructure for municipal projects, granting access to customer vaults, and facilitating 
third-party attachments to utility poles, often involving work on private property or public right-of-way. Challenges 
surrounding negotiations for easements with customers and the City or obtaining third-party approvals, can generate 
public opposition and negatively impact Toronto Hydro’s reputation. These challenges, coupled with broader impacts on 
communities and delays in project schedules, may lead to heightened media scrutiny and reputational risks. Additional 
risks include material shortages, extended lead times, and non-compliance with safe access to vaults, all of which could 
exacerbate delays and stakeholder concerns. Ineffective management of these interactions could lead to delays, 
miscommunication, or disputes, disrupting daily community life and potentially exposing Toronto Hydro to reputational 
damage or financial penalties. 

Compliance Risk 

Risk that Toronto Hydro does not meet its material compliance obligations under legal and regulatory 
instruments. 

Toronto Hydro is exposed to the risk of non-compliance with applicable and future laws, rules, and regulations specific to 
its operations, including obligations regarding the standards for the provision of its services and equipment to customers 
and obligations to its employees, contractors and agents. Factors contributing to non-compliance may include the rapid 
pace of regulatory change, evolving and complex requirements, resource constraints, regulatory ambiguities, operational 
limitations, human error, insufficient training, technological challenges, inadequate monitoring, external disruptions, 
integration challenges from mergers or acquisitions, data management issues, conflicting regulatory requirements, and 
financial constraints. Failure to comply with these obligations could result in civil or regulatory proceedings, which could 
result in losses, additional costs and liabilities for damages, fines and/or penalties that may materially adversely affect 
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Toronto Hydro. Additionally, the OEB may not allow recovery in rates for the costs associated with achieving or 
maintaining compliance with these laws, rules, and regulations. 

Asset Management Risk 

Risk that Toronto Hydro is unable to maintain reasonable levels of reliability for its customers due to failure of 
existing distribution infrastructure and assets and the inability to replace or expand infrastructure in an optimal 
timeframe. The primary factors driving Toronto Hydro’s asset management risk relate to system capacity, 
system health, and system resilience. 

Toronto Hydro relies on upstream transmission networks and local generation sources to supply power to their distribution 
systems. Any issues with transmission supply points—such as capacity constraints, outages, or operational failures—can 
disrupt the supply of electricity to Toronto Hydro’s service area, even if its infrastructure remains intact. 

System Capacity Risk 

Toronto Hydro’s ability to reliably distribute electricity depends on the capacity of its physical and operational systems to 
meet current and future demands. There is a risk that Toronto Hydro is unable to optimize near-term system capacity 
through load transfers, bus balancing, cable upgrades and the use of non-wires solutions (i.e., demand response and 
energy efficiency). Unexpected increases in electricity demand or peak load requirements, driven by factors such as 
population growth, urban densification, the adoption of electric vehicles or artificial intelligence, may exceed the capacity 
of the corporation’s existing infrastructure. The transition to a low-carbon economy, including electrification of 
transportation and heating, will likely place additional demands on the distribution system, requiring significant 
enhancements to capacity. Inaccurate demand forecasts or delays in implementing capacity upgrades could result in 
service disruptions or inability to meet future needs. 

Toronto Hydro may not be able to alleviate constraints on restricted feeders to accommodate the proliferation of DERs 
connections or expand stations capacity to alleviate future load constraints. Constraints on substation capacity, feeder 
lines, or transformers may limit the corporation’s ability to deliver electricity reliably during periods of high demand or 
system stress. The proliferation of renewable energy sources, such as rooftop solar panels and energy storage systems, 
can create bidirectional power flows and add complexity to managing system capacity effectively. 

System Health Risk 

Toronto Hydro’s ability to deliver safe, reliable, and efficient electricity service depends on the overall health of its 
distribution system, including the condition of its physical assets, infrastructure, and operational processes. There is a risk 
that Toronto Hydro is unable to manage asset failure risk profiles. Risks to system health can lead to service disruptions, 
increased maintenance costs, regulatory non-compliance, and safety hazards. 

A portion of Toronto Hydro’s assets, including transformers, substations, and distribution lines, may be nearing or 
exceeding their designed lifespan. Aging equipment is more prone to failure, resulting in increased outages and higher 
maintenance costs. Budget constraints or resource limitations may lead to deferred maintenance, increasing the 
likelihood of equipment failure and reducing overall system reliability. Inadequate condition assessment or failure to 
detect early signs of equipment degradation can result in unexpected failures and reduced system performance. 
Inadequate deployment of monitoring technologies or lack of comprehensive data analytics capabilities may hinder the 
corporation’s ability to assess system health and prioritize maintenance effectively. Maintaining system health is critical to 
meeting regulatory requirements and ensuring the safety of employees, contractors, and the public. Failure to maintain 
assets to required standards could result in penalties or reputational damage. 
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System Resilience Risk 

Toronto Hydro’s ability to maintain continuous and reliable electricity distribution depends on the resilience of its systems 
to withstand, adapt to, and recover from disruptive events. Toronto Hydro may be unable to maintain acceptable levels of 
resilience for the services delivered by its assets despite extreme weather events, incidents or disasters. 

Climate change poses a significant risk to the resilience of the Toronto Hydro’s electricity distribution system. The 
increasing frequency and intensity of extreme weather events, such as heatwaves, ice storms, high winds, heavy rainfall, 
and flooding, can strain infrastructure and disrupt operations. Prolonged heatwaves can cause overheating of 
transformers, substations, and other critical assets, potentially leading to equipment failures and power outages. 
Increased rainfall intensity can result in flooding of underground facilities, substations, and cable vaults, damaging 
equipment and delaying recovery efforts. Severe windstorms and ice storms can topple poles, damage overhead lines, 
and disrupt the physical infrastructure, leading to widespread outages and lengthy restoration times. This can lead to 
operational impacts due to increased downtime and longer recovery times from extreme weather events or system 
failures, leading to service disruptions and reduced reliability. There can also be financial impacts from increased capital 
and operational expenditures for upgrading infrastructure, implementing smart grid systems, and addressing cybersecurity 
threats as well as reputational impacts from loss of customer trust and public confidence if the distributor is unable to 
maintain reliable service during extreme weather events or recover quickly from disruptions. 

USE OF JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

The preparation of the Corporation’s Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions which affect the application of accounting policies, reported assets, liabilities and regulatory 
balances, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Consolidated Financial Statements, and the 
reported revenues and expenses for the year. The estimates are based on historical experience, current conditions and 
various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis 
for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities as well as for identifying and assessing the 
accounting treatment with respect to commitments and contingencies. Actual results could differ from those estimates, 
including changes as a result of future decisions made by the OEB, the IESO, the Ontario Ministry of Energy, or the 
Ontario Ministry of Finance. 

Information about judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts 
recognized in the financial statements is included in the following note to the Consolidated Financial Statements: 

• Note 25(c) – Recognition of regulatory balances; 

• Note 25(j) – Principal versus agent determination for recording revenue on a gross or net basis; and 

• Note 25(o) – Interpretation of changes in tax legislation, regulations and interpretations. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized 
prospectively. Assumptions and estimates with a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next 
financial year are used in the following notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements: 

• Note 24 – Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies; 

• Note 25(c) – Recognition and measurement of regulatory balances; 

• Note 25(e) – Recognition and measurement of expected credit loss allowance for accounts receivable and 
unbilled revenue; 

• Notes 25(f) and 25(g) – Determination of components and useful lives of depreciable assets; 

38 



 
  

    

       

     
 

 

 
   

   
 

 

 

      
      
      

     
      

   
   

    
    

 

 

      
  

 

 

      
       

   
          

  
   

   

  
 

 

\.I 
-(, TORONTO 

HYDRO. 
Corporation 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

• Note 25(j) – Revenue recognition – measurement of unbilled revenue; 

• Notes 25(m) and 13 – Measurement of post-employment benefits – key actuarial assumptions; and 

• Notes 25(o) and 20 – Recognition of deferred tax assets – availability of future taxable income against which 
deductible temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards can be used. 

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Corporation’s Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards 
with respect to the preparation of financial information. The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in 
Canadian dollars, which is the Corporation’s functional and presentation currency. The material accounting policies of the 
Corporation are summarized in note 25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of 
Financial Statements (IAS 1) 

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 relating to the classification of liabilities as current or non-current. 
Specifically, the amendments clarify one of the criteria in IAS 1 for classifying a liability as non-current - that is, the 
requirement for an entity to have the right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting 
period. This right may be subject to compliance with covenants. After reconsidering certain aspects of the 2020 
amendments, in October 2022, the IASB issued Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1), 
reconfirming that only covenants with which a company must comply on or before the reporting date affect the 
classification of a liability as current or non-current. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after January 1, 2024, with early adoption permitted. The amendments are to be applied retrospectively. 
Effective January 1, 2024, the Corporation adopted these amendments, with no impact on the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

FUTURE ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

The IASB has issued a number of standards and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective. The 
Corporation has determined that the following standard and amendments could have an impact on the Corporation’s 
consolidated financial statements when adopted. 

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (IFRS 18) 

In April 2024, the IASB issued IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (IFRS 18), which replaces 
IAS 1 and introduces limited amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows. IFRS 18 aims to improve communication of 
financial information in the financial statements, with a focus on information about financial performance in the statement 
of profit or loss. To meet this objective, IFRS 18 introduces additional defined subtotals in the statement of profit or loss, 
disclosures about management-defined performance measures, and enhanced requirements for grouping (aggregation 
and disaggregation) of information. The standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 
2027, with early adoption permitted. The standard is to be applied retrospectively. 

The Corporation is currently assessing the impact of the above standard on the Corporation’s consolidated financial 
statements. 
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Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments (IFRS 9) and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (IFRS 7)) 

In May 2024, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 relating to the classification and measurement of 
financial instruments. The amendments clarify that a financial liability is derecognized on the ‘settlement date’ and 
introduce an accounting policy choice to derecognize financial liabilities settled using an electronic payment system before 
the settlement date, if specified criteria are met. Other clarifications include the classification of financial assets with 
environmental, social, and governance linked features and other similar contingent features, financial assets with non-
recourse features, and contractually linked instruments. The amendments also introduce additional disclosures for 
financial instruments with contingent features and equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI. The 
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2026, with early adoption 
permitted. The amendments are to be applied retrospectively. 

The Corporation is currently assessing the impact of the above amendments on the Corporation’s consolidated financial 
statements. 

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION 

Certain information included in this MD&A constitutes “forward-looking information” within the meaning of applicable 
securities legislation. All information, other than statements of historical fact, which address activities, events or 
developments that we expect or anticipate may or will occur in the future, are forward-looking information. The words 
“anticipates”, “as a result”, “beginning”, “believes”, “budgets”, “can”, “committed”, “continues”, “continual”, “could”, 
“estimates”, “expects”, “focus”, “forecasts”, “further notice”, “future”, “impact”, “increasingly”, “if”, “intends”, “may”, “meet”, 
“might”, objective”, “ongoing”, “once”, “outlook” ,“over time”, “plans”, “prepare”, “propose”, “projects”, “schedule”, “seek”, 
“should”, “tend to”, “trend”, “will”, “would”, or the negative or other variations of these words or other comparable words or 
phrases, are intended to identify forward-looking information, although not all forward-looking information contains these 
identifying words. The purpose of the forward-looking information (including any financial outlook) contained herein is to 
provide the Corporation’s current expectations regarding future results of operations, performance, business prospects 
and opportunities and readers are cautioned that such information may not be appropriate for other purposes. All forward-
looking information is given pursuant to the "safe harbour" provisions of applicable Canadian securities legislation. 
Specific forward-looking information in the MD&A includes, but is not limited to, the statements regarding: the settlement 
variance and other regulatory balance variances as described in the section entitled “Results of Operations”; the effect of 
changes in weather conditions and energy consumption on future revenue as described in the section entitled “Summary 
of Quarterly Results of Operations”; the Corporation’s plans to lower overall financing costs and enhance borrowing 
flexibility as described in the section entitled “Liquidity and Capital Resources”; the planned capital expenditures, including 
the replacement of overhead and underground infrastructures, station programs, delivery of customer connections, 
customer initiated plant relocations, expansions and metering as described in the section entitled “Investing Activities”; the 
Corporation’s available sources of liquidity and capital resources and the sufficiency thereof to satisfy working capital 
requirements for the next 12 months as described in the section entitled “Financing Activities”; expectations with respect to 
increase in demand for electricity; the targeted dividends payable by the Corporation to the City for the years 2025 to 2034 
as described in the section entitled “New Equity Investment from the City”; the completion of the deferrals and rate setting 
as described in the section entitled “Electricity Distribution Rates”; receipt of the equity investments from the City of 
Toronto and payment of dividends to the City of Toronto as shareholder; THESL’s ability to address any potential impacts 
arising from the trespassing event and assess the potential regulatory and civil liabilities resulting from this incident as 
described in the section entitled “Environmental Matters”; any judgments, assumptions and estimates that management 
had to make in the preparation of the consolidated Financial Statements as described in the section entitled “Use of 
Judgments and Estimates”; the Corporation’s assessment of the impact on adoption of the amendments to IAS 1, IFRS 7, 
IFRS 9 and IFRS 18, if any, as described in the sections entitled “Changes in Accounting Standards” and “Future 
Accounting Pronouncements”; the impact on Toronto Hydro’s operating results and financial position in the future due to 
uncertain economic factors, an elevated interest rate cost environment, and indeterminate levels of customer 
consumption; the Corporation’s reliance on debt financing through its MTN Program, Commercial Paper Program, 
Revolving Credit Facility or existing credit facilities to finance Toronto Hydro’s daily operations, repayment of existing 
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indebtedness, and funding of capital expenditures; the continued ability of the Corporation to arrange sufficient and cost-
effective debt financing in order to meet its short-term and long-term obligations; increases in liquidity risk due to reduced 
or delayed customer payments as a result of economic conditions; the impact on Toronto Hydro’s financial health and 
performance due to changes in economic policy, customer preference or technological conditions that reduce the demand 
for electricity; the effect of changes in interest rates and discount rates on future revenue requirements and future post-
employment benefit obligations, respectively; risk that aging infrastructure may lead to potential hazards; and the 
expectation that none of the legal actions and claims as described in the section entitled “Legal Proceedings” would have 
a material adverse effect on the Corporation and the ability to claim under applicable liability insurance policies and/or pay 
any damages with respect to legal actions and claims as described in the section entitled “Legal Proceedings”. 

The forward-looking information reflects the Corporation’s current beliefs and is based on information currently available to 
the Corporation. The forward-looking information is based on estimates and assumptions made by the Corporation’s 
management in light of past experience and perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future 
developments, as well as other factors that management believes to be reasonable in the circumstances, including, but 
not limited to, the amount of indebtedness of the Corporation, changes in funding requirements, the future course of the 
economy and financial markets, no unforeseen delays and costs in the Corporation’s capital projects, no unforeseen 
changes to project plans, no significant changes to the seasonal weather patterns in accordance with historical seasonal 
trends because of climate change, no unforeseen changes in the legislative and operating framework for electricity 
distribution in Ontario, the receipt of applicable regulatory approvals and requested rate orders, no unexpected delays in 
obtaining required approvals, the ability of the Corporation to obtain and retain qualified staff, materials, equipment and 
services in a timely and cost efficient manner, continued contractor performance, compliance with covenants, the receipt 
of favourable judgments, no unforeseen changes in electricity distribution rate orders or rate setting methodologies, no 
unfavourable changes in environmental regulation, the ratings issued by credit rating agencies, the level of interest rates 
and the Corporation’s ability to borrow and assumptions regarding general business and economic conditions. 

Forward-looking information is subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ 
materially from historical results or results anticipated by the forward-looking information. The factors which could cause 
results or events to differ from current expectations include, but are not limited to, risks associated with the execution of 
THESL’s capital and maintenance programs necessary to maintain the performance of aging distribution assets and make 
required infrastructure improvements, including to deliver a modernized grid and meet electrification requirements to 
achieve government net zero GHG emissions targets; risks associated with capital projects; risks associated with 
electricity industry regulatory developments and other governmental policy changes including factors relating to THESL’s 
distribution activities and to climate change; risks associated with increased competition from regulated and unregulated 
entities; risk of external threats to THESL’s facilities and operations posed by unexpected weather conditions caused by 
climate change and other factors; risks of changing government policy and regulatory requirements, including in respect of 
climate change and energy transition; risks associated with changing weather patterns due to climate change and 
resultant impacts to electricity consumption based on historical seasonal trends, risks associated with terrorism and 
pandemics, and THESL’s limited insurance coverage for losses resulting from these events; risks of municipal government 
activity, including the risk that the City could introduce rules, policies or directives, including those relating to net zero GHG 
emissions targets, that can potentially limit Toronto Hydro’s ability to meet its business objectives as laid out in the 
Shareholder Direction principles; risks of being unable to retain necessary qualified external contracting forces relating to 
its capital, maintenance and reactive infrastructure program; risk that Toronto Hydro is not able to arrange sufficient and 
cost-effective debt financing to repay maturing debt and to fund capital expenditures and other obligations; risk that the 
Corporation is unable to maintain its financial health and performance at acceptable levels; risk that insufficient debt or 
equity financing will be available to meet the Corporation’s requirements, objectives, or strategic opportunities; risk of 
downgrades to the Corporation’s credit rating; risks related to the timing and extent of changes in prevailing interest rates 
and discount rates and their effect on future revenue requirements and future post-employment benefit obligations; risks 
arising from inflation, the course of the economy and other general macroeconomic factors; risk associated with the 
impairment to the Corporation’s image in the community, public confidence or brand; risk associated with the Corporation 
failing to meet its material compliance obligations under legal and regulatory instruments; and risks associated with 
market expectations with respect to increase in demand for electricity. 
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The Corporation cautions the reader that the above list of factors is not exhaustive, and there may be other factors that 
cause actual events or results to differ materially from those described in forward-looking information. 

All forward-looking information in this document is qualified in its entirety by the above cautionary statements. 
Furthermore, unless otherwise stated, all forward-looking information contained herein is made as of the date hereof and 
the Corporation undertakes no obligation to revise or update any forward-looking information as a result of new 
information, future events or otherwise, except as required by law. 

42 



 
  

 

  
  

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

   

 
 

 

  

 

 

 

  
  
 

 
  

 

   
  

  

  

 

\.I 
-(, TORONTO 

HYDRO. 
Corporation 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

SELECTED ANNUAL INFORMATION 

The following table sets forth selected annual financial information for the three years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 
and 2022. This information has been derived from the Corporation’s Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Selected Annual Consolidated Financial Information 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 
2024 

$ 
2023 

$ 
2022 

$ 

Year Ended December 31 
(1)Total revenues 

Net income after net movements in regulatory balances (1) 

As at December 31 

Total assets and regulatory balances (2) 

Total debentures (2), (3) 

Other non-current financial liabilities (4) 

Total equity (2) 

Dividends (5) 

3,980.0 
130.3 

8,134.8 
3,176.6 

63.3 
2,200.0 

83.9 

3,645.5 
139.9 

7,594.5 
2,927.2 

55.4 
2,103.6 

98.3 

3,601.7 
163.9 

6,947.0 
2,729.1 

21.6 
2,062.0 

84.6 
(1) See “Results of Operations” for further details on distribution revenue, other revenue, and net income after net movements in 

regulatory balances.
(2) See “Financial Position” for further details of significant changes in assets, debentures and shareholder’s equity. 
(3) Total debentures include current and long-term debentures. 
(4) Other non-current financial liabilities include primarily non-current obligations under capital lease and non-current customer deposits.  

Under IFRS Accounting Standards, deposits that are due or will be due on demand within one year from the end of the reporting 
period have been reclassified to other current financial liabilities. 

(5) See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” for further details on dividends. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Additional information about Toronto Hydro, including the Corporation’s Annual Information Form, is available on the 
SEDAR+ website (sedarplus.ca) and the Corporation’s website (torontohydro.com/corporate-reports). 

Toronto, Canada 

February 26, 2025 
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT 

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by management of Toronto Hydro 
Corporation (the Corporation), who is responsible for the integrity, consistency and reliability of the information 
presented. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards Accounting Standards and applicable securities legislation. 

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements necessarily involves the use of estimates and 
assumptions based on management’s judgments, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting 
period cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods. The estimates are based on historical experience, 
current conditions and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, with 
critical analysis of the material accounting policies followed by the Corporation as described in Note 25 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements includes information 
regarding the estimated impact of future events and transactions. Actual results in the future may differ materially 
from the present assessment of this information because future events and circumstances may not occur as 
expected. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared within reasonable limits of materiality in 
light of information available up to February 26, 2025. 

In meeting its responsibility for the reliability of financial information, management maintains and relies on a 
comprehensive system of internal controls and internal audit, which is designed to provide reasonable assurance 
that the financial information is relevant, reliable and accurate, and that the Corporation’s assets are safeguarded 
and transactions are properly authorized and executed. The system includes formal policies and procedures and 
appropriate delegation of authority and segregation of responsibilities within the organization. An internal audit 
function evaluates the effectiveness of these internal controls and reports its findings to management and the Audit 
Committee of the Corporation, as required. 

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee, is responsible for overseeing management in the 
performance of its financial reporting and internal controls. The Audit Committee is composed of independent 
directors and meets periodically with management, the internal auditors and the external auditors to discuss 
internal controls over the financial reporting process, auditing matters and financial reporting issues, to satisfy itself 
that each group has properly discharged its respective responsibility and to review the Consolidated Financial 
Statements before recommending approval by the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee also considers, for 
review by the Board of Directors and approval by the shareholder, the appointment of the external auditors. The 
external auditors have direct and full access to the Audit Committee, with and without the presence of 
management, to discuss their audit and their findings as to the integrity of the financial reporting and the 
effectiveness of the system of internal controls. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements were reviewed by the Audit Committee, and on its recommendation, were 
approved by the Board of Directors. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been examined by KPMG LLP, 
the independent external auditors appointed by the Corporation’s shareholder. The external auditors’ responsibility 
is to express their opinion on whether the Consolidated Financial Statements are fairly presented in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards Accounting Standards. The attached Independent Auditor's Report 
outlines the scope of their examination and their opinion. 

On behalf of Toronto Hydro Corporation’s management: 

“Jana Mosley” “Federico Zeni” 
Jana Mosley Federico Zeni 
President and Chief Executive Officer Interim Chief Financial Officer 
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KPMG LLP 
Bay Adelaide Centre 
Suite 4600 
333 Bay Street 
Toronto ON M5H 2S5 
Tel 416-777-8500 
Fax 416-777-8818 
www.kpmg.ca 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Shareholder of Toronto Hydro Corporation 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Toronto Hydro Corporation 
(the Entity), which comprise: 

the consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 
2023 
the consolidated statements of income for the years then ended 
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the years then ended 
the consolidated statements of changes in equity for the years then ended 
the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended 
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of 
material accounting policy information 

(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Entity as at December 31, 2024 
and December 31, 2023, and its consolidated financial performance and its 
consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with IFRS 
Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing 
standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
“Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of 
our auditor’s report. 

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises: 

the information included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis filed with the 
relevant Canadian Securities Commissions. 

© 2025 KPMG LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a 
private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved 

www.kpmg.ca


           
           

            
          

            
             

         
            
     

          
         

            
           

        

        

          
             
               

            
              

 

         
  

            
       

        
         

            

          
        

           
            

      

           
  

• the information, other than the financial statements and the auditor’s report 
thereon, included in a document likely to be entitled “Annual Report”. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit and remain alert for indications that the other information 
appears to be materially misstated. 

We obtained the information included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis filed 
with the relevant Canadian Securities Commissions as at the date of this auditor’s 
report. If, based on the work we have performed on this other information, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact in the auditor’s report. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

The information, other than the financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon, 
included in a document likely to be entitled “Annual Report” is expected to be made 
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report. If, based on the work we will 
perform on this other information, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact to those charged with 
governance. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial 
reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing 
standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. 

We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal 
control. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Entity's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 

Provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
regarding the financial information of the entities or business units within the 
group as a basis for forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We 
are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit work 
performed for the purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for 
our audit opinion. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this auditor’s report is David Denis 
Kerrigan Brownridge. 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

Toronto, Canada 
February 26, 2025 
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

As at December 31 

Note 

2024 2023 

$$ 

ASSETS 

Current 
Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue 

Income tax receivable 

Materials and supplies 

Other assets 

4, 15(b) 

5 

536.8 
— 

8.5 
106.6 

583.5 
2.3 
9.0 

21.6 
Total current assets 616.4 651.9 
Property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets 

Deferred tax assets 

Other assets 

6 

7 

20 

5 

6,757.8 
421.1 

6,201.0 
396.2 

— 
40.3 

0.9 
16.1 

Total assets 7,812.3 7,289.4 
Regulatory balances 8 322.5 305.1 
Total assets and regulatory balances 8,134.8 7,594.5 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Current 
Working capital facility 

Commercial paper 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

Income tax payable 

Customer deposits 

Deferred revenue 

Deferred conservation credit 

9 

9 

10 

11 

3(b) 

5.2 
480.0 
499.9 

7.3 
421.0 
559.1 

1.4 
60.0 
28.8 
10.9 

— 
57.7 
32.4 

— 
Total current liabilities 1,075.2 1,088.5 
Debentures 

Customer deposits 

Deferred revenue 

Post-employment benefits 

Deferred tax liabilities 

Other liabilities 

12, 15(a) 

11 

13 

20 

3,176.6 
59.7 

1,019.2 
247.7 
128.7 

3.6 

2,927.2 
50.7 

868.1 
252.2 
109.7 

4.7 
Total liabilities 5,710.7 5,301.1 

Equity 

Share capital 
Retained earnings 

16 867.8 
1,332.2 

817.8 
1,285.8 

Total equity 2,200.0 2,103.6 
Total liabilities and equity 7,910.7 7,404.7 
Regulatory balances 8 224.1 189.8 
Total liabilities, equity and regulatory balances 8,134.8 7,594.5 

Commitments, contingencies and subsequent events 23, 24, 26 

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 
"Brian Topp" 
Brian Topp, Director 

"James Hinds" 
James Hinds, Director 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 
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Year ended December 31 
Note 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Revenues 

Energy sales 

Distribution revenue 

Other 

17 

17 

17 

2,923.3 
937.8 
118.9 

3,980.0 

2,687.3 
839.5 
118.7 

3,645.5 

Expenses 

Energy purchases 

Operating expenses 

Depreciation and amortization 

18 

6, 7 

3,005.6 
378.5 
299.7 

3,683.8 

2,735.7 
352.2 
283.3 

3,371.2 

Finance costs 

Other gains 

19 (137.8) 
— 

(121.5) 
36.3 

Income before income taxes 

Income tax expense 20 

158.4 
(18.6) 

189.1 
(37.7) 

Net income 

Net movements in regulatory balances 

Net movements in regulatory balances arising from deferred taxes 

Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 

8 

8, 20 

139.8 
(33.6) 
24.1 

130.3 

151.4 
(42.3) 
30.8 

139.9 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

Year ended December 31 
Note 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 

Other comprehensive income 

Items that will not be reclassified to income or loss 

Remeasurements of post-employment benefits, net of tax 
(2024 - ($2.7), 2023 - $5.1) 13 

Net movements in regulatory balances related to OCI, net of tax 
(2024 - $2.7, 2023 - ($5.1)) 8, 13 

130.3 

7.4 

(7.4) 

139.9 

(14.0) 

14.0 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax — — 
Total comprehensive income 130.3 139.9 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

Year ended December 31 
Note 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Share capital, beginning of year 

Common shares issued 16 

817.8 
— 

817.8 
50.0 

Share capital, end of year 867.8 817.8 
Retained earnings, beginning of year 

Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 

Dividends 16, 22 

1,285.8 
130.3 
(83.9) 

1,244.2 
139.9 
(98.3) 

Retained earnings, end of year 1,332.2 1,285.8 
Total equity 2,200.0 2,103.6 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

Year ended December 31 2024 2023 
Note $ $ 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net income after net movements in regulatory balances 130.3 139.9 
Net movements in regulatory balances 8 33.6 42.3 
Net movements in regulatory balances arising from deferred taxes 8, 20 (24.1) (30.8) 
Adjustments 

Depreciation and amortization 6, 7 299.7 283.3 
Non-cash contributed assets (3.0) — 
Amortization of deferred revenue 11 (19.6) (17.1) 
Finance costs 19 137.8 121.5 
Income tax expense 20 18.6 37.7 
Post-employment benefits 5.6 3.1 
Other gains — (36.3) 
Other (6.6) 0.7 

Capital contributions received 11 152.4 120.6 
Net change in other non-current assets and liabilities (3.6) (2.1) 
Increase in customer deposits 6.7 40.7 
Changes in non-cash operating working capital balances 21(a) (7.7) (2.8) 
Income tax paid (3.7) (3.9) 
Net cash provided by operating activities 716.4 696.8 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 21(b) (752.1) (681.4) 
Purchase of intangible assets 21(b) (93.2) (56.2) 
Proceeds from variable consideration — 11.0 
Proceeds on disposals of property, plant and equipment 1.2 1.7 
Net cash used in investing activities (844.1) (724.9) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Increase in commercial paper, net of repayments 9, 21(c) 59.0 66.0 
Common shares issued 16 50.0 — 
Dividends paid 16, 21(c) (83.9) (98.3) 
Proceeds from issuance of debentures 12, 21(c) 249.8 449.9 
Debt issuance costs paid 12, 21(c) (1.6) (2.8) 
Repayment of debentures 12, 21(c) — (250.0) 
Interest paid 21(c) (143.5) (131.2) 
Net cash provided by financing activities 129.8 33.6 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents during the year 2.1 5.5 

Working capital facility, beginning of year (7.3) (12.8) 

Working capital facility, end of year (5.2) (7.3) 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS 

The Corporation was incorporated on June 23, 1999 under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario) in accordance with 
the Electricity Act. The Corporation is wholly owned by the City and is domiciled in Canada, with its registered office 
located at 14 Carlton Street, Toronto, Ontario, M5B 1K5. 

The Corporation and its subsidiaries distribute electricity to customers and provide street lighting and expressway lighting 
services in the city of Toronto. 

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The Corporation’s audited consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 
(Consolidated Financial Statements) have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the 
IASB. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Canadian dollars, the Corporation’s functional and presentation 
currency, and have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for post-employment benefits which are measured 
at the present value of the post-employment benefit obligation. 

The summary of material accounting policies has been disclosed in note 25. 

3. REGULATION 

The OEB has regulatory oversight of electricity matters in Ontario. The OEB’s authority and responsibilities include the 
power to approve and set rates for the transmission and distribution of electricity, the power to approve the amounts paid 
to non-contracted generators, the responsibility to provide rate protection for rural or remote electricity customers, and the 
responsibility for ensuring that electricity distribution companies fulfill their obligations to connect and service customers. 

THESL is required to charge its customers for the following amounts (all of which, other than distribution rates, represent a 
pass-through of amounts payable to third parties): 

• Commodity Charge – The commodity charge represents the market price of electricity consumed by customers 
and is passed through the IESO back to operators of generating stations. It includes the global adjustment, which 
represents the difference between the market price of electricity and the rates paid to regulated and contracted 
generators. 

• Retail Transmission Rate – The retail transmission rate represents the costs incurred in respect of the 
transmission of electricity from generating stations to local distribution networks. Retail transmission rates are a 
pass-through to operators of transmission facilities. 

• WMS Charges – The WMS charges represent various wholesale market support costs, such as the cost of the 
IESO to administer the wholesale electricity system, operate the electricity market and maintain reliable operation 
of the provincial grid. Wholesale charges are a pass-through to the IESO. 

• Distribution Rate – The distribution rate is designed to recover the costs incurred by THESL in delivering electricity 
to customers, including the OEB-allowed cost of capital. Distribution rates are regulated by the OEB and include 
fixed and variable (usage-based) components, based on a forecast of THESL’s customers and load. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

a) Electricity distribution rates 

The OEB’s regulatory framework for electricity distributors is designed to support the cost-effective planning and operation 
of the electricity distribution network and to provide an appropriate alignment between a sustainable, financially viable 
electricity sector and the expectations of customers for reliable service at a reasonable price. 

The OEB typically regulates the electricity rates for distributors using a combination of detailed cost of service reviews and 
custom index adjustments similar to the IRM. A cost of service review uses a future test-year to establish rates, and 
provides for revenues required to recover the forecasted costs of providing the regulated service, and a fair and 
reasonable return on rate base. Custom index adjustments are typically used for one or more years following a cost of 
service review and provide for adjustments to rates based on an inflationary factor net of a productivity factor and an 
efficiency factor as determined relative to other electricity distributors. 

On December 19, 2019, the OEB issued its 2020-2024 CIR Decision, and on February 20, 2020, the OEB issued its CIR 
Final Rate Order, both in relation to the rate application filed on August 15, 2018 (together, the 2020-2024 CIR Decision 
and Rate Order). The 2020-2024 CIR Decision and Rate Order approved subsequent annual rate adjustments based on 
a custom index for the period commencing on January 1, 2021 and ending on December 31, 2024. 

On August 23, 2022, THESL filed the 2023 rate application seeking the OEB’s approval to finalize distribution rates and 
other charges for the period commencing on January 1, 2023 and ending on December 31, 2023. On December 8, 2022, 
the OEB issued a decision and rate order approving THESL’s 2023 rates and providing for other deferral and variance 
account dispositions. 

On August 25, 2023, THESL filed the 2024 rate application seeking the OEB’s approval to finalize distribution rates and 
other charges for the period commencing on January 1, 2024 and ending on December 31, 2024. On December 14, 
2023, the OEB issued a decision and rate order approving THESL’s 2024 rates and providing for other deferral and 
variance account dispositions. 

On November 17, 2023, THESL filed a CIR application seeking the OEB’s approval of electricity distribution rates and 
charges effective January 1, 2025, and subsequent annual rate adjustments based on a custom index specific to THESL 
for the period commencing on January 1, 2026 and ending on December 31, 2029 (2025-2029 CIR Application). 

On November 12, 2024, the OEB issued its 2025-2029 CIR Decision, and on December 12, 2024, issued its CIR Final 
Rate Order (together, the 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order), both in relation to the 2025-2029 CIR Application. 
The 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order approved the negotiated settlement proposal as filed, final electricity 
distribution rates for the first year of the five-year rate period effective January 1, 2025, a custom incentive rate-setting 
index for the period commencing on January 1, 2026 and ending on December 31, 2029 and the final clearance of various 
deferral and variance account balances for the 2020-2024 period through rate riders. The financial considerations of the 
OEB’s 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order are reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statements including 
disclosure of approved disposition for a number of requested rate riders (note 8). 

b) CDM activities 

The IESO is responsible for delivery of CDM programs; however, THESL was responsible for its obligations under 
participant agreements with customers for many of the programs under its previous joint CDM plan with Oakville Hydro 
Electricity Distribution Inc. that were in effect before April 1, 2019. On June 10, 2021, the Government of Ontario issued 
ministerial directives to the IESO to extend the deadline by which participants were to complete the projects from June 30, 
2021 to December 31, 2021, and on December 9, 2021, the deadline was further extended to August 31, 2022. The 
ministerial directives also allowed for the completion deadline to be further extended for participants who completed 
projects prior to December 31, 2022 to be eligible for funding upon submission of their claims, if certain conditions were 
met. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

On July 12, 2024, THESL received a notice from the IESO with regard to bringing the wind-down of the CDM programs to 
a close, and on December 18, 2024, returned the pre-funding amounts to the IESO. 

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND UNBILLED REVENUE 

Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue consist of the following: 

As at December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Unbilled revenue 

Trade receivables 

Due from related parties (note 22) 
Other 

261.4 
213.7 
32.6 
29.1 

Total accounts receivable and unbilled revenue 536.8 

5. OTHER ASSETS 

Other assets consist of the following: 

As at December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 
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292.4 
222.9 
41.7 
26.5 

583.5 

Settlement asset — 90.0 (1) 

Prepaid expenses and other assets 36.1 31.5 
Other receivables — 23.8 (2) 

Deferred financing costs 1.6 1.6 
Total other assets 37.7 146.9 
Less: Current portion of other assets relating to: 

Settlement asset — 90.0 (1) 

Prepaid expenses and other assets 21.2 16.2 
Deferred financing costs 0.4 0.4 

Current portion of other assets 21.6 106.6 
Non-current portion of other assets 16.1 40.3 

(1) Relates to the settlement of legal actions by the Corporation’s insurers (note 24). 
(2) Relates to variable consideration receivable in relation to the disposition of a property in a prior year which has been reclassified to 

accounts receivable and unbilled revenue. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

PP&E consists of the following: 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

Distribution 
assets 

$ 

Land and 
buildings 

$ 

Equipment 
and other 

$ 

Construction 
in progress 

$ 

Total 

$ 

Cost 
Balance as at December 31, 2022 

Additions 

Transfers into service 

Disposals, retirements and other 

5,897.0 
— 

556.9 
(42.8) 

485.1 
— 

47.5 
0.5 

486.2 
— 

62.6 
(18.9) (1) 

553.4 
702.4 

(667.0) 
— 

7,421.7 
702.4 

— 
(61.2) 

Balance as at December 31, 2023 6,411.1 533.1 529.9 588.8 8,062.9 
Additions 

Transfers into service 

Disposals, retirements and other 

— 
616.1 
(51.8) 

— 
23.1 
(0.1) 

— 
41.3 
(4.4) 

809.5 
(680.5) 

— 

809.5 
— 

(56.3) 
Balance as at December 31, 2024 6,975.4 556.1 566.8 717.8 8,816.1 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance as at December 31, 2022 

Depreciation 

Disposals, retirements and other 

1,291.2 
153.8 
(11.9) 

114.1 
24.3 
0.6 

259.9 
34.0 
(4.1) 

— 
— 
— 

1,665.2 
212.1 
(15.4) 

Balance as at December 31, 2023 1,433.1 139.0 289.8 — 1,861.9 
Depreciation 

Disposals, retirements and other 
162.2 
(22.3) 

22.6 
— 

36.9 
(3.0) 

— 
— 

221.7 
(25.3) 

Balance as at December 31, 2024 1,573.0 161.6 323.7 — 2,058.3 

Carrying amount 
Balance as at December 31, 2023 4,978.0 394.1 240.1 588.8 6,201.0 
Balance as at December 31, 2024 5,402.4 394.5 243.1 717.8 6,757.8 

(1) Includes $14.2 million related to the derecognition of an asset pertaining to a finance lease. 

As at December 31, 2024, “Land and buildings” included right-of-use assets related to leases of land and office space with 
cost of $7.6 million (2023 - $7.6 million), accumulated depreciation of $1.2 million (2023 - $1.1 million) and carrying 
amount of $6.4 million (2023 - $6.5 million). 

For the year ended December 31, 2024, borrowing costs in the amount of $3.6 million (2023 - $5.9 million) were 
capitalized to PP&E with an average interest rate of 3.98% (2023 - 3.85%). 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Intangible assets consist of the following: 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

Computer 
software 

$ 

Contributions (1) 

$ 

Software in 
development 

$ 

Contributions 
for work in 
progress 

$ 

Total 

$ 

Cost 
Balance as at December 31, 2022 319.6 267.7 44.1 12.7 644.1 
Additions — — 50.0 2.6 52.6 
Transfers into service 32.3 0.3 (32.3) (0.3) — 
Balance as at December 31, 2023 351.9 268.0 61.8 15.0 696.7 
Additions — — 48.2 24.7 72.9 
Transfers into service 72.6 4.5 (72.6) (4.5) — 
Balance as at December 31, 2024 424.5 272.5 37.4 35.2 769.6 

Accumulated amortization 

Balance as at December 31, 2022 214.4 42.4 — — 256.8 
Amortization 32.6 11.1 — — 43.7 
Balance as at December 31, 2023 247.0 53.5 — — 300.5 
Amortization 36.9 11.1 — — 48.0 
Balance as at December 31, 2024 283.9 64.6 — — 348.5 

Carrying amount 
Balance as at December 31, 2023 104.9 214.5 61.8 15.0 396.2 
Balance as at December 31, 2024 140.6 207.9 37.4 35.2 421.1 

(1) Contributions represent payments made to HONI for dedicated infrastructure in order to receive connections to transmission facilities. 

For the year ended December 31, 2024, borrowing costs in the amount of $2.2 million (2023 - $1.5 million) were 
capitalized to intangible assets with an average interest rate of 3.98% (2023 - 3.85%). 

The remaining amortization period for computer software ranges from less than one year to ten years. The remaining 
amortization period for contributions ranges from four to 25 years. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

8. REGULATORY BALANCES 

Debit balances consist of the following: 

As at December 31 2023 Balances 
arising in 
the period 

Recovery/ 
reversal 

Other 
movements 

2024 Remaining 
recovery/ 
reversal 
period 

(months) 

Carrying 
charges 

applicable 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) $ $ $ $ $ 

Settlement variances 

Deferred taxes 

Externally driven capital 
Wireline pole attachment 
Cloud computing 

GOCA 

Other 

note 8(a) 
note 8(b) 
note 8(c) 
note 8(d) 
note 8(e) 
note 8(f) 

— 

(1) 

— 
(1) 

(1) 

(1) 

(1) 

(1) 

177.2 90.2 (106.6) — 160.8 
112.3 26.8 — — 139.1 

5.0 3.5 — — 8.5 
2.8 1.5 — — 4.3 
— 4.0 — — 4.0 
— 2.2 — — 2.2 

7.8 0.5 — (4.7) 3.6 
Total 305.1 128.7 (106.6) (4.7) 322.5 

As at December 31 2022 Balances 
arising in 
the period 

Recovery/ Other 
reversal movements

 2023 Remaining 
recovery/ 
reversal 
period 

(months) 

Carrying 
charges 

applicable 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) $ $ $ $ $ 

Settlement variances 168.4 58.5 (50.5) 0.8 177.2 note 8(a) (1) 

Deferred taxes 86.6 25.7 — — 112.3 note 8(b) — 

Externally driven capital — 5.5 — (0.5) 5.0 note 8(c) (1) 

Wireline pole attachment 1.2 1.6 — — 2.8 note 8(d) (1) 

Other 6.7 0.7 0.1 0.3 7.8 — (1) 

Total 262.9 92.0 (50.4) 0.6 305.1 
(1) Carrying charges were added to the regulatory balances in accordance with the OEB’s direction, at a rate of 5.49% for January 1, 

2024 to June 30, 2024, 5.20% for July 1, 2024 to September 30, 2024 and 4.40% for October 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 
(January 1, 2023 to March 31, 2023 – 4.73%; April 1, 2023 to September 30, 2023 – 4.98% and October 1, 2023 to December 31, 
2023 – 5.49%). 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Credit balances consist of the following: 

As at December 31 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2023 

$ 

Balances 
arising in 
the period 

$ 

Recovery/ 
reversal 

$ 

Other 
movements 

$ 

2024 

$ 

Remaining 
recovery/ 
reversal 
period 

(months) 

Carrying 
charges 

applicable 

Useful life changes 

Gain on disposals 

OPEB net actuarial gain 

Development charges 

REI 
CRRRVA 

Wireless attachment 
Smart metering entity 

Tax-related variances 

Other 

note 8(g) 
note 8(h) 
note 8(i) 
note 8(j) 
note 8(k) 
note 8(l) 

note 8(m) 
note 8(n) 
note 8(o) 

0 - 12 

(1) 

(1) 

— 
(1) 

— 
(1) 

(1) 

(1) 

(1) 

(1) 

62.7 72.5 — — 135.2 
34.4 1.7 — — 36.1 
9.4 10.1 — — 19.5 

12.2 2.2 (2.6) — 11.8 
4.7 1.4 — — 6.1 

47.7 0.9 (40.6) (2.8) 5.2 
2.8 0.7 (0.2) — 3.3 
3.7 0.8 (2.1) — 2.4 
8.5 0.2 (5.8) (0.8) 2.1 
3.7 0.6 (1.2) (0.7) 2.4 

Total 189.8 91.1 (52.5) (4.3) 224.1 

As at December 31 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2022 

$ 

Balances 
arising in 
the period 

$ 

Recovery/ 
reversal 

$ 

Other 
movements 

$ 

2023 

$ 

Remaining 
recovery/ 
reversal 
period 

(months) 

Carrying 
charges 

applicable 

Useful life changes 

CRRRVA 

Gain on disposals 

Development charges 

OPEB net actuarial gain 

Tax-related variances 

REI 
Smart metering entity 

Wireless attachment 
Other 

— 
79.7 
2.2 

13.7 
28.5 
12.5 
3.0 
2.6 
2.2 
5.7 

62.7 
2.9 

32.2 
1.1 

(19.1) 
1.0 
1.7 
1.6 
0.8 
3.3 

— 
(37.3) 

— 
(2.6) 

— 
(5.3) 

— 
(0.5) 
(0.2) 
(3.2) 

— 
2.4 
— 
— 
— 

0.3 
— 
— 
— 

(2.1) 

62.7 
47.7 
34.4 
12.2 
9.4 
8.5 
4.7 
3.7 
2.8 
3.7 

note 8(g) 
note 8(l) 
note 8(h) 
note 8(j) 
note 8(i) 
note 8(o) 
note 8(k) 
note 8(n) 
note 8(m) 

0 - 12 

(1) 

(1) 

(1) 

(1) 

— 
(1) 

— 
(1) 

(1) 

(1) 

Total 150.1 88.2 (49.1) 0.6 189.8 
(1) Carrying charges were added to the regulatory balances in accordance with the OEB’s direction, at a rate of 5.49% for January 1, 

2024 to June 30, 2024, 5.20% for July 1, 2024 to September 30, 2024 and 4.40% for October 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024 
(January 1, 2023 to March 31, 2023 – 4.73%; April 1, 2023 to September 30, 2023 – 4.98% and October 1, 2023 to December 31, 
2023 – 5.49%). 

60 



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

The “Balances arising in the period” column consists of new additions to regulatory balances (for both debits and credits). 
The “Recovery/reversal” column consists of amounts disposed through OEB-approved rate riders. The “Other 
movements” column consists of impairment and reclassification between the regulatory balances and other regulatory 
deferral accounts considered to be insignificant. There was no material impairment recorded for the years ended 
December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

Reconciliation between the net movements in regulatory balances shown in the regulatory debit and credit balances 
tables and the net movements presented on the consolidated statements of income and the consolidated statements of 
comprehensive income is as follows: 

Year ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Total movements in regulatory debit balances 17.4 42.2 
Total movements in regulatory credit balances (34.3) (39.7) 
Total net movements (16.9) 2.5 

Net movements per financial statements: 
Net movements in regulatory balances (33.6) (42.3) 
Net movements in regulatory balances arising from deferred taxes 24.1 30.8 
Net movements in regulatory balances related to OCI, net of tax (7.4) 14.0 

Total net movements per financial statements (16.9) 2.5 
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Regulatory developments in Ontario’s electricity industry and other governmental policy changes may affect the electricity 
distribution rates charged by THESL and the costs THESL is permitted to recover. There is a risk that the OEB may 
disallow the recovery of a portion of certain costs incurred in the current period through future rates or disagree with the 
proposed recovery period. In the event that the disposition of these balances is assessed to no longer be probable based 
on management’s judgment, any impairment will be recorded in the period when this assessment is made. 

The regulatory balances consist of the following: 

a) Settlement variances 

This account includes the variances between amounts charged by THESL to customers, based on regulated rates, and 
the corresponding cost of electricity and non-competitive electricity service costs incurred by THESL. THESL has 
deferred the variances between the costs incurred and the related recoveries in accordance with the criteria prescribed by 
the OEB. 

As part of the OEB’s decision and rate order approving THESL's 2023 rates, the OEB approved recovery of $53.1 million 
related to 2020 and 2021 settlement variances over a 12-month period commencing on January 1, 2023. As part of the 
OEB’s decision and rate order approving THESL's 2024 rates, the OEB approved recovery of $110.5 million related to 
2022 settlement variances over a 12-month period commencing on January 1, 2024. In the 2025-2029 CIR Decision and 
Rate Order, the OEB approved recovery of $70.5 million, including carrying charges, related to 2023 settlement variances 
over a 12-month period commencing on January 1, 2025 (note 3(a)). 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

b) Deferred taxes 

This regulatory balance relates to both deferred tax amounts recorded under IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts (IFRS 
14) (note 25(c)) and the expected future electricity distribution rate impact to customers arising from timing differences in 
the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities. THESL does not apply for disposition of the balance since it is 
reversed through timing differences in the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities. 

The amounts recorded under IFRS 14 include the deferred tax asset related to regulatory balances of $39.2 million 
(debits) as at December 31, 2024 (2023 - $33.8 million (debits)) and the recognition of a regulatory balance in respect of 
additional temporary differences for which a deferred tax amount was recognized of $36.0 million (credits) as at December 
31, 2024 (2023 - $28.3 million (credits)). The deferred tax amount related to the expected future impact to electricity 
distribution rates was $135.9 million (debits) as at December 31, 2024 (2023 - $106.8 million (debits)). 

c) Externally driven capital 

This account captures the differences between the forecasted revenue requirement amounts included in rates related to 
capital expenditure and resulting derecognition for third party-initiated relocation and expansion projects, and the actual 
revenue requirement associated with these types of projects. 

In the 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order, the OEB approved recovery of $9.5 million, including carrying charges, 
related to the 2024 balance over a 36-month period commencing on January 1, 2027 (note 3(a)). 

d) Wireline pole attachment 

This account records the variance between the OEB-approved wireline pole attachment charge and the charge embedded 
in THESL’s rates. 

In the 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order, the OEB approved recovery of $4.3 million, including carrying charges, 
related to the 2024 balance over a 60-month period commencing on January 1, 2025 (note 3(a)). 

e) Cloud computing 

On November 2, 2023, the OEB established a generic, sector-wide deferral account to capture the incremental cloud 
computing implementation costs incurred and any related offsetting savings effective December 1, 2023. 

In the 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order, the OEB approved recovery of $3.9 million, including carrying charges, 
related to the 2024 balance over a 12-month period commencing on January 1, 2025 (note 3(a)). 

f)  Getting Ontario Connected Act 

On October 31, 2023, the OEB established a generic, sector-wide variance account, the GOCA variance account to 
capture the incremental costs of locates arising from the implementation of provincial Bill 93 (Getting Ontario Connected 
Act, 2022 (Ontario)) effective April 1, 2023. 

In the 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order, the OEB approved recovery of $3.0 million, including carrying charges, 
related to the 2024 balance over a 12-month period commencing on January 1, 2029 (note 3(a)). 

g) Useful life changes 

This account captures the cumulative revenue requirement impact for the benefit of customers as directed by the OEB for 
2023 and 2024 relating to the change in estimate of the useful lives of certain items of PP&E. As at December 31, 2024, 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

the regulatory balance relates to the difference between the revenue requirement included in rates charged to customers 
and the actual revenue requirement based on the updated useful lives. 

In the 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order, the OEB approved disposition of $138.5 million, including carrying 
charges, related to the 2024 balance over a 48-month period commencing on January 1, 2025 (note 3(a)). 

h) Gain on disposals 

This regulatory balance consists of the amounts disposed through the OEB-approved rate riders, net of the related tax 
savings (credits), and offset by the after-tax gain realized on the sale of three significant THESL properties between 2015 
and 2018. 

In 2023, $32.2 million was recognized in the regulatory account in connection with the variable consideration recognized 
for the disposition of properties in prior years upon achievement of conditions, net of tax and selling costs, and inclusive of 
carrying charges. 

In the 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order, the OEB approved disposition of $42.7 million, including carrying charges, 
related to the 2024 balance over a 60-month period commencing on January 1, 2025 (note 3(a)). 

i)  OPEB net actuarial gain 

This regulatory balance accumulates the actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions and 
experience adjustments recognized in OCI. The balance arising during the year ended December 31, 2024 of $10.1 
million is the actuarial gain recorded for the year (2023 - $19.1 million actuarial loss) (note 13(d)). The net position is an 
actuarial gain to be disposed in future rates. In the 2020-2024 CIR Decision and Rate Order, the OEB approved partial 
recovery of the balance amounting to $6.4 million. The timing of disposition of the balance is expected to be determined 
in a future rate application. 

j) Development charges 

This regulatory balance relates to excess expansion deposits retained by THESL where the requested number of 
connections or electricity demand were not met by the connecting customer. Pursuant to the OEB’s Distribution System 
Code, THESL may collect expansion deposits from specific customers to guarantee the payment of additional costs 
relating to expansion projects. During the customer connection horizon, THESL has an obligation to annually return the 
expansion deposit to the connecting customer in proportion to the actual connections or electricity demand that occurred 
in that year. If the number of connections or electricity demand requested by the customer do not materialize by the end 
of the connection horizon, THESL retains the excess expansion deposit not otherwise returned to the connecting 
customer. In the 2020-2024 CIR Decision and Rate Order, the OEB approved disposition of $11.1 million related to the 
2019 balance over a 48-month period commencing on January 1, 2021. 

In the 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order, the OEB approved disposition of $8.7 million, including carrying charges, 
related to the 2024 balance over a 60-month period commencing on January 1, 2025 (note 3(a)). 

k) Renewable enabling investments 

This account captures the variance between THESL’s revenue requirement required to support the portion of the 
investments that are eligible for the provincial rate protection, and the actual provincial rate protection amounts collected 
monthly from the IESO. 

In the 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order, the OEB approved disposition of $6.2 million related to the 2024 balance 
to be settled through the IESO (note 3(a)) in 2025. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

l)  Capital-related revenue requirement 

This regulatory balance relates to the asymmetrical variance between the cumulative 2015 to 2019 capital-related revenue 
requirement included in rates and the actual capital-related revenue requirement over the same period. The cumulative 
2015 to 2019 capital-related revenue requirement included in rates exceeded the actual capital-related revenue 
requirement over the same rate period. In the 2020-2024 CIR Decision and Rate Order, the OEB approved disposition of 
$81.8 million related to the 2019 balance over a 24-month period commencing on January 1, 2023. The timing of 
disposition of the balance is expected to be determined in a future rate application. 

m)  Wireless attachment 

This account tracks revenues and costs associated with wireless pole attachments. Revenues recorded in this account 
are the actual revenues received through the negotiated contracts with wireless carriers, as well as the revenues collected 
directly to cover the one-time costs incurred. 

In the 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order, the OEB approved disposition of $3.6 million, including carrying charges, 
related to the 2024 balance over a 60-month period commencing on January 1, 2025 (note 3(a)). 

n) Smart metering entity 

This account captures the variance between amounts paid to the IESO (through the smart metering entity charge) and 
amounts recovered from customers through the distribution rate rider for the smart metering entity charge. As part of the 
OEB’s decision and rate order approving THESL's 2023 rates, the OEB approved disposition of $0.5 million related to 
2020 and 2021 variances over a 12-month period commencing on January 1, 2023. As part of the OEB’s decision and 
rate order approving THESL’s 2024 rates, the OEB approved disposition of $2.2 million related to 2022 variances over a 
12-month period commencing on January 1, 2024. 

In the 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order, the OEB approved disposition of $1.6 million, including carrying charges, 
related to the 2023 variances over a 12-month period commencing on January 1, 2025 (note 3(a)). 

o) Tax-related variances 

The regulatory balance arose primarily from the revenue requirement impact of accelerated capital cost allowance 
deductions from the Accelerated Investment Incentive tax measure which received Royal Assent on June 21, 2019. In the 
2020-2024 CIR Decision and Rate Order, the OEB approved disposition of $11.6 million related to the 2019 balance over 
a 24-month period commencing on January 1, 2023. In addition, the balance includes the revenue requirement impact of 
additional capital cost allowance deductions from the Immediate Expensing tax measure which received Royal Assent in 
June 2022. 

In the 2025-2029 CIR Decision and Rate Order, the OEB approved disposition of $1.8 million, including carrying charges, 
related to the 2024 balance for the Immediate Expensing tax measure over a 12-month period commencing on January 1, 
2025 (note 3(a)). 

64 



 
  

  

   
   

       
      

   
  

 
  

   
      

 
     

 
   

 
  

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

   

      

  
  

   

   
    

 

\.( 
-(, TORONTO 

HYDRO' 
Corporation 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

9. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 

The Corporation is a party to an amended and restated credit agreement dated November 17, 2023 (as amended) with a 
syndicate of Canadian chartered banks which provides for a revolving credit facility in an amount up to $1.0 billion 
(Revolving Credit Facility), of which up to $210.0 million is available in the form of letters of credit. On September 18, 
2024, the maturity date of the Revolving Credit Facility was extended from September 18, 2028 to September 18, 2029. 
Borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility bear interest at fluctuating rates plus an applicable margin based on the 
Corporation’s credit rating. 

The Corporation has a commercial paper program allowing up to $1.0 billion of unsecured short-term promissory notes 
(Commercial Paper Program) to be issued in various maturities of no more than one year. The Commercial Paper 
Program is supported by liquidity facilities available under the Revolving Credit Facility; hence, available borrowing under 
the Revolving Credit Facility is reduced by the amount of commercial paper outstanding at any point in time. Proceeds 
from the Commercial Paper Program are used for general corporate purposes. Borrowings under the Commercial Paper 
Program bear interest based on the prevailing market conditions at the time of issuance. 

Additionally, the Corporation is a party to a $100.0 million demand facility with a Canadian chartered bank for the purpose 
of issuing letters of credit. 

The Corporation is a party to a $20.0 million demand facility with a second Canadian chartered bank for the purpose of 
working capital management (Working Capital Facility). 

The amount available under the Revolving Credit Facility and the Commercial Paper Program are as follows: 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

Revolving Credit 
Facility Limit 

$ 

Commercial Paper 
Outstanding 

$ 

Revolving Credit 
Facility Availability 

$ 

Balance as at December 31, 2024 1,000.0 480.0 520.0 
Balance as at December 31, 2023 1,000.0 421.0 579.0 

As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, there were no borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility. 

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the average aggregate outstanding borrowings under the Corporation’s 
Revolving Credit Facility, Working Capital Facility and Commercial Paper Program were $642.7 million (2023 - $639.3 
million) with a weighted average interest rate of 4.73% (2023 - 4.91%). 

As at December 31, 2024, $5.2 million had been drawn under the Working Capital Facility (2023 – $7.3 million) and letters 
of credit totalling $54.3 million had been issued (2023 – $51.3 million). 
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For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

10. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following: 

As at December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Trade payables 281.1 
Accrued liabilities and other (1) 

Accrued interest 22.5 
Due to related parties (note 22) 3.8 
Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities 559.1 

289.2 
176.5 
25.3 
8.9 

499.9 

251.7 
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(1) Includes settlement liability of $90.0 million (note 24). 

11. DEFERRED REVENUE 

Deferred revenue consists of the following: 

As at December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

761.8 
162.8 
(16.8) (2) 

(17.1) 

Capital contributions, beginning of year 
Capital contributions received (1) 

Derecognition of related assets 

Amortization 

890.7 
173.8 

— 
(19.6) 

Capital contributions, end of year 

Other deferred revenue, beginning of year 

1,044.9 

6.2 

890.7 

4.8 
11.0 
(9.6) 

Other deferred revenue 13.9 
Revenue recognized (13.4) 
Other deferred revenue, end of year 

Total deferred revenue 

Less: Current portion of deferred revenue relating to: 
Capital contributions 

Other deferred revenue 

6.7 

1,051.6 

26.7 
5.7 

6.2 

896.9 

23.1 
5.7 

Current portion of deferred revenue 32.4 28.8 
Non-current portion of deferred revenue 1,019.2 868.1 

(1) Includes non-cash contributions of $21.4 million (2023 – $42.2 million). 
(2) Includes $14.2 million related to amounts received in advance for an asset pertaining to a finance lease which was derecognized in 

2023 (note 6). 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

12. DEBENTURES 

Debentures consist of the following: 

As at December 31 2024 2023 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) $ $ 

Senior unsecured debentures 

Series 6 – 5.54% due May 21, 2040 200.0 200.0 
Series 9 – 3.96% due April 9, 2063 245.0 245.0 
Series 10 – 4.08% due September 16, 2044 200.0 200.0 
Series 11 – 3.55% due July 28, 2045 200.0 200.0 
Series 12 – 2.52% due August 25, 2026 200.0 200.0 
Series 13 – 3.485% due February 28, 2048 200.0 200.0 
Series 14 – 2.43% due December 11, 2029 200.0 200.0 
Series 15 – 2.99% due December 10, 2049 200.0 200.0 
Series 16 – 1.50% due October 15, 2030 200.0 200.0 
Series 17 – 2.47% due October 20, 2031 150.0 150.0 
Series 18 – 3.27% due October 18, 2051 200.0 200.0 
Series 19 – 4.95% due October 13, 2052 300.0 300.0 
Series 20 – 4.61% due June 14, 2033 250.0 250.0 
Series 21 – 5.13% due October 12, 2028 

Series 22 – 3.99% due September 26, 2034 

200.0 200.0 
—250.0 

Total debentures 

Less: Unamortized debt issuance costs 

Unamortized discount/premium 

3,195.0 
16.9 
1.5 

2,945.0 
16.4 
1.4 

Long-term portion of debentures 3,176.6 2,927.2 

All debentures of the Corporation rank equally. 

On April 10, 2023, the Corporation’s $250.0 million Series 8 debentures matured and were repaid. 

On June 14, 2023, the Corporation issued $250.0 million of 4.61% senior unsecured debentures due on June 14, 2033 at 
a price of $999.52 per $1,000 principal amount (Series 20). The Series 20 debentures bear interest payable semi-
annually in arrears. Debenture issuance costs of $1.6 million relating to the Series 20 debentures were recorded against 
the carrying amount of the debentures and are amortized to finance costs using the effective interest method. 

On July 27, 2023, the Corporation filed a base shelf prospectus with the securities commissions or similar regulatory 
authorities in each of the provinces of Canada, allowing offerings of unsecured debentures in an aggregate amount of up 
to $1.5 billion during the 25-month period following the date of the prospectus. 

On October 12, 2023, the Corporation issued $200.0 million of 5.13% senior unsecured debentures due on October 12, 
2028 at a price of $999.78 per $1,000 principal amount (Series 21). The Series 21 debentures bear interest payable 
semi-annually in arrears. Debenture issuance costs of $1.2 million relating to the Series 21 debentures were recorded 
against the carrying amount of the debentures and are amortized to finance costs using the effective interest method. 

On September 26, 2024, the Corporation issued $250.0 million of 3.99% senior unsecured debentures due on September 
26, 2034 at a price of $999.02 per $1,000 principal amount (Series 22). The Series 22 debentures bear interest payable 
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semi-annually in arrears. Debenture issuance costs of $1.6 million relating to the Series 22 debentures were recorded 
against the carrying amount of the debentures and are amortized to finance costs using the effective interest method. 

The Corporation may redeem all or part of its outstanding debentures at any time prior to maturity at a price equal to the 
greater of the Canada Yield Price (determined in accordance with the terms of the debentures) and par, plus accrued and 
unpaid interest up to and excluding the date fixed for redemption. Also, the Corporation may, at any time and from time to 
time, purchase debentures for cancellation, in the open market, by tender or by private contract, at any price agreed upon 
with the holder of the debentures being purchased. The debentures contain certain covenants which, subject to certain 
exceptions, restrict the ability of the Corporation and THESL to create security interests, incur additional indebtedness or 
dispose of all or substantially all of their assets. 

13. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS 

Multi-employer pension plan 

The Corporation’s eligible employees participate in a defined benefit pension plan through OMERS. As at December 31, 
2024, OMERS had disclosed that the plan was 98.0% funded (2023 - 97.0%). The Corporation is not able to assess the 
implications, if any, of OMERS’ strategy to address the funding shortfall or of the withdrawal of other participating entities 
from the OMERS plan on its future contributions. For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Corporation’s contributions 
were $20.8 million (2023 - $18.6 million), representing less than five percent of total contributions to the OMERS plan. 
The Corporation expects to contribute approximately $24.9 million to the OMERS plan in 2025. 

Post-employment benefits 

a) Benefit obligation 

As at December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Balance, beginning of year 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Benefits paid 

Experience (gain) loss (1) 

Actuarial gain arising from changes in demographic assumptions (1) 

Actuarial (gain) loss arising from changes in financial assumptions (1) (2) 

230.0 
1.8 

11.6 
(10.4) 

2.7 
— 

16.5 

252.2 
2.1 

11.5 
(10.7) 
(6.0) 
(0.1) 
(1.3) 

Balance, end of year 247.7 252.2 
(1) Actuarial loss on accumulated sick leave credits and other retirement plans of $2.7 million (2023 - $0.1 million loss) is recognized in 

benefit cost (note 13(c)) and actuarial gain on medical, dental and life insurance benefits of $10.1 million (2023 - $19.1 million loss) is 
recognized in OCI (note 13(d)).  

(2) Reflects the impact of the changes in actuarial assumptions (note 13(e)). 

b) Amounts recognized in regulatory balances 

As at December 31, 2024, the amount recognized in regulatory balances related to accumulated actuarial gains and 
losses was $19.5 million (credits) (2023 - $9.4 million (credits)) (note 8(i)). 
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c) Benefit cost recognized 

Year ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Current service cost 2.1 1.8 
Interest cost 11.5 11.6 
Actuarial loss on other employee benefits (note 13(a)) 2.7 0.1 
Benefit cost 16.3 13.5 

Capitalized to PP&E and intangible assets 7.1 5.9 
Charged to operating expenses 9.2 7.6 

d) Amounts recognized in OCI 

Year ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Net movements in regulatory balances related to OCI, net of tax (7.4) 
OCI, net of tax — — 

14.0 
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10.1 (19.1) 
(2.7) 5.1 
7.4 (14.0) 

Actuarial gain (loss) (note 13(a)) 
Income tax (expense) recovery in OCI (note 20) 
Remeasurements of post-employment benefits, net of tax 

e) Significant assumptions 

As at December 31 2024 
% 

2023 
% 

Discount rate used in the calculation of: 
Benefit obligation 4.7 

Assumed medical and dental cost trend rates: 
Dental care cost trend rate assumed for next year 4.0 
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year 6.0 5.2 

5.0 

4.6 

f)  Sensitivity analysis 

Significant actuarial assumptions for benefit obligation measurement purposes are discount rate and assumed medical 
and dental cost trend rates. The weighted average duration of the benefit obligation as at December 31, 2024 was 13.0 
(2023 - 14.0). The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the 
assumptions, in isolation of one another, occurring at the end of the reporting period. This analysis may not be 
representative of the actual change since it is unlikely that changes in the assumptions would occur in isolation of one 
another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. 
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Changes in key assumptions would have had the following effect on the benefit obligation: 

As at December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) Change in assumption 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Benefit obligation 247.7 252.2 
Discount rate 1% á (29.1) (31.4) 

1% 35.9 39.0 
Medical and dental cost trend rates 1% á 29.0 34.4 

1% 

â

â (23.7) (27.6) 

 
  

   

 
  

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
   

 

  

 

    

   
   

    

    
 

     
 

     
 

       
    

    
      

    
    

    
    

     

 
     
    

   

 

\..J_ 
-('' TORONTO 

HYDRO' 
Corporation 

14. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The Corporation’s main objectives when managing capital are to: 

• ensure ongoing access to funding to maintain, refurbish and expand the electricity distribution system of THESL; 

• ensure sufficient liquidity is available (either through cash and cash equivalents or committed credit facilities) to 
meet the needs of the business; 

• ensure compliance with covenants related to its credit facilities and senior unsecured debentures; and 

• minimize finance costs while taking into consideration current and future industry, market and economic risks and 
conditions. 

The Corporation monitors forecasted cash flows, capital expenditures, debt repayment and key credit ratios similar to 
those used by key rating agencies. The Corporation manages capital by preparing short-term and long-term cash flow 
forecasts. In addition, the Corporation accesses debt capital markets as required to help fund some of the periodic net 
cash outflows and to maintain available liquidity. There have been no changes in the Corporation’s approach to capital 
management during the year. As at December 31, 2024, the Corporation’s definition of capital included equity, borrowings 
under its Working Capital Facility, Commercial Paper Program and Revolving Credit Facility, long-term debt and 
obligations under leases, including the current portion thereof, and has remained unchanged from the definition as at 
December 31, 2023. As at December 31, 2024, equity amounted to $2,200.0 million (2023 - $2,103.6 million), and 
borrowings under its Working Capital Facility, Commercial Paper Program and Revolving Credit Facility, long-term debt 
and obligations under leases, including the current portion thereof, amounted to $3,661.9 million (2023 - $3,355.6 million). 

The Corporation is subject to debt agreements that contain various covenants. The Corporation’s unsecured debentures 
limit consolidated funded indebtedness to a maximum of 75% of total consolidated capitalization as defined in its trust 
indenture. The Corporation’s Revolving Credit Facility limits the debt to capitalization ratio to a maximum of 75%. 

The Corporation’s debt arrangements also include restrictive covenants such as limitations on designated subsidiary 
indebtedness, and restrictions on mergers and dispositions of designated subsidiaries. As at December 31, 2024 and 
December 31, 2023, the Corporation was in compliance with all covenants included in its trust indenture, supplemental 
trust indentures and Revolving Credit Facility agreement. 
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For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

a) Fair value 

As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the fair values of accounts receivable and unbilled revenue, Working 
Capital Facility, commercial paper, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximated their carrying amounts due 
to the short maturity of these instruments (note 25(k)). The fair value of customer deposits approximates their carrying 
amount taking into account interest accrued on the outstanding balance. Debentures are measured at amortized cost, 
based on the fair value of the debentures at issuance, which was the fair value of the consideration received adjusted for 
transaction costs. The fair values of the debentures are based on the present value of contractual cash flows, discounted 
at the Corporation’s current borrowing rate for similar debt instruments. 

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Corporation’s debentures consist of the following: 

As at December 31 2024 2023 

Carrying 
amount 

Fair value (1) Carrying 
amount 

Fair value (1) 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) $ $ $ $ 

Senior unsecured debentures 

Series 6 – 5.54% due May 21, 2040 199.0 221.4 198.9 224.3 
Series 9 – 3.96% due April 9, 2063 243.5 217.1 243.5 221.4 
Series 10 – 4.08% due September 16, 2044 198.6 188.0 198.6 189.2 
Series 11 – 3.55% due July 28, 2045 198.7 173.6 198.6 174.6 
Series 12 – 2.52% due August 25, 2026 199.8 197.5 199.6 192.8 
Series 13 – 3.485% due February 28, 2048 198.7 169.9 198.6 171.5 
Series 14 – 2.43% due December 11, 2029 199.3 190.3 199.2 184.6 
Series 15 – 2.99% due December 10, 2049 198.7 153.9 198.7 155.8 
Series 16 – 1.50% due October 15, 2030 199.0 177.6 198.8 171.0 
Series 17 – 2.47% due October 20, 2031 149.4 138.4 149.2 134.2 
Series 18 – 3.27% due October 18, 2051 198.6 160.7 198.6 163.1 
Series 19 – 4.95% due October 13, 2052 297.7 318.9 297.7 324.8 
Series 20 – 4.61% due June 14, 2033 248.5 260.6 248.4 258.2 
Series 21 – 5.13% due October 12, 2028 199.0 211.6 198.8 210.2 
Series 22 – 3.99% due September 26, 2034 248.1 247.8 — — 

Total 3,176.6 3,027.3 2,927.2 2,775.7 

 
  

  

 

      
  

    
      

    
     

    

    

   

 

 

 

 

     

 

  

  

  

  

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 
      

 

\.( 
-(, TORONTO 

HYDRO' 
Corporation 

(1) The fair value measurement of financial instruments is included in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy (note 25(l)). 

b) Financial risks 

The following is a discussion of certain financial risks identified by the Corporation for its financial instruments and related 
mitigation strategies. This is not an exhaustive list of all risks, nor will the mitigation strategies eliminate all risks listed. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Credit risk 

The Corporation is exposed to the risk of counterparties defaulting on their obligations. The Corporation monitors and 
limits its exposure to credit risk on a continuous basis. The credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents is mitigated by 
the Corporation in assessing and monitoring the credit exposures of counterparties. 

The Corporation’s exposure to credit risk primarily relates to accounts receivable and unbilled revenue. The Corporation 
is exposed to credit risk with respect to customer non-payment of electricity bills. The Corporation considers the current 
economic and credit conditions to determine the expected credit loss allowance of its accounts receivable and unbilled 
revenue. Due to the changing economic environment, the estimates and judgments made by management in the 
preparation of the expected credit loss allowance are subject to estimation uncertainty. The Corporation determines the 
expected credit loss allowance based on current estimates and assumptions, including, but not limited to, recent trends for 
customer collections and current and forecasted economic conditions. The Corporation continues to actively monitor its 
exposure to credit risk. 

THESL obtains security instruments from certain customers in accordance with direction provided by the OEB. As at 
December 31, 2024, THESL held security deposits in the amount of $117.4 million (2023 - $110.7 million), of which $82.6 
million (2023 - $75.4 million) was related to security deposits on offers to connect to guarantee the payment of additional 
costs related to expansion projects. The Corporation’s security instruments may not provide sufficient protection from 
counterparties defaulting on their obligations. As at December 31, 2024, there were no significant concentrations of credit 
risk with respect to any customer. The credit risk and mitigation strategies with respect to unbilled revenue are the same 
as those for accounts receivable. 

The Corporation did not have any single customer that generated more than 10% of total consolidated revenue for the 
years ended December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. 

Credit risk associated with accounts receivable and unbilled revenue is as follows: 

As at December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Accounts receivable, gross 

Outstanding for not more than 30 days 210.8 213.7 
Outstanding for more than 30 days and not more than 120 days 36.3 36.8 
Outstanding for more than 120 days 39.2 28.6 

Total accounts receivable, gross 286.3 279.1 
Unbilled revenue, gross 317.4 286.9 
Expected credit loss allowance (20.2) (29.2) 
Total accounts receivable and unbilled revenue 583.5 536.8 
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Unbilled revenue represents amounts for which the Corporation has a contractual right to receive cash through future 
billings and are unbilled at period-end. Unbilled revenue is considered in conjunction with accounts receivable and is 
included in the expected credit loss allowance as at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023. 

The Corporation has a broad base of customers. As at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Corporation’s 
accounts receivable and unbilled revenue which were not past due or impaired were assessed by management to have 
no significant collection risk. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of expected credit loss allowance for accounts receivable and 
unbilled revenue is as follows: 

As at December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Expected credit loss allowance, beginning of year (29.2) (32.1) 
Increase in expected credit loss allowance (0.8) (7.5) 
Write-offs, net of recoveries 9.8 10.4 
Expected credit loss allowance, end of year (20.2) (29.2) 
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c) Market risks 

Interest rate risk 

The Corporation is exposed to fluctuations in interest rates for the valuation of its post-employment benefit obligations 
(note 13(f)). The Corporation is also exposed to short-term interest rate risk on the net of cash and cash equivalents, 
short-term borrowings under its Revolving Credit Facility, Working Capital Facility and Commercial Paper Program (note 
9) and customer deposits. The Corporation manages interest rate risk by monitoring its mix of fixed and floating rate 
instruments, and taking action as necessary to maintain an appropriate balance. 

As at December 31, 2024, aside from the post-employment benefit obligations, most of the Corporation’s remaining 
obligations were either non-interest bearing or bear fixed interest rates. Its financial assets were predominately short-term 
in nature and mostly non-interest bearing. The Corporation estimates that a 25 basis point increase (decrease) in short-
term interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would result in an increase (decrease) of approximately $1.5 
million to annual finance costs. 

Liquidity risk 

The Corporation is exposed to liquidity risk related to its ability to fund its obligations as they become due. The 
Corporation monitors and manages its liquidity risk to ensure access to sufficient funds to meet operational and financial 
requirements. The Corporation has access to credit facilities and debt capital markets and monitors cash balances daily. 
The Corporation’s objective is to ensure that sufficient liquidity is on hand to meet obligations as they become due while 
minimizing finance costs. The Corporation relies on debt financing through the debt capital markets and existing credit 
facilities to finance its daily operations, repay existing indebtedness and fund capital expenditures. A changing economic 
environment created by factors including, but not limited to, uncertain macroeconomic conditions may lead to material 
adverse changes in cash flows, working capital levels and/or debt balances, which may also have a direct negative impact 
on the Corporation’s operating results and financial position in the future. Accordingly, the Corporation continues to 
monitor liquidity risk and adapt its plans as the economic climate evolves. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Liquidity risks associated with financial commitments as at December 31, 2024 are as follows: 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

Due 
within 1 

year 
$ 

Due 
within 2 
years 

$ 

Due 
within 3 
years 

$ 

Due 
within 4 
years 

$ 

Due 
within 5 
years 

$ 

Due after 
5 years 

$ 

Working Capital Facility 5.2 — — — — — 
Commercial paper (1) 480.0 — — — — — 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (2) 474.6 — — — — — 
Senior unsecured debentures 

Series 6 – 5.54% due May 21, 2040 — — — — — 200.0 
Series 9 – 3.96% due April 9, 2063 — — — — — 245.0 
Series 10 – 4.08% due September 16, 2044 — — — — — 200.0 
Series 11 – 3.55% due July 28, 2045 — — — — — 200.0 
Series 12 – 2.52% due August 25, 2026 — 200.0 — — — — 
Series 13 – 3.485% due February 28, 2048 — — — — — 200.0 
Series 14 – 2.43% due December 11, 2029 — — — — 200.0 — 
Series 15 – 2.99% due December 10, 2049 — — — — — 200.0 
Series 16 – 1.50% due October 15, 2030 — — — — — 200.0 
Series 17 – 2.47% due October 20, 2031 — — — — — 150.0 
Series 18 – 3.27% due October 18, 2051 — — — — — 200.0 
Series 19 – 4.95% due October 13, 2052 — — — — — 300.0 
Series 20 – 4.61% due June 14, 2033 — — — — — 250.0 
Series 21 – 5.13% due October 12, 2028 — — — 200.0 — — 
Series 22 – 3.99% due September 26, 2034 — — — — — 250.0 
Interest payments on debentures 118.7 118.7 113.7 113.7 103.5 1,512.0 

Total 1,078.5 318.7 113.7 313.7 303.5 4,107.0 
(1) The notes under the Commercial Paper Program were issued at a discount and are repaid at their principal amount. 
(2) Accounts payable and accrued liabilities exclude $25.3 million of accrued interest on debentures included within “Interest payments 

on debentures”. 

Foreign exchange risk 

As at December 31, 2024, the Corporation had limited exposure to the changing values of foreign currencies. While the 
Corporation purchases goods and services which are payable in United States dollars, and purchases United States 
currency to meet the related commitments when required, the value of such purchases is not significant to the Corporation 
and as such the impact of foreign exchange fluctuations would not be expected to have a material effect on the 
consolidated financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

16. SHARE CAPITAL 

Share capital consists of the following: 

As at December 31  2024 2023 

(in millions of Canadian dollars, except share amounts) 
Number of 

Shares $ 
Number of 

Shares $ 

Issued and outstanding (1) 

1,200 
— 

817.8 
— 

Beginning of the year 1,200 817.8 
Common shares issued 28 50.0 
End of the year 1,228 867.8 1,200 817.8 

(1) The authorized share capital of the Corporation consists of an unlimited number of common shares with no par value. All shares 
issued were fully paid. 

Dividends 

The Shareholder Direction adopted by the City with respect to the Corporation provides that the Board of Directors of the 
Corporation will use its best efforts to ensure that the Corporation meets certain financial performance standards, 
including those relating to credit rating and dividends. 

In accordance with the Dividend Policy passed on June 28, 2017, and subject to applicable law, the Shareholder Direction 
provided that the Corporation was to pay dividends to the City each year amounting to 60% of the Corporation’s 
consolidated net income after net movements in regulatory balances for the prior fiscal year. 

On June 28, 2024, the City and the Corporation approved amendments to the Corporation’s Shareholder Direction, which 
set out targets for reduced dividends from the Corporation to the City for the period between 2025 and 2034. The 
dividend is declared quarterly, subject to the discretion of the Board of Directors, and is payable to the City by the last 
business day of each fiscal quarter. 

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Board of Directors of the Corporation declared and paid dividends to the 
City totalling $83.9 million (2023 - $98.3 million). 
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For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

17. REVENUES 

Revenues consist of the following: 

Year ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 
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Revenue from contracts with customers 

Energy sales 2,923.3 2,687.3 
Distribution revenue 937.8 839.5 
Ancillary services revenue 21.2 17.9 
Street lighting services 20.8 20.1 
Pole and duct rentals 18.8 19.1 
Other regulatory service charges 10.2 10.5 
Miscellaneous 17.0 21.2 

Revenue from other sources 

Capital contributions - developers and other 18.3 15.7 
Street lighting contributed assets 3.1 — 
Other 14.2 

Total revenues 3,980.0 3,645.5 
9.5 

Energy sales and distribution revenue by customer class are as follows: 

Year ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Residential service (1) 1,130.0 1,006.2 
General service (2) 2,485.5 2,323.2 
Large users (3) 245.6 197.4 
Total energy sales and distribution revenue 3,861.1 3,526.8 

(1) “Residential Service” means a service that is for domestic or household purposes, including single family or individually metered 
multi-family units and seasonal occupancy. 

(2) “General Service” means a service supplied to premises other than those receiving “Residential Service” and “Large Users” and 
typically includes small businesses and bulk-metered multi-unit residential establishments. This service is provided to customers with 
a monthly peak demand of less than 5,000 kW averaged over a 12-month period. 

(3) “Large Users” means a service provided to a customer with a monthly peak demand of 5,000 kW or greater averaged over a 12-
month period. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

18. OPERATING EXPENSES 

Operating expenses consist of the following: 

Year ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Salaries and benefits 

External services 

Materials and supplies 

Other support costs (1) 

Less: Capitalized costs 

Total operating expenses 
(1) Includes general and administrative expenses, taxes other than income taxes, insurance, communication, utilities and expected credit 

loss allowance. 

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the Corporation recognized operating expenses of $18.4 million related to 
materials and supplies used to service electricity distribution assets (2023 - $22.1 million). 

19. FINANCE COSTS 

Finance costs consist of the following: 

Year ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Interest income 7.1 
Interest expense 

Interest on long-term debt (98.4) 
Interest on short-term debt (32.5) (33.4) 
Other interest (5.3) (4.2) 
Capitalized borrowing costs 5.8 7.4 

Total finance costs (137.8) (121.5) 

7.0 

(112.8) 
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268.2 237.3 
204.0 184.5 
31.9 31.2 
26.9 30.8 

(152.5) (131.6) 
378.5 352.2 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

20. INCOME TAXES 

Income tax expense differs from the amount that would have been recorded using the combined statutory Canadian 
federal and provincial income tax rate. Reconciliation of income tax expense computed at the statutory income tax rate to 
the income tax provision is set out below: 

Year ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Rate reconciliation before net movements in regulatory balances 

Income before income taxes 

Statutory Canadian federal and provincial income tax rate 

Expected income tax expense 

Non-taxable amounts 27.7 
Gain on disposals of PP&E — 
Other (4.3) 
Income tax expense (18.6) 
Effective tax rate 19.9 % 

Rate reconciliation after net movements in regulatory balances 

Net income after net movements in regulatory balances, before income tax (1) 124.8 
Statutory Canadian federal and provincial income tax rate 26.5 % 

Expected income tax expense (33.1) 
Temporary differences recoverable in future rates 

Gain on disposals of PP&E — 
Other 
Income tax (expense) recovery and income tax recorded in net movements in 

regulatory balances 5.5 
Effective tax rate (4.4) % 4.7 % 

(1) Income tax includes income tax expense and income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory balances. 

Income tax (expense) recovery as presented in the consolidated statements of income and the consolidated statements of 
comprehensive income are as follows: 

Year ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Income tax expense (18.6) (37.7) 
Income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory balances 24.1 30.8 
Income tax (expense) recovery and income tax recorded in net movements in 

regulatory balances 5.5 (6.9) 
Income tax (expense) recovery in OCI (note 13(d)) (2.7) 5.1 
Income tax (expense) recovery in OCI recorded in net movements in regulatory balances 2.7 (5.1) 
Income tax in OCI — — 
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158.4 189.1 
26.5 % 26.5 %

(42.0) (50.1) 
22.1 
(3.6) 
(6.1) 

(37.7) 
11.7 %

146.8 
26.5 %

(38.9) 
41.7 40.7 

(3.6) 
(3.1) (5.1) 

(6.9) 
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For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 

Components of income tax (expense) recovery and income tax recorded in net movements in regulatory balances are as 
follows: 

Year ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Current tax expense 

Current year (3.2) (7.5) 

Deferred tax recovery 

Recognition of previously unrecognized deductible temporary differences — 
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 7.8 
Income tax (expense) recovery and income tax recorded in net movements in 

regulatory balances 5.5 (6.9) 

0.9 
0.6 

 
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  

  

  

  

    
 

   

 
  

  

 

 

 

       

  

 

  

 

 

  
  

  

 

 

 

       

  

  

  

 

 

      
     

    
 

 

 

\..J_ 
-('' TORONTO 

HYDRO' 
Corporation 

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) consist of the following: 

As at December 31  2023 Recognized in 
net income 

Recognized in 
OCI 

2024 2024 
Deferred tax 

assets 

2024 
Deferred tax 

liabilities 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) $ $ $ $ $ $ 

PP&E and intangible assets 

Post-employment benefits 
Tax credit carryforward 

Other taxable temporary 
differences 

(218.0) (46.4) — (264.4) 0.9 (265.3) 
66.8 1.5 (2.7) 65.6 

10.3 

60.7 

— 
— 

— 

65.6 
10.3 

60.7 

6.0 4.3 — 

35.5 25.2 — 
Total (109.7) (15.4) (2.7) (127.8) 0.9 (128.7) 

As at December 31 2022 Recognized in Recognized in 
net income OCI 

2023 2023 
Deferred tax 

assets 

2023 
Deferred tax 

liabilities 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) $ $ $ $ $ $ 

PP&E and intangible assets 

Post-employment benefits 

Tax credit carryforward 

Other taxable temporary 
differences 

(173.5) 
61.0 
3.5 

24.4 

(44.5) 
0.7 
2.5 

11.1 

— 
5.1 
— 

— 

(218.0) 
66.8 
6.0 

35.5 

— 
— 
— 

— 

(218.0) 
66.8 
6.0 

35.5 
Total (84.6) (30.2) 5.1 (109.7) — (109.7) 

As at December 31, 2024, the Corporation had accumulated net capital losses of $18.7 million (2023 - $18.7 million), 
which are available to offset capital gains in future years. As at December 31, 2024, the Corporation had accumulated 
non-capital losses of $43.8 million for income tax purposes (2023 - $21.1 million), which are available to offset net income 
in future years before expiring ($0.6 million expires in 2042, $20.5 million expires in 2043 and $22.7 million expires in 
2044). 
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Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following items because it is not probable that future 
taxable income will be available against which the Corporation can utilize the benefits therefrom: 

Year ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 
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5.8 6.6 
5.0 5.0 

11.6 5.6 
22.4 17.2 

Deductible temporary differences 

Net capital losses 

Non-capital losses 

Total 

21. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

a) Changes in non-cash operating working capital 

Changes in non-cash operating working capital consist of the following: 

Year ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue (23.4) (21.1) 
Income tax receivable (2.3) — 
Materials and supplies (0.5) (0.3) 
Other current assets 85.0 (90.2) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 114.5 
Income tax payable 1.0 
Deferred revenue (0.8) 
Deferred conservation credit (5.9) 
Total changes in non-cash operating working capital (7.7) (2.8) 

(57.8) 
(1.4) 
3.6 

(10.9) 
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b) Reconciliation of additions to PP&E and intangible assets 

Reconciliation between the amounts presented on the consolidated statements of cash flows and additions to PP&E and 
intangible assets is as follows: 

Year ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Purchase of PP&E, cash basis 

Net change in accounts payable and accruals related to PP&E 

Non-cash contributed assets 

Other 
Additions to PP&E 

Purchase of intangible assets, cash basis 

Net change in accounts payable and accruals related to intangible assets 

Additions to intangible assets 

c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities 

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities are as follows: 

As at December 31 2023 Cash flows (1) Non-cash 
changes 

2024 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) $ $ $ $ 

Commercial paper (note 9) — 480.0 
Dividends payable (note 16) — — 
Debentures (note 12) 3,176.6 
Accrued interest and other (2) 25.4 
Total 3,682.0 

As at December 31 2022 Cash flows (1) Non-cash 
changes 

2023 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) $ $ $ $ 

Commercial paper (note 9) 355.0 66.0 — 421.0 
Dividends payable (note 16) — (98.3) 98.3 — 
Debentures (note 12) 2,729.1 197.1 1.0 2,927.2 
Accrued interest and other (2) 21.6 (131.2) 132.2 22.6 
Total 3,105.7 33.6 231.5 3,370.8 
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752.1 681.4 
24.4 (8.9) 
31.5 28.6 
1.5 1.3 

809.5 702.4 

93.2 56.2 
(20.3) (3.6) 
72.9 52.6 

421.0 59.0 
(83.9) 83.9 

2,927.2 248.2 1.2 
22.6 (143.5) 146.3 

3,370.8 79.8 231.4 

(1) Cash inflows and cash outflows arising from commercial paper borrowings and debentures are presented on a net basis. 
(2) Accrued interest is included within accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 10). 
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22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

As the City is the sole shareholder of the Corporation, the Corporation and the City, including agencies and corporations 
of the City, are considered related parties. 

Transactions with related parties 

Year ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Revenues 

Operating expenses and capital expenditures 

Dividends declared and paid (note 16) 

Revenues represent amounts charged to the City primarily for electricity, street lighting and ancillary services. Operating 
expenses and capital expenditures represent amounts charged by the City for purchased road cut repairs, property taxes 
and other services. Dividends are paid to the City (note 16). 

Amounts due to/from related parties 

As at December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue (note 4) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 10) 
Customer deposits 

Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue represent receivables from the City primarily for electricity, street lighting and 
ancillary services including amounts not yet billed. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities represent amounts payable to 
the City related to road cut repairs and other services. Customer deposits represent amounts received from the City for 
future expansion projects. 

Key management personnel compensation 

Key management personnel include the Corporation’s senior executive officers and members of the Board of Directors. 
The compensation costs associated with the key management personnel are as follows: 

Year ended December 31 
(in millions of Canadian dollars) 

2024 
$ 

2023 
$ 

Short-term employee benefits 6.7 5.3 
Post-employment benefits 2.5 2.6 
Other long-term benefits 0.4 — 
Termination benefits 0.6 — 
Total 10.2 7.9 
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285.6 285.1 
9.7 8.7 

83.9 98.3 

41.7 32.6 
8.9 3.8 

16.5 16.0 
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23. COMMITMENTS 

As at December 31, 2024, the future minimum payments for commitments were as follows: 

As at December 31 2024 

(in millions of Canadian dollars) $ 

Less than one year 1.0 
Between one and five years 3.0 
More than five years 2.7 
Total amount of future minimum payments (1) 6.7 
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(1) Refer to note 15 for financial commitments excluded from the table above. 

24. CONTINGENCIES 

Legal proceedings 

In the ordinary course of business, the Corporation and its subsidiaries are subject to various legal proceedings, actions 
and claims from customers, suppliers, regulators and other parties. The outcome of outstanding, pending or future 
proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty and could materially adversely affect the Corporation. As at the date 
hereof, the Corporation believes that none of these legal proceedings, actions and claims from customers, suppliers, 
regulators and other parties in which it is currently involved or has been involved since the beginning of the most recently 
completed financial year, would be expected to have a material adverse effect on the Corporation. On an ongoing basis, 
the Corporation and its subsidiaries assess the likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes as well as potential 
ranges of probable costs and losses. A determination of the provision required, if any, for these contingencies is made 
after an analysis of each individual issue. The provision may change in the future due to new developments in each 
matter or changes in approach, such as a change in settlement strategy. If damages were awarded under these actions, 
the Corporation and its subsidiaries would make a claim under any liability or other insurance policies, to the extent 
applicable, subject to such claim not being disputed by the insurers. Further details on legal proceedings that relate to the 
Corporation are set out below. 

In December 2023, the Corporation’s insurers entered into two agreements to settle prior legal actions directly with the 
claimants on the Corporation’s behalf for a total of $90.0 million under the terms of the relevant insurance policies. In 
March 2024, the settlement of $90.0 million was paid by the Corporation’s insurers directly to the claimants, which 
resulted in the derecognition of the settlement liability and corresponding settlement asset (notes 5 and 10). 

25. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a) Basis of consolidation 

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All 
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. 

b) Use of judgments and estimates 

The preparation of the Corporation’s Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards 
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions which affect the application of accounting policies, 
reported assets, liabilities and regulatory balances, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, and the reported revenues and expenses for the year. The estimates are based on 
historical experience, current conditions and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the 
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circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities 
as well as for identifying and assessing the accounting treatment with respect to commitments and contingencies. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates, including changes as a result of future decisions made by the OEB, the IESO, 
the Ontario Ministry of Energy, or the Ontario Ministry of Finance. 

Information about judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts 
recognized in the financial statements is included in the following: 

• Note 25(c) – Recognition of regulatory balances; 

• Note 25(j) – Principal versus agent determination for recording revenue on a gross or net basis; and 

• Note 25(o) – Interpretation of changes in tax legislation, regulations and interpretations. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized 
prospectively. Assumptions and estimates with a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next 
financial year are used in the following: 

• Note 24 – Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies; 

• Note 25(c) – Recognition and measurement of regulatory balances; 

• Note 25(e) – Recognition and measurement of expected credit loss allowance for accounts receivable and 
unbilled revenue; 

• Notes 25(f) and 25(g) – Determination of components and useful lives of depreciable assets; 

• Note 25(j) – Revenue recognition – measurement of unbilled revenue; 

• Notes 25(m) and 13 – Measurement of post-employment benefits – key actuarial assumptions; and 

• Notes 25(o) and 20 – Recognition of deferred tax assets – availability of future taxable income against which 
deductible temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards can be used. 

c) Regulation 

The following regulatory treatments have resulted in accounting treatments which differ from those prescribed by IFRS 
Accounting Standards for enterprises operating in an unregulated environment and regulated entities that did not adopt 
IFRS 14. 

Regulatory Balances 

In January 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 14 as an interim standard giving entities conducting rate-regulated activities the 
option of continuing to recognize regulatory balances according to their previous GAAP. Regulatory balances provide 
useful information about the Corporation’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. IFRS 14 is restricted to 
first-time adopters of IFRS Accounting Standards and remains in force until either repealed or replaced by permanent 
guidance on rate-regulated accounting from the IASB. 

The Corporation has determined that certain debit and credit balances arising from rate-regulated activities qualify for the 
application of regulatory accounting treatment in accordance with IFRS 14. Under rate-regulated accounting, the timing 
and recognition of certain expenses and revenues may differ from those otherwise expected under other IFRS Accounting 
Standards in order to appropriately reflect the economic impact of regulatory decisions regarding the Corporation’s 
regulated revenues and expenditures. These amounts arising from timing differences are recorded as regulatory debit 
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and credit balances on the Corporation’s consolidated balance sheets, and represent existing rights and obligations 
regarding cash flows expected to be recovered from or refunded to customers, based on decisions and approvals by the 
OEB. Regulatory balances can be recognized for rate-setting and financial reporting purposes only if the OEB directs the 
relevant regulatory treatment or if future OEB direction is determined by management to be probable. In the event that 
the disposition of these balances is assessed to no longer be probable based on management’s judgment, the balances 
are recorded in the Corporation’s consolidated statements of income in the period when this assessment is made. 
Regulatory balances, which do not meet the definition of an asset or liability under any other IFRS Accounting Standards, 
are segregated on the consolidated balance sheets and are presented on the consolidated statements of income and the 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income as net movements in regulatory balances and net movements in 
regulatory balances related to OCI, net of tax. The netting of regulatory debit and credit balances is not permitted. 

Significant judgment and estimation uncertainty 

The timing of recognition of regulatory balances is subject to significant judgments. The measurement of regulatory 
balances is subject to certain estimates and assumptions, including assumptions made in the interpretation of the OEB’s 
regulations and decisions. 

d) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in bank accounts and short-term investments with terms to maturity of 90 days or 
less from their date of acquisition. On the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents (working 
capital balances) include bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Corporation’s 
cash management. 

e) Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue 

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and overdue amounts bear interest at OEB-approved rates. 
Unbilled revenue is recorded based on an estimated amount for electricity delivered and for other services provided and 
not yet billed. The estimate is primarily based on the customers’ previous billings with adjustments mainly for assumptions 
related to seasonality. The carrying amount of accounts receivable and unbilled revenue is reduced through a loss 
allowance, if applicable, and the amount of the related impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated statements of 
income. The impairment loss is the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the estimated future cash flows. 
When the Corporation considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the financial assets, the relevant 
amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases due to an event occurring after the 
impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through net income. 

Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective 
evidence of impairment, which includes default or delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter 
bankruptcy, and adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers. Accounts receivable and unbilled 
revenue that are not individually assessed for impairment are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together 
receivables with similar risk characteristics, and the Corporation considers historical trends on the timing of recoveries and 
the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the current economic and credit conditions. 

The Corporation measures the expected credit loss allowance at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses 
for all trade receivables that result from transactions with customers and do not contain a significant financing component. 
A provision matrix is used by the Corporation to measure the lifetime expected credit losses of accounts receivable from 
individual customers. Loss rates are calculated using a ‘roll rate’ method based on the probability of a trade receivable 
progressing through successive stages of delinquency to write-off and are based on the average of actual credit loss 
experience over the past three years, as it more accurately reflects anticipated credit loss. Roll rates are calculated 
separately for exposures based on customer account status. The Corporation also adjusts the expected credit loss 
allowance in efforts to account for current economic conditions and events (including forward-looking macroeconomic 
data) and historical information (including credit agency reports, if available) (note 15(b)). The Corporation considers the 
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reasons for the accounts being past due, the characteristics of existing accounts, reasonable and supportable forecasts 
and other considerations that may affect the collectability of the reported amounts. 

Significant judgment and estimation uncertainty 

The expected credit loss allowance is based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates, which reflects 
the amounts of accounts receivable and unbilled revenue that are ultimately expected to be non-collectible. The 
Corporation applies judgments in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment provision for 
accounts receivable and unbilled revenue, based on the Corporation’s past experience, existing market conditions as well 
as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

f) Property, plant and equipment 

PP&E are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if applicable. The 
cost of PP&E represents the original cost, consisting of direct materials and labour, contracted services, borrowing costs 
and directly attributable overhead. Subsequent costs are capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Corporation and the costs can be measured reliably. If significant parts of 
an item of PP&E have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate major components of PP&E. The 
carrying amount of an item of PP&E is derecognized on disposal of the asset or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to accrue to the Corporation from its continued use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recorded in the 
consolidated statements of income in the period in which the asset is derecognized. The gain or loss on disposal of an 
item of PP&E is determined as the sale proceeds less the carrying amount of the asset and costs of removal and is 
recognized in the consolidated statements of income. 

Depreciation begins when an asset becomes available for use. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives at the following annual rates: 

Distribution assets: 
Distribution lines 1.5% to 5.0% 

Transformers 2.9% to 4.0% 

Meters 2.5% to 6.7% 

Stations 2.0% to 10.0% 

Buildings 1.5% to 20.0% 

Equipment and other: 
Street lighting assets 1.7% to 5.0% 

Other capital assets 4.0% to 25.0% 

Construction in progress relates to assets not currently available for use and therefore is not depreciated. There are no 
residual values for items of PP&E. 

Significant judgment and estimation uncertainty 

Depreciation rates are developed based on the useful lives derived from past experience, current facts and formal 
depreciation studies, taking into account future expected usage and potential for technological obsolescence. The 
Corporation applies judgments in assessing the appropriate level of componentization where an asset is made up of 
individual components for which different depreciation methods and useful lives are appropriate. The depreciation method 
and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. 
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g) Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses, if 
applicable. 

Amortization begins when an asset becomes available for use. Amortization is provided on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives at the following annual rates: 

Computer software 10.0% to 25.0% 

Contributions 4.0% 

Software in development and contributions for work in progress relate to assets not currently available for use and 
therefore are not amortized. Contributions represent payments made to HONI for dedicated infrastructure in order to 
receive connections to transmission facilities. 

Significant judgment and estimation uncertainty 

Useful lives of intangible assets are developed based on past experience, current facts, taking into account future 
expected usage and potential for technological obsolescence. The amortization method and useful lives are reviewed at 
each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. 

h) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Corporation reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets other than materials and supplies and deferred 
tax assets at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment, in which case the assets’ 
recoverable amounts are estimated. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of 
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent on the cash inflows of other assets or 
CGUs. The Corporation has determined that its CGUs are at the individual entity level due to interdependencies of each 
entity’s group of assets to generate cash flows. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or 
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statements of income, and 
are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis. An impairment loss recognized in 
prior periods is reversed when an asset’s recoverable amount has increased, but not exceeding the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. 

i) Capitalized borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or development of qualifying assets that necessarily 
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized, until such time as the assets are 
substantially ready for their intended use. The interest rate for capitalization is the Corporation’s weighted average cost of 
borrowing, and is applied to the carrying amount of the construction-in-progress assets or assets under development, 
including borrowing costs previously capitalized, net of capital contributions received. Capitalization commences 
immediately as the expenditure on a qualifying asset is incurred. Borrowing costs are included in the cost of PP&E and 
intangible assets for financial reporting purposes and charged to operations through depreciation and amortization 
expense over the useful lives of the related assets. 

j) Revenue recognition 

The Corporation assesses each contract with the customer to identify the performance obligation. The transaction price 
and the payment terms are agreed upon in the contract between the Corporation and the customer. Revenue is 
recognized to the extent it is probable that the Corporation will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled in 
exchange for the goods or services that will be transferred to the customer. 
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Revenues from energy sales and electricity distribution are recorded on the basis of cyclical billings and include an 
estimated amount for electricity delivered and not yet billed. The majority of billing cycles and payment terms are on a 
monthly basis. These revenues are impacted by energy demand primarily driven by outside temperature, and customer 
class usage patterns and composition. 

Energy sales arise from charges to customers for electricity consumed, based on regulated rates. Energy sales include 
amounts billed or billable to customers for commodity charges, retail transmission charges, and WMS charges at current 
rates. These charges are passed through to customers over time and are considered revenue by THESL due to the 
collection risk of the related balances. The Corporation applies judgment to determine whether revenues are recorded on 
a gross or net basis. The Corporation has primary responsibility for the delivery of electricity to the customer. This 
performance obligation is satisfied over time when the electricity is simultaneously received and consumed by the 
customer. For any given period, energy sales should be equal to the cost of energy purchased. However, a difference 
between energy sales and energy purchases arises when there is a timing difference between the amounts charged by 
THESL to customers, based on regulated rates, and the electricity and non-competitive electricity service costs billed 
monthly by the IESO to THESL. This difference is recorded as a settlement variance, representing future amounts to be 
recovered from or refunded to customers through future billing rates approved by the OEB. In accordance with IFRS 14, 
this settlement variance is presented within regulatory balances on the consolidated balance sheets and within net 
movements in regulatory balances on the consolidated statements of income. 

Distribution revenue is recorded based on OEB-approved distribution rates to recover the costs incurred by THESL in 
delivering electricity to customers. Distribution revenue also includes revenue related to the collection of OEB-approved 
rate riders. The Corporation’s agreement to provide distribution services to the customer is a performance obligation that 
is satisfied over time as the customer simultaneously consumes the electricity distributed to the customer’s location. 

Other revenue includes revenue from services ancillary to the electricity distribution, delivery of street lighting services, 
pole and duct rentals, other regulatory service charges, capital contributions and CDM programs. 

Revenues from services ancillary to electricity distribution relate to customer requests for work performed, which may 
include plant relocations or extensions, service connections, temporary service and pole support. Customers benefit from 
the services performed as requested in each contract. This performance obligation is satisfied over time when the 
Corporation transfers a promised good or service to a customer. 

Revenues from the delivery of street lighting and expressway lighting services are recognized as the services are 
rendered. The Corporation’s agreement to design, install, operate and maintain the street lighting system at the service 
level agreed with the City is a performance obligation that is satisfied over time as the City simultaneously receives and 
consumes the benefit. Revenue from the delivery of street lighting and expressway lighting services is recorded on a 
gross basis as the Corporation is acting as the principal. The Corporation has the primary responsibility for the delivery of 
street lighting and expressway lighting services to the City even though it may engage other parties to perform some of 
the services on its behalf. The Corporation bills a fixed annual fee on a monthly basis. Periodically, the Corporation may 
be entitled to additional consideration for its delivery of street lighting and expressway lighting services, which is 
accounted for as variable consideration. 

Revenues from pole and duct rentals relate to customers’ request for a permit to attach their equipment on the 
Corporation’s owned poles and the contract defines the fees chargeable and the payment terms. The Corporation has 
performance obligations to provide the site inspection, reviews and processes the application prior to any make-ready 
work so the pole or duct meets the condition for the asset attachment, and to provide ongoing access thereafter for 
attaching customer assets to the pole or duct. The Corporation recognizes the non-refundable administration fee upon 
completion of its review and processing of the customer application. The Corporation recognizes the fees from make-
ready work at the point in time when the work is complete and recognizes the rental fees over the rental period as the 
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit of usage. 

Revenues from other regulatory service charges include items such as one-time setup fees for a new account or transfer 
of an existing account to a different address, fees related to overdue customer accounts, collection charges and 
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reconnection charges which are based on OEB-approved rates. The Corporation recognizes these regulatory service 
charges when the service is complete. 

Capital contributions received in advance from electricity customers and developers to construct or acquire PP&E for the 
purpose of connecting a customer to a network are recorded as deferred revenue and amortized into other revenue at an 
equivalent rate to that used for the depreciation of the related PP&E. Capital contributions received from developers to 
construct or acquire PP&E for the purpose of connecting future customers to the distribution network are considered out of 
scope of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Contributions received from customers to construct or 
acquire PP&E to deliver services other than those related to delivery of electricity are recorded as deferred revenue and 
amortized into other revenue over the term of the contract with the customer. The rendering of these contracts includes a 
performance obligation to either construct or acquire PP&E, connect to and/or expand the main distribution system and 
provide ongoing service, which is satisfied over time as benefits flow to the customers. 

Revenues and costs associated with CDM programs are presented using the net basis of accounting and are recorded in 
accordance with IAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance. Cost efficiency 
incentives related to the CDM programs, included as part of other revenue, are recognized when it is probable that future 
economic benefits will flow to the entity and the amount can be reasonably measured. 

Non-cash compensation from third parties for items of PP&E that were impaired or given up is measured at fair value and 
recognized when it becomes receivable and is recorded in accordance with IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment. 

The Corporation has not incurred any additional costs to obtain or fulfill contracts with its customers from the above-
mentioned revenue generating activities. Variable consideration under a contract is recorded only to the extent that it is 
highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the 
associated uncertainty is subsequently resolved. 

Significant judgment and estimation uncertainty 

The Corporation makes judgments with respect to evaluating whether the Corporation acts as principal or agent for 
recording revenue on a gross or net basis on certain flow-through charges to customers or where it engages other parties 
to perform some of the services on its behalf. 

An estimate of usage not yet billed is included in energy sales and distribution revenue. The estimate is derived from 
historical consumption patterns with adjustments mainly for assumptions related to seasonality. The Corporation applies 
judgment to the measurement of the estimated consumption. 

k) Financial instruments 

All financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as “Amortized cost”. These financial instruments are recognized 
initially at fair value adjusted for any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method less any impairment for the financial assets. The fair value of a financial 
instrument is the amount of consideration that would be agreed upon in an arm’s length transaction between willing 
parties. 

Financial assets and liabilities are not offset unless they are with a counterparty for which the Corporation has a legally 
enforceable right to settle the financial instruments on a net basis and the Corporation intends to settle on a net basis. 

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or it transfers the 
financial instrument in a manner that qualifies for derecognition through transfer of substantially all risks and rewards or 
transfer of control. 
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Financial liabilities are derecognized upon extinguishment. A modification of a financial liability with an existing lender is 
evaluated to determine whether the amendment results in substantially different terms, in which case it is accounted for as 
an extinguishment. 

The Corporation uses the following methods and assumptions to estimate the fair value of each class of financial 
instruments for which carrying amounts are included in the consolidated balance sheets: 

• Cash and cash equivalents are classified as “Amortized cost” and are initially measured at fair value. The 
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

• Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue are classified as “Amortized cost” and are initially measured at fair 
value. Subsequent measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less 
expected credit loss allowance. The carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these 
instruments. 

• Working Capital Facility, Revolving Credit Facility and commercial paper are classified as “Amortized cost” and 
are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective 
interest rate method. The carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 
Transaction costs incurred in connection with the Corporation’s revolving credit facility are capitalized within other 
assets on the consolidated balance sheets and are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the facility, 
and are included in finance costs. 

• Accounts payable are classified as “Amortized cost” and are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent 
measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. The carrying amounts 
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

• Customer deposits are classified as “Amortized cost” and are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent 
measurements are recorded at cost plus accrued interest. The carrying amounts approximate fair value taking 
into account interest accrued on the outstanding balance. 

• Debentures are classified as “Amortized cost” and are initially measured at fair value. The carrying amounts of 
the debentures are carried at amortized cost, based on the fair value of the debentures at issuance, which was 
the fair value of the consideration received adjusted for transaction costs. The fair values of the debentures are 
based on the present value of contractual cash flows, discounted at the Corporation’s current borrowing rate for 
similar debt instruments (note 15(a)). Debt issuance costs incurred in connection with the Corporation’s 
debenture offerings are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the debentures and amortized over the term 
of the related debentures, using the effective interest method, and the amortization is included in finance costs. 

l) Fair value measurements 

The Corporation utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of 
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. A fair value hierarchy exists that prioritizes observable and unobservable 
inputs used to measure fair value. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while 
unobservable inputs reflect the Corporation’s assumptions with respect to how market participants would price an asset or 
liability. The fair value hierarchy includes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value: 

• Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. An active market for the asset 
or liability is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to 
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis; 

• Level 2: Other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either 
directly or indirectly; and 
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• Level 3: Unobservable inputs, supported by little or no market activity, used to measure the fair value of the assets 
or liabilities to the extent that observable inputs are not available. 

m) Employee benefits 

(i) Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefit obligations that are due to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the annual 
reporting period in which the employees render the related service are measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Corporation 
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and 
the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

(ii) Multi-employer pension plan 

The Corporation’s full-time employees participate in a pension plan through OMERS. The OMERS plan is a jointly 
sponsored, multi-employer defined benefit pension plan established in 1962 by the province of Ontario for employees of 
municipalities, school boards, libraries, police and fire departments, and other local agencies in communities across 
Ontario. Both participating employers and employees are required to make plan contributions equally based on 
participating employees’ contributory earnings, and share equally in funding gains or losses. The plan assets and pension 
obligations are not segregated in separate accounts for each member entity. The OMERS plan is accounted for as a 
defined contribution plan and the contribution payable is recognized as an employee benefit expense in the consolidated 
statements of income in the period when the service is rendered by the employee, since it is not practicable to determine 
the Corporation’s portion of pension obligations or of the fair value of plan assets. 

(iii) Post-employment benefits 

The Corporation has a number of unfunded benefit plans providing post-employment benefits to its employees, including 
certain retirement, medical, dental and life insurance benefits. The Corporation also pays accumulated sick leave credits, 
up to certain established limits based on service, in the event of retirement, termination or death of certain employees. 

The cost of providing benefits under the benefit plans is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method 
based on assumptions that reflect management’s best estimates. Past service cost is recognized when a plan 
amendment or curtailment occurs. Changes in actuarial assumptions and experience adjustments give rise to actuarial 
gains and losses. Actuarial gains and losses on post-employment benefits other than sick leave credits are recognized in 
OCI as they arise, and are subsequently reclassified from OCI to a regulatory balance on the consolidated balance 
sheets. Actuarial gains and losses on accumulated sick leave credits are recognized in the consolidated statements of 
income in the period in which they arise. 

The measurement date used to determine the present value of the benefit obligation is December 31 of the applicable 
year. The latest actuarial valuation was performed as at January 1, 2024. 

Significant judgment and estimation uncertainty 

Significant assumptions and estimates are used in accounting for post-employment benefits. The Corporation consults 
with actuarial specialists when setting the key assumptions used to determine the post-employment benefit obligation and 
the costs of providing benefits under the plan provisions. 
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n) Customer deposits 

Security deposits from electricity customers are cash collections to guarantee the payment of electricity bills. This liability 
includes related interest amounts owed to the customers with a corresponding amount charged to finance costs. Deposits 
that are refundable upon demand are classified as a current liability. 

Security deposits on offers to connect are cash collections from specific customers to guarantee the payment of additional 
costs relating to expansion projects. This liability includes related interest amounts owed to the customers with a 
corresponding amount charged to finance costs. Deposits are classified as a current liability when the Corporation no 
longer has an unconditional right to defer payment of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. 

o) Income taxes 

The Corporation is exempt from tax under the ITA and the TA, if not less than 90% of its capital is owned by the City and 
not more than 10% of its income is derived from activities carried on outside the municipal geographical boundaries of the 
City. In addition, the Corporation’s subsidiaries are also exempt from tax under the ITA and the TA provided that all of their 
capital is owned by the Corporation and not more than 10% of their respective income is from activities carried on outside 
the municipal geographical boundaries of the City. 

The Corporation and each of its subsidiaries are MEUs for purposes of the PILs regime contained in the Electricity Act. 
The Electricity Act provides that an MEU that is exempt from tax under the ITA and the TA is required to make PILs to the 
Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation. These payments are calculated in accordance with the ITA and the TA as 
modified by regulations made under the Electricity Act and related regulations. This effectively results in the Corporation 
and each of its subsidiaries paying income taxes equivalent to what would be imposed under the ITA and the TA. 

The Corporation uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the liability method, current income taxes 
payable are recorded based on taxable income. The Corporation recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the 
future tax consequences of events that have been included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or income tax 
returns. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the carrying value of assets 
and liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets and their respective tax basis, using the tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted by the consolidated balance sheet date that are in effect for the year in which the differences are 
expected to reverse. Tax benefits associated with income tax positions taken, or expected to be taken, in a tax return are 
recorded only when it is probable that they will be realized, and are measured at the best estimate of the tax amount 
expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized. 

Rate-regulated accounting requires the recognition of regulatory balances and related deferred tax assets and liabilities 
for the amount of deferred taxes expected to be refunded to or recovered from customers through future electricity 
distribution rates. A gross up to reflect the income tax benefits or liabilities associated with the revenue impact resulting 
from the realization of deferred taxes is recorded within regulatory balances. Deferred taxes that are not included in the 
rate-setting process are charged or credited to the consolidated statements of income. 

The benefits of the refundable and non-refundable apprenticeship and other ITCs are credited against the related expense 
in the consolidated statements of income. 

Significant judgment and estimation uncertainty 

The Corporation applies judgments with respect to the calculation of current and deferred taxes, changes in tax 
legislation, regulations and interpretations thereof. Judgment is also applied to estimating probable outcomes, when 
temporary differences will reverse, and whether tax benefits are realizable. When tax legislation is subject to 
interpretation, management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns and records provisions where appropriate. 
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p) Changes in accounting standards 

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 
(IAS 1)) 

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 relating to the classification of liabilities as current or non-current. 
Specifically, the amendments clarify one of the criteria in IAS 1 for classifying a liability as non-current - that is, the 
requirement for an entity to have the right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting 
period. This right may be subject to compliance with covenants. After reconsidering certain aspects of the 2020 
amendments, in October 2022, the IASB issued Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1), 
reconfirming that only covenants with which a company must comply on or before the reporting date affect the 
classification of a liability as current or non-current. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after January 1, 2024, with early adoption permitted. The amendments are to be applied retrospectively. 

Effective January 1, 2024, the Corporation adopted these amendments, with no impact on the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

q) Future accounting pronouncements 

The IASB has issued a number of standards and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective. The 
Corporation has determined that the following standard and amendments could have an impact on the Corporation’s 
consolidated financial statements when adopted. 

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (IFRS 18) 

In April 2024, the IASB issued IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (IFRS 18), which replaces 
IAS 1 and introduces limited amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows. IFRS 18 aims to improve communication of 
financial information in the financial statements, with a focus on information about financial performance in the statement 
of profit or loss. To meet this objective, IFRS 18 introduces additional defined subtotals in the statement of profit or loss, 
disclosures about management-defined performance measures, and enhanced requirements for grouping (aggregation 
and disaggregation) of information. The standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 
2027, with early adoption permitted. The standard is to be applied retrospectively. 

The Corporation is currently assessing the impact of the above standard on the Corporation’s consolidated financial 
statements. 

Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9) 
and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (IFRS 7)) 

In May 2024, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 relating to the classification and measurement of 
financial instruments. The amendments clarify that a financial liability is derecognized on the ‘settlement date’ and 
introduce an accounting policy choice to derecognize financial liabilities settled using an electronic payment system before 
the settlement date, if specified criteria are met. Other clarifications include the classification of financial assets with 
environmental, social, and governance linked features and other similar contingent features, financial assets with non-
recourse features, and contractually linked instruments. The amendments also introduce additional disclosures for 
financial instruments with contingent features and equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI. The 
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2026, with early adoption 
permitted. The amendments are to be applied retrospectively. 

The Corporation is currently assessing the impact of the above amendments on the Corporation’s consolidated financial 
statements. 
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26. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Corporation has evaluated the events and transactions occurring after the consolidated balance sheet date through to 
February 26, 2025 when the Corporation’s Consolidated Financial Statements were authorized for issuance by the 
Corporation’s Board of Directors, and has identified the following events and transactions which required recognition in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements and/or disclosure in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

a) New equity investment from the City 

On January 2, 2025, the Corporation issued 14 common shares to the City for total proceeds of $25.0 million in relation to 
an annual equity contribution from the City. 

b) Dividends 

On February 26, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Corporation declared a dividend in the amount of $15.0 million, 
payable to the City by March 31, 2025. 
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CDM – Conservation and demand management 

CEO – President and Chief Executive Officer 

CFO – Executive Vice-President and Chief Financial 
Officer, or the employee fulfilling the role on an interim 
basis 

CGU – Cash generating unit 

CIR – Custom Incentive Rate-setting 

City – City incorporated under the City of Toronto Act, 
1997 (Ontario), as amended 

Corporation – Toronto Hydro Corporation 

CP Program – Commercial Paper Program 
established by the Corporation under which the 
Corporation issues commercial paper 

CRRRVA – Capital-related revenue requirement 
variance account 

DERs – Distributed Energy Resources 

Electricity Act – Electricity Act, 1998 (Ontario), as 
amended 

ERM – Enterprise Risk Management 

GAAP – Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

GHG – Greenhouse Gas 

GOCA – Getting Ontario Connected Act, 2022 

HONI – Hydro One Networks Inc. 

IAS – International Accounting Standards 

IASB – International Accounting Standards Board 

IESO – Independent Electricity System Operator 

IFRS – International Financial Reporting Standards 

IRM – Incentive Regulation Mechanism 

ITA – Income Tax Act, 1985 (Canada), as amended 

ITC – Investment tax credit 

kW – Kilowatt 

LDC – Local distribution company 

MD&A – Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

MEU – Municipal electricity utility in the Province of 
Ontario 

MTN Program – Medium term note program 
established by the Corporation under which the 
Corporation issues debentures 

OCI – Other comprehensive income 

OEB – Ontario Energy Board 

OEB Act – Ontario Energy Board Act, 1998 
(Ontario), as amended 

OMERS – Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement 
System 

OPEB – Other post-employment benefits 

PILs – Payments in lieu of corporate taxes 

PP&E – Property, plant and equipment 

PWU - Power Workers’ Union 

REI – Renewable enabling investments 

SEDAR+ – System for Electronic Data Analysis and 
Retrieval+ 

TA – Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario), as amended 

TH Energy – The Corporation’s wholly-owned 
subsidiary, Toronto Hydro Energy Services Inc. 

THESL – The Corporation’s wholly-owned subsidiary, 
Toronto Hydro-Electric System Limited 

Toronto Hydro – Toronto Hydro Corporation and its 
subsidiaries 

TransformTO – The City’s TransformTO Net Zero 
Strategy, which outlines a pathway to achieve net zero 
missions in Toronto by 2040 

WMS – Wholesale Market Service 
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